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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
OR

0O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

Commission file number: 001-34628

QuinStreet, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 77-0512121
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

950 Tower Lane, 6" Floor
Foster City, California 94404

(Address of principal executive offices, includingip code)

(650) 587-7700

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registere
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Select Marke
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a wkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0éturities Act.  Yedd No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Senti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant reagiired to file such reports), and (2) has bessjest to such filing requirements for the past@s. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant bésnétted electronically and posted on its corpokéeb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and posted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during treepding 12 months (or for such shorter period thatregistrant was required to submit and podt §iles). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K i contained herein and will not be contained, ®likst of registrarg’knowledge, il
definitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-Kaoyy amendment to this Form 10-K.[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantle&age accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compa&@wge the definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smalieporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchaige (Check one):

Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel
Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxde Act). YesO No

As of December 31, 2012, the aggregate market \althee voting stock held by non-affiliates of thegjistrant, based on the closing sale price otipany’s common stock as
reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market on sdate, was $178,028,048. For purposes of thisafiseé, shares held by persons who hold more thaof%Pe outstanding shares of
common stock and shares held by executive offiedsdirectors of the registrant have been excliéeduse such persons may be deemed to be affilfdtissdetermination of executive
officer or affiliate status is not a conclusiveetatination for other purposes.

Number of shares of common stock outstanding @sugfist 15, 2013: 43,236,542
Documents Incorporated by Reference:

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statnt relating to its 2013 annual stockholders’ imgetre incorporated by reference into Part llithaé Annual Report on Form 10-K
where indicated.
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PART |
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements.stdtements other than statements of historica$fancluding statements regarding
our future financial condition, business strategg plans and objectives of management for futueratfons, are forward-looking statements.
Terminology such as “believe,” “may,” “might,” “obgtive,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “iend,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,”
“predict,” “potential,” or the negative of thesertes or other similar expressions is intended tatifie forward-looking statements. We have
based these forward-looking statements largelyusrcarrent expectations and projections about &uivents and financial trends that we
believe may affect our financial condition, resuafperations, business strategy and financiadsi€Ehese forward-looking statements are
subject to a number of known and unknown riskswamzkrtainties that could cause our actual resoiltifter materially from those expresset
implied in our forward-looking statements. Suclksisnd uncertainties include, among others, thstadlin Part 1, Iltem 1A. “Risk Factors” of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K and elsewhere is thport, such as but not limited to:

e our emerging industry and relatively new businesslei

« changes in the economic condition, market dynaméggjlatory or legislative environment affecting dusiness or our clients’
businesses

» our dependence on Internet search companies éutltternet visitors
» our ability to accurately forecast our operatingules and appropriately plan our expen:
» our ability to compete in our industr
» our ability to successfully challenge regulatorglits) investigations or other findings of noncoraptie with laws
* our ability to develop new services, enhancememtisf@atures to meet new demands from our client$
» our ability to develop our websites to allow Intetrwisitors to access our websites through motsigags.
Except as required by law, we undertake no obligatd update publicly any forward-looking statenseior any reason to conform these

statements to actual results or to changes inxpeatations. Given these risks and uncertaintezgjers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such forward-looking statements, andjuadify all of our forward-looking statements thete cautionary statements.

Item 1. Business
Our Company

QuinStreet is a leader in performance marketingnenWe have built a strong set of capabilitiesrigage Internet visitors with targeted
media and to connect our clients with their potdrdustomers online. We focus on serving clientaige, information-intensive industry
verticals where relevant, targeted media and offsrhelp visitors make informed choices, find thedpcts that match their needs, and thus
become qualified customer prospects for our clightssently, our primary client verticals are tdeeation and financial services industries.
We also have a presence in the business-to-busewssology, home services and medical industries.

We generate revenue by delivering measurable onlem&eting results to our clients. These resuktstygpically in the form of qualified
leads, clicks, calls or customers that are gengffaden our marketing activities on our websitewiarthird-party publishers with whom we
have relationships. Clients primarily pay us fade
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that they can convert into customers, typicallgicall center or through other offline customenuasitjion processes, or for clicks from our
websites that they can convert into applicationsustomers on their websites. We are predomingaiily on a negotiated or market-driveyef
lead” or “per click” basis. Media costs to generalified leads, clicks, calls or customers arenbdy us as a cost of providing our services.

Founded in 1999, we have been a pioneer in the@awent and application of measurable marketintgherinternet. Clients pay us for
the actual opt-in actions by prospects or custottatsresult from our marketing activities on thehalf, versus traditional impression-based
advertising and marketing models in which an adse@ripays for more general exposure to an adverése We have been particularly focu
on developing and delivering measurable marketsglts in the search engine “ecosystem”, the qrdimt of the Internet for most of the
visitors we convert into qualified leads, clickalls or customers for our clients. We own or partmigh vertical content websites that attract
Internet visitors from organic search engine ragg&idue to the quality and relevancy of their contersearch engine users. We also acquire
targeted visitors for our websites through the pase of pay-per-click, or PPC, advertisements archeengines. We complement search
engine companies by building websites with conserit offerings that are relevant and responsivbdm searchers, and by increasing the valu
of the PPC search advertising they sell by matctisitors with offerings and converting them intastomer prospects for our clients.

Market Opportunity
Change in marketing strategy and approach

We believe that marketing approaches are changitidgets shift from offline, analog advertisingdiagto digital advertising media
such as Internet marketing. These changing appesaate fundamental, and require a shift to fundaafigmew competencies, including:

From qualitative, impression-driven marketing to afytic, data-driven marketing

Growth in Internet marketing is enabling a moreaddtiven approach to advertising. The measuralofitynline marketing allows
marketers to collect a significant amount of detaidlata on the performance of their marketing cagngaincluding the effectiveness of ad
format and placement and user responses. Thisdatthen be analyzed and used to improve marketingpaign performance and cost-
effectiveness on substantially shorter cycle tithes with traditional offline media.

From account management-based client relationshtpgesults-based client relationships

Marketers are becoming increasingly focused ortegiias that deliver specific, measurable resutis. ekample, marketers are attempting
to better understand how their marketing spendigyces measurable objectives such as meetingténgat marketing cost per new custor
As marketers adopt more resutigsed approaches, the basis of client relationstithstheir marketing services providers is shitiinom beinc
more account management-based to being more residtsed.

From marketing messages pushed on audiences to reting messages pulled by self-directed audiences

Traditional marketing messages such as televisioiradio advertisements are broadcast to a brodidraee. The Internet is enabling
more self-directed and targeted marketing. For genwhen Internet visitors click on PPC searcheatisements, they are expressing an
interest in and proactively engaging with inforroatabout a product or service related to that dbeznent. The growth of self-directed
marketing, primarily through online channels, alkomarketers to present more targeted and potgntiete relevant marketing messages to
potential customers who have taken the first steheé buying process, which can in turn increasesffectiveness of marketers’ spending.

3
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From marketing spending focused on large media bugsnarketing spending optimized for fragmented need

We believe that media is becoming increasinglyrfragted and that marketing strategies are changindapt to this trend. There are
millions of Internet websites, tens of thousandw/bich have significant numbers of visitors. Whités fragmentation can create challenges fo
marketers, it also allows for improved audiencarsegtation and the delivery of highly targeted m#ngmessages, but new technologies ant
approaches are necessary to effectively manageetiraglgiven the increasing complexity resultingfrmmore media fragmentation.

Increasing complexity of online marketing

Online marketing is a dynamic and increasingly claxadvertising medium. There are numerous onli@nels for marketers to reach
potential customers, including search enginesrreteportals, vertical content websites, affilinworks, display and contextual ad networks,
email, video advertising, and social media. Werradghese and other marketing channels as medih &f these channels may involve
multiple ad formats and different pricing modelsypdifying the complexity of online marketing. Welleee that this complexity increases the
demand for our vertical marketing and media sesviige to our capabilities and to our experienceamiag and optimizing online marketing
programs across multiple channels. Also, marketadsagencies often lack our ability to aggregateriofgs from multiple clients in the same
industry vertical, an approach that allows us teec@ wide selection of visitor segments and previtbre potential matches to visitor needs.
This approach can allow us to convert more Intevisitors into qualified leads, clicks, calls orstomers from targeted media sources, giving
us an advantage when buying or monetizing that anedi

Our Business Model

We deliver cost-effective marketing results to olignts, predictably and scalably, most typicatiythe form of a qualified lead, click or
call. These leads, clicks or calls can then conmota customer or sale for the client at a rass tesults in an acceptable marketing cost to
them. We are paid by clients primarily for deliveyiqualified leads, clicks, calls or customers efingéd in our agreements. We bear the costs
of media, thus our programs must deliver a valuautoclients and a media yield, or margin on oudia€osts, that provides a sound financial
outcome for us. To deliver leads, clicks, calls angtomers to our clients, generally we:

. own or access targeted mec

* run advertisements or other forms of marketing mgss and programs in that media to create visigpanses in the form most
typically of leads (visitor generated contact imfi@tion and requests), clicks (to further qualificator matching steps, or to online
client applications or offerings), or calls (to mwned and operated call centers or that of oentdior their agents

* match these leads, clicks, calls, or customerfigatofferings or brands that meet visitor intéses needs, converting visitors into
qualified leads, clicks, calls or customers for clients; anc

» optimize client matches and media yield such thatehieve desired results for clients and a soimath¢ial outcome for u:

Media cost, or the cost to attract targeted Intevisiors, is the largest cost input to producihg measurable marketing results we de
to clients. Balancing our clients’ customer acdiosi cost and conversion objectives — or the raterach the leads, clicks or calls that we
deliver to them convert into customers — with owdia costs and yield objectives, represents tmagyi challenge in our business model. We
have been able to effectively balance these congpeimands by focusing on our media sources arabd#ies, conversion optimization, and
our mix of offerings and client coverage. We aleeksto mitigate media cost risk by working withrthparty website publishers predominantly
on a revenue-share basis; media purchased onr@uegbare basis has represented the majority ahedia costs and of the Internet visitors
we convert into qualified leads, clicks, calls asomers for clients, contributing significantlydar ability to maintain profitability.

4
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Media and Internet visitor mix

We are a client-driven organization. We seek tofme of the largest providers of measurable mar§getsults on the Internet in the client
industry verticals we serve by meeting the needdieifits for results, reliability and volume. Mawggithose client needs requires that we
maintain a diversified and flexible mix of Internasitor sources due to the dynamic nature of @niiredia. Our media mix changes with
changes in Internet visitor usage patterns. Wetadahose changes on an ongoing basis, and atsetrely adjust our mix of vertical media
sources to respond to client or vertical-specificuanstances and to achieve our financial objesti@enerally, our Internet visitor sources
include:

» websites owned and operated by us, with contenbffadngs that are relevant to our cli€’ target customer:
» visitors acquired from PPC or g-perclick advertisements purchased on major searcmeagind sent to our websit

* revenue sharing agreements with third-party publisivith whom we have a relationship and whoseecurar traffic is relevant to
our client’ target customer:

» emalil lists owned by us or by third parties; i

» advertisements run through online advertising netejadirectly with major websites or portals, sboeedia networks, or mobile
networks, on a reven-share or purchased bas

Conversion optimization

Once we acquire targeted Internet visitors from afigur numerous online media sources, we seekrwveart that media into qualified
leads, clicks, calls or customers at a rate thiatnioas client results with our media costs or yadfectives. We start by providing Internet
visitors with information and product offerings oar websites and in our marketing programs thab&lieve match their interests. Achieving
acceptable client results and media yield theniregwngoing testing, measuring, analysis, feedbaut adaptation of the key components of
our Internet marketing programs. These componestade the marketing or advertising messaging,esamnhix, visitor navigation path, mix
and coverage of client offerings presented, andtgafisale conversion messaging — the contentishatesented to an Internet visitor
immediately prior to converting that individual and lead or click or call or customer for our ctenThis data complexity is managed by us
with technology, data reporting, marketing procesaed personnel. We believe that our scale ané than twelveyear track record give us
advantage, as managing this complexity often inspisteep experience-based learning curve.

Offerings and client coverage

The Internet is a self-directed medium. Internsitors choose the websites they visit and theinenavigation paths, and always have
the option of clicking away to a different websiteweb page. Having offerings, content or cliehts imatch the interests or needs of website
visitors is key to providing results and adequaéglia yield. Our vertical focus allows us to contiogly revise and improve this matching
process, to better understand the various segroéwisitors and client offerings available to betofeed, and to ensure that we enable Internet
visitors to find what they seek.

Our Competitive Advantages
Vertical focus and expertise

We focus our efforts on large, attractive clientrked verticals and on building our depth of media aoverage of clients and client
offerings within them. We have been a pioneer wetliping vertical marketing and media on the Iné¢gnd in providing measureable
marketing results to clients. We focus on clienteare
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moving their marketing spending to measurable enlarmats and on information-intensive client \eai$ with large underlying market
opportunities and high product or customer lifetwadues. This focus allows us to utilize targetestia, in-depth industry and client
knowledge, and customer segmentation and breadtieot offerings, or coverage, to deliver resfdtsour clients, and greater media yield
buying power.

Measurable marketing experience, expertise and data

We have substantial experience at designing ankbylag marketing programs that match Internet wisitto information or product
offerings, and that can deliver economically ativa; measurable results to our clients, cost-&ffely for us. Such results require frequent
testing and balancing of numerous variables, innlythternet visitor sources, mix of content anctliént and product offerings, visitor
navigation paths, prospect qualification, and afisiag creative design, among others. The complefiexecuting these marketing campaigns
is challenging. Due to our scale and more thanvevgkar track record, we have successfully exedhimasands of Internet marketing
programs, and we have gained significant experiemmeaging and optimizing this complexity to meet cients’ volume, quality and cost
objectives, while also achieving media yield anglibg power requirements for our business model.

Targeted media

Targeted media attracts Internet visitors who al&tively narrowly focused demographically or ieithinterests. Targeted media can
deliver better measurable marketing results foralients, at lower media costs for us, due to hightes of conversion of Internet visitors into
leads, clicks, calls, or customers for targetedraifys and, often, due to less competition fronpldig advertisers. We have significant
experience at creating, identifying, partnering petizing, and managing targeted media on the latefirhis array of targeted media can
represent a share of targeted traffic in our valdion the Internet that is meaningful and attvactd clients. Many of the targeted media sot
for our marketing programs are proprietary or nagéensible because of our direct ownership of websh our client verticals, our acquisiti
of targeted Internet visitors directly from seaertgines to our websites, and our relationshipsnagdia buying power advantages with media
properties or sources owned by others. Examplesbsites that we own and operate include Schoais.@nlineDegrees.com, and
AlliedHealthWorld.com in our education client vegl; Carlnsurance.com, Insurance.com, Insure.carjRatings.com, and MoneyRates.c
in our financial services client vertical; eWeelrtand ITBusinessEdge.com in our business-to-busieetinology client vertical,
reliableremodeler.com and improvementcenter.coouirhome services client vertical; and ElderCaketiom in our medical client vertical.

Proprietary technology

We have developed a core technology platform acmhamon set of applications for managing and opfimgimeasurable marketing
programs across multiple client verticals at scalee primary objectives and effects of our techgiae are to achieve higher media yield,
deliver better results for our clients, and mofficeitly and effectively manage our scale and claxipy. We continuously strive to develop
technologies that allow us to better match Intewtors in our client verticals to the informaticclients or product offerings they seek at
scale. In so doing, our technologies can allowousirhultaneously improve visitor satisfaction, e@se our media yield, and achieve higher
rates of conversions of leads, clicks, calls otauers for our clients — a cycle of increased vdtudnternet visitors and our clients and
competitive advantage for us. Some of the key apptins in our technology platform are:

e an ad server for tracking the placement and pedag® of content, creative messaging, and offelmgsur websites and on those
of publishers with whom we worl

» databas-driven applications for dynamically matching contenffers or brands to Internet visit’ expressed needs or intere:

6
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» aplatform for measuring and managing the perforean tens of thousands of PPC search engine #&imgrcampaigns

» dashboards or reporting tools for displaying opegaand financial metrics for thousands of ongaimarketing campaigns; an

» acompliance tool capable of cataloging and filtgrtontent from the thousands of websites on whighmarketing programs
appear to ensure adherence to client branding ljuédeand to regulatory requiremer

Approximately one-third of our employees are engisefocused on building, maintaining and operatingtechnology platform.

Client relationships

We are a reliable source of measurably effectivekating results for our clients. We endeavor to kvoollaboratively and in a data-
driven way with clients to improve our results tbem. We believe our successful client relationslaige due to:

» our close, often direct, relationships with mosbaof large clients
e our ability to deliver measurable and attractivieime on investment, or ROI, on clie’ marketing spending

« our ownership of, or access to large amounts ajetad media inventory and associated Interneiovssin the client verticals on
which we focus; an

» our ability to consistently and reliably deliverde quantities of qualified leads, clicks, callscastomers

As our high client retention rates, combined witht depth and breadth of online media in our prin@ignt verticals indicate, we are an
important marketing channel partner for our clients

Client-driven online marketing approach

We focus on providing measurable Internet markeding media services to our clients in a way theks¢o protect and enhances their
brands and their relationships with prospectiveamsgrs. The Internet marketing programs we exeangelesigned to adhere to strict client
branding and regulatory guidelines, and are intdnidematch our clients’ brands and offers with e@gsed customer interest. We have
contractual arrangements with third-party websitblighers to ensure that they follow our clientsitd guidelines, and we utilize our
proprietary technologies and trained personnektp Bnsure compliance. In addition, we believe phaviding relevant, helpful content and
client offers that match an Internet visitor's ssd#flected interest in a product or service, suae@gesting information about an education
program or financial product, makes that visitorenlikely to convert into a customer for our cligntvVe do not engage in online marketing
practices such as spyware or deceptive promotasgie believe that these do not provide valuettrtet visitors and can undermine our
clients’ brands.

Acquisition strategy and success

We have successfully acquired vertical online miémigeand media companies, including vertical webbitsinesses, marketing services
companies, and technologies. Our scale, breadthpzbilities and common technology platform hawtdnically enabled us to integrate and
generate value from acquisitions through our:

» ability to monetize Internet media, coupled witlent demand for our services, providing us withagtipular advantage in acquiril
targeted online media properties in the clientigals on which we focus

7
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» capabilities in online media allowing us to generaigreater volume of leads, clicks, calls or austs, and therefore create more
value, than other owners of marketing services @nigs that have aggregated client budgets or@akttips; an

» application of technologies across our businessmelto create more value than previous ownerseofethnology

Scale

We are one of the largest Internet performance etigudx companies in the world. Our scale allowsousdtter meet the needs of large
clients for reliability, volume and quality of sére. It allows us to invest more in technologieat improve media yield, client results and our
operating efficiency. We are also able to investarip other forms of research and developmentydinl determining and developing new
types of vertical media, new approaches to engagetugite visitors, and new segments of Internétors and client budgets, all of which can
lead to advantages in media costs, and effectigenegelivering client results.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to continue to be one of the largedtmost successful performance marketing compamékeinternet, and eventually in
other digitized media forms. We believe that weiarthe early stages of a very large and long-teusiness opportunity. Our strategy for
pursuing this opportunity includes the followingykeomponents:

» focus on generating sustainable revenues by proyidieasurable value to our clier

* build QuinStreet and our industry sustainably blggyéng ethically in all we do and by providing dtyatontent and website
experiences to Internet visitol

* remain vertically focused, choosing to grow throulgipth, expertise and coverage in our currenttlierticals; enter new client
verticals selectively over time, organically ancbilngh acquisitions

* build a world class organization, with best-in-slaapabilities for delivering measurable marketisgylts to clients and high yields
or returns on media cos

» develop and evolve the best technologies and phatfor managing vertical marketing and media onlifternet; focus on
technologies that enhance media yield, improventliesults and achieve scale efficienc

» build, buy and partner with vertical content websithat provide the most relevant and highest tyuaBitor experiences in the
client and media verticals we serve; i

* be aclier-driven organization; develop a broad set of mediaces and capabilities to reliably meet clientdse

Clients

In fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, no client casepd more than 10% of annual net revenue, andopu?0 clients accounted for 52%,
54% and 62% of net revenue. Since our service ingffered in 2001, we have developed a broahtlbase with many multi-year
relationships. We enter into Internet marketingtcacts with our clients, most of which are canckdafith little or no prior notice. In addition,
these contracts do not contain penalty provisiongéncellation before the end of the contract term

Sales and Marketing

We have an internal sales team that consists ofoggs focused on signing new clients and accoamagers who maintain and seek to
increase our business with existing clients. Olesspeople and account managers are each focuseganticular client vertical so that they
develop an expertise in the marketing needs otlemts in that particular vertical.

8
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Our marketing programs include attendance at tshdevs and conferences and limited advertising.

Technology and Infrastructure

We have developed a suite of technologies to marageove and measure the results of the markgtingrams we offer our clients. v
use a combination of proprietary and third-partitveare as well as hardware from established tedgyVendors. We use specialized softwar
for client management, building and managing weksicquiring and managing media, managing out-frarty publishers, and the matching
of Internet visitors to our marketing clients. Wavk invested significantly in these technologied plan to continue to do so to meet the
demands of our clients and Internet visitors, tweéase the scalability of our operations, and ecdamanagement information systems and
analytics in our operations. Our development teaamrk closely with our marketing and operating tedamdevelop applications and systems
that can be used across our business. In fisced Y84 3, 2012 and 2011, we spent $19.0 million, B&illion and $24.2 million on product
development.

Our primary data center is at a third-party co-tasacenter in San Francisco, California. All oétbritical components of the system are
redundant, and we have a backup data center iWégas, Nevada. We have implemented these backtgnsysind redundancies to minimize
the risk associated with earthquakes, fire, powass,ltelecommunications failure, and other eveeysid our control.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, trade secratlegmark and copyright laws in the United Statekather jurisdictions together with
confidentiality agreements and technical measurgsdtect the confidentiality of our proprietarghis. To protect our trade secrets, we contrc
access to our proprietary systems and technolodyeater into confidentiality and invention assigmiagreements with our employees and
consultants and confidentiality agreements witleothird parties. QuinStreet is a registered traatérm the United States and other
jurisdictions. We also have registered and unrergst trademarks for the names of many of our wehiséind we own the domain registrati
for our many website domains.

Our Competitors

Our primary competition falls into two categoriestvertising and direct marketing services agenaied,online marketing and media
companies. We compete for business on the basisiomber of factors including return on marketirgenditures, price, access to targeted
media, ability to deliver large volumes or predigees of customer prospects, and reliability.

Advertising and direct marketing services agencies

Online and offline advertising and direct marketsggvices agencies control the majority of thedastient marketing spending for which
we primarily compete. So, while they are sometim@scompetitors, agencies are also often our diaie compete with agencies to attract
marketing budget or spending from offline formsHhe Internet or, once designated to be spent grttinee spent with us versus the agency or
by the agency with others. When spending onlineneigs spend with QuinStreet and with portals, rotfebsites and ad networks.

Online marketing and media companies

We compete with other Internet marketing and medipanies, in many forms, for online marketing letdgMost of these competitors
compete with us in one vertical. Examples inclu@miBRate in the financial services client vertiaadl &ducation Dynamics in the education
client vertical. Some of our competition also corfresn agencies or clients spending directly wittyé websites or portals, including Google,
Yahoo! and Microsoft.
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Government Regulation

We provide services through a number of differeriin@ and offline channels. As a result, we argesttio many Federal and state laws
and regulations, including restrictions on the ofensolicited commercial email, such as the CAMBIPAct and state email marketing laws,
and restrictions on the use of marketing activitiesducted by telephone, including the Telemarge8ales Rule (the “TSR”) and the
Telephone Consumer Protection Act (the “TCPA”). @usiness is also subject to Federal and statedadsegulations regarding privacy,
search engines, Internet tracking technologiesctimarketing, data security, data privacy, pricBweepstakes, promotions, intellectual
property ownership and infringement, trade seceatgort of encryption technology, acceptable condea quality of good, and taxation,
among others.

In addition, we provide services to a number of dignts that operate in highly regulated industrigarticularly in our education and
financial services verticals. Historically, we hayenerated nearly half of our revenue from our atlan client vertical, and nearly all of that
revenue was generated from post-secondary eduahiimtitutions. Post-secondary educational instins are subject to extensive Federal an
state regulations, including the Higher Educatian, Aepartment of Education regulations and indigidstate higher education regulations.
The regulations govern many aspects of these slieperations, including marketing and recruitimg\dties, as well as the school’s eligibility
to participate in Title IV Federal student fina@al programs, which is the principal source afding for many of our education clients. T
have been significant changes to these regulatiothe recent past, and a high level of regulasatyvity and heightened legislative scrutiny is
expected to continue in the post-secondary educagotor. In our financial services vertical, owbsites and marketing services are subject
various Federal, state and local laws, includimageslicensing laws, Federal and state laws prohgitnfair acts and practices, and Federal an
state advertising laws. In addition, we are a lggghinsurance agent in all fifty states. The costoompliance with these and new laws may
increase in the future and any failure on our padgomply with such laws may subject us to sigaificliabilities.

Employees

As of June 30, 2013, we had 599 employees, whioBisted of 174 employees in product developmenin 83les and marketing, 47 in
general and administration and 315 in operatiomsie\bf our employees is represented by a labomueixcept for our employees in Brazil
who are represented by a union as required by [Brazaw.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchangen@dssion (“SEC"), including annual reports on FattiK, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on FornkK8&nd other filings required by the SEC. We malesthreports and filings available free of chargewr
website via the investor relations page on www.gfii@et.com as soon as reasonably practicablesaftér material is electronically filed with
furnished to the SEC. We also webcast our earrialis and certain events we host with membersefrihestment community on our investor
relations page at http://investor.quinstreet.cotre €ontent of our website is not intended to berpeorated by reference into this report or in
any other report or document we file, and any exfee to this website and others included in thpsnieis intended to be an inactive textual
reference only.

The public may read and copy any materials we/fit the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Roof0atF Street, NE, Washington,
DC 20549. The public may obtain information on tiperation of the Public Reference Room by callmg $EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC
maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov} tantains reports, proxy and information statemesmd other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC.

10



Table of Contents

Iltem 1A . Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. You should carefully consider the ridkscribed below and the other
information in this periodic report. If any of sudsks actually occur, our business, operating itssar financial condition could be adversely
affected. In those cases, the trading price ofaammon stock could decline and you may lose gibor of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We operate in an emerging industry and have a ralaly new business model, which makes it diffictdtevaluate our business and
prospects.

We derive nearly all of our revenue from the sdlerdine marketing and media services, which igarerging industry that has
undergone rapid and dramatic changes in its relgtshort history and which is characterized byidigpchanging Internet media, evolving
industry standards, regulatory uncertainty, andhghsy user and client demands. As a result, werfiake and uncertainties such as but not
limited to:

e our emerging industry and relatively new businesslei

» changes in the economic condition, market dynaméggjlatory or legislative environment affecting dusiness or our clients’
businesses

» our dependence on Internet search companies éutltternet visitors

« our ability to accurately forecast our operatingutes and appropriately plan our expen:

e our ability to compete in our industr

« our ability to successfully challenge regulatorgiauinvestigations or other findings of noncompla with laws
* our ability to develop new services and enhancesnamd features to meet new demands from our cliantt

» our ability to develop our websites to allow Intetrwisitors to access our websites through motsigags.

If we are unable to address these risks, our bssjmesults of operations and prospects couldrsuffe

We depend on two market verticals for a majorityafr revenue. Negative changes in the economic déad, market dynamics or
regulatory environment in these verticals have cadsand may continue to cause, our revenue to dexknd our business and growth to
suffer.

To date, we have generated a large majority of@ewgnue from clients in our education and finansgVices client verticals. We expect
that a majority of our revenue, at least in thernean, will continue to be generated from clieint®ur education and financial services client
verticals. Changes in the market conditions orégilatory environment in these two highly-reguatient verticals have negatively
impacted, and may continue to negatively impaat,alients’ businesses, marketing practices and btsdand, therefore, our financial results.

Our business is subject to many regulatory requirents, and current or future regulation could haveraaterial adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial cotidn.

Our business is subject to many laws and regulatayirements, including Federal and state lawardigg unsolicited commercial
email, telemarketing, user privacy, search engilmsrnet tracking technologies, direct marketidata security, data privacy, pricing,
sweepstakes, promotions, intellectual property aship and infringement, trade secrets, export ofygtion technology, acceptable content
and quality of goods, and taxation, among otheislations or alleged violations of applicable laarsd regulations, including telemarketing
laws, could result in liability for damages, finesiminal prosecution, unfavorable publicity andtretions on our ability to operate.
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Many of these regulations are frequently changamgl, bringing our business into compliance with teems and regulations may be
costly, affect our revenue, and harm our finanaallts. For example, the FCC recently amended ¢lephone Consumer Protection Act that
affects telemarketing calls. Certain provisionshaf regulations became effective in July 2012, additional regulations requiring prior expr
written consent for certain types of telephonic cmmications become effective in October 2013. Weegate a significant amount of revenue
from calls made by our internal call centers ad a®by third party call centers. Efforts to compligh the new regulations may negatively
affect media conversion rates and, thus, our revenyprofitability. We also purchase a portion af tead data from third-party publishers and
cannot guarantee that these third parties will dgmyith the regulations. Any failure by us or thertl-party publishers on which we rely on for
telemarketing, email marketing and other lead gaiear activities, to adhere to or successfully iempént appropriate processes and procet
in response to changing regulatory requirementa@sult in legal liability or damage our reputattin the marketplace, either of which could
have a material adverse effect on our businessitsed operations and financial condition.

We depend on third-party website publishers forigrsficant portion of our visitors. Any decline ithe supply of media available through
these websites or increase in the price of this membuld cause our revenue to decline or our castéach visitors to increase.

A significant portion of our revenue is attributald visitor traffic originating from third-partyublishers. In many instances, website
publishers can change the media inventory they rag&#able to us at any time and, therefore, impactrevenue. In addition, website
publishers may place significant restrictions onafferings. These restrictions may prohibit adigernents from specific clients or specific
industries, or restrict the use of certain creativetent or formats. If a website publisher decitetsto make media inventory available to us, o
decides to demand a higher revenue share or pdagr@ficant restrictions on the use of such inveptave may not be able to find media
inventory from other websites that satisfy our iegments in a timely and cost-effective manneiaddition, the number of competing online
marketing service providers and advertisers thatiiae inventory from websites continues to incregSmsolidation of Internet advertising
networks and website publishers could eventualid l® a concentration of desirable inventory onsiteb or networks owned by a small
number of individuals or entities, which could lirttie supply or pricing of inventory available te. fror example, throughout both fiscal years
2013 and 2012, our revenue declined in our findrseievices client vertical primarily due to volurdeclines caused by losses of traffic from
third-party publishers acquired by competitors,nges in search engine algorithms which reducedimirated traffic from some third-party
publishers, and increased competition for qualigdia. We cannot assure you that we will be abkctpire media inventory that meets our
clients’ performance, price and quality requirenseirt which case our revenue could decline or arating costs could increase.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the pasicamay do so in the future, which makes our resulifsoperations difficult to predict
and could cause our operating results to fall shaftanalysts’ and investors’ expectations.

Historically, quarterly and annual operating restiave fluctuated due to changes in our businessndustry and the general economic
climate. We expect our future operating resultgaxy significantly from quarter to quarter due teaaiety of factors, many of which are bey:
our control. Our fluctuating operating results ebohuse our performance and outlook to be belovexpectations of securities analysts and
investors, causing the price of our common stodalloOur business is changing and evolving, a@wda result, our historical operating results
may not be useful to you in predicting our futupeting results. Factors that may increase thatilibt of our operating results include the
following:

» changes in client volum
* loss of existing clients
» the availability and price of quality med
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» consolidation of media source
» changes in search engine algorithms that affecandrour publishe’ websites; an
» regulatory and legislative chang

We depend upon Internet search providers to diradignificant portion of the visitors to our and auhird party publishers’ websites.
Changes in search engine algorithms have in the fpaisd may in the future harm the websites’ placent®im both paid and organic
search result listings, which may cause the numloéwisitors to our websites, our third party pulitiers’ websites and our revenue to
decline.

Our success depends on our ability to attract enligitors to our and our third party publisherghgites and convert them into prospect:
for our clients in a cost-effective manner. We depen Internet search providers to direct a sutisfeshare of visitors to our websites. Searct
providers offer two types of search results: orgamd paid listings. Organic listings are displapaeded solely on formulas designed by the
search companies. Paid listings are displayed basedcombination of the advertiser’s bid pricegarticular keywords and the search
engines’ assessment of the website’s relevanceaality.

Our ability to maintain or grow the number of visi to our websites from search providers is ntitay within our control. Search
providers frequently revise their algorithms andradpes in their algorithms could cause our websiteésceive less favorable placements. We
have experienced fluctuations in organic rankirmysafnumber of our websites and some of our psithgj campaigns have also been harmed
by search engine algorithmic changes. Search peovicbuld determine that our or our third-partyljgliers websites content is either not
relevant or is of poor quality. In addition, we nfajl to optimally manage our paid listings, or quoprietary bid management technologies
may fail. In any of these cases, our websites reagive less favorable placement in organic or [istichgs, which would reduce the number of
visitors to our sites and have a detrimental eféecour ability to generate revenue. If visits to websites decrease, we may need to use mor
costly sources to replace lost visitors, and sacheiased expense could adversely affect our bussarasprofitability.

If we fail to compete effectively against other am marketing and media companies and other commesi, we could lose clients and our
revenue may decline.

The market for online marketing is intensely contpe&t, and we expect this competition to continaéncrease in the future both from
existing competitors and, given the relatively loarriers to entry into the market, from new compesi We compete both for clients and for
limited high-quality media. We compete for clients the basis of a number of factors, includingmetin investment of client’s marketing
spending, price and client service.

We compete with Internet and traditional media canigs for a share of clients’ overall marketing dgeets, including:

« online marketing or media services providers suchRa@ucation Dynamics in the education client vattand BankRate in the
financial services client vertice

» offline and online advertising agenci
e major Internet portals and search engine compavitesadvertising networks

« other online marketing service providers, includamgine affiliate advertising networks and indusspecific portals or lead
generation companie

» website publishers with their own sales forces #ladittheir online marketing services directly tiewts;
e in-house marketing groups and activities at curreqpotential clients
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» offline direct marketing agencie
* mobile and social media; ai
» television, radio and print compani

Competition for web traffic among websites and sleangines, as well as competition with traditiama&dia companies, has resulted anc
may continue to result in significant increasemidia pricing, declining margins, reductions inenewre and loss of market share. In addition, i
we expand the scope of our services, we may comptiea greater number of websites, clients anditicnal media companies across an
increasing range of different services, includingértical markets where competitors may have atdeps in expertise, brand recognition and
other areas. Internet search companies with brecmbnition, such as Google, Yahoo!, and Microdwdtie significant numbers of direct sales
personnel and substantial proprietary advertigimgmtory and web traffic that provide a significanmpetitive advantage and have significant
impact on pricing for Internet advertising and wedific. Some of these companies may offer or dgvehore vertically targeted products that
match consumers with products and services and, dmmpete with us more directly. The trend towamsolidation in online marketing may
also affect pricing and availability of media intery and web traffic. Many of our current and pdigincompetitors also enjoy other
competitive advantages over us, such as longeatipgtistories, greater brand recognition, lagjient bases, greater access to advertising
inventory on high-traffic websites, and signifidgrgreater financial, technical and marketing reses. As a result, we may not be able to
compete successfully. Competition from other mankgeservice providers’ online and offline offeringas affected and may continue to affect
both volume and price, and, thus, revenue, prdditgims and profitability. If we fail to deliver rel¢s that are superior to those that other online
marketing service providers deliver to clients,aeeld lose clients, and our revenue may decline.

We are subject to many regulations that relate tar dusiness and to those of our clients. If any rdgtory audit, investigation or other
proceeding finds us not in compliance with theseather laws, we may not be able to successfullyligmge such finding, and our
business could suffer.

For example, the financial services and educatidastries are highly regulated and our marketiriyiéies on behalf of our clients in
those industries are also regulated. Each of oucattbn, financial services and other client vat8ds subject to various Federal, state and
laws, including Federal and state laws prohibitimfair acts and practices, and Federal and statrtiging laws. Any failure to comply with
these laws and regulations could result in civiminal or administrative liability, damage to ow@putation, or changes to or limitations on the
conduct of our business.

From time to time, we are subject to audits, ingsirinvestigations, claims of non-compliance awisluits by Federal and state
governmental agencies, regulatory agencies, agsrgeneral and other governmental or regulatorydso@ny of whom may allege violations
of the legal or regulatory requirements applicdablas. For example, in June 2012, we entered mtassurance of Voluntary Compliance
agreement following a civil investigation into cart of our marketing and business practices reletedir education client vertical that was
conducted by the attorneys general of a numbetatés If the results of any future investigaticasdits, inquiries, claims or litigation are
unfavorable to us, we may be required to pay maoynditdes or penalties or have restrictions placedor business, which could materially
adversely affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations and cash flows.

Federal and state regulations governing clientsanr education vertical have negatively affected,damay continue to negatively affect,
our clients’ businesses, marketing practices anddigets, any or all of which could have a materiahagise effect on our financial results.

Historically, we have generated nearly half of muenue from our education client vertical, andrlyeal of that revenue was generated
from post-secondary educational institutions. RBesndary educational institutions are subjeckterssive Federal and state regulations,
including the Higher Education Act,
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Department of Education regulations and individitate higher education regulations. The regulatmv&rn many aspects of these clients’
operations, including marketing and recruiting\atiis, as well as the school’s eligibility to gaipate in Title IV Federal student financial aid
programs, which is the principal source of fundiogmany of our education clients. There have Isgnificant changes to these regulations ir
the recent past, and a high level of regulatorividgtand heightened legislative scrutiny is exgelcto continue in the post-secondary educatio
sector. Changes in, or new interpretations of,iapple laws, regulations, standards or policiediagiple to these clients could have a material
adverse effect on their accreditation, authorizatmoperate in various states, or receipt of fumttder Title IV programs, any of which, in tu
may harm our ability to generate revenue from thodisets and our financial results.

If we fail to continually enhance and adapt our pdoicts and services to keep pace with rapidly chaggiechnologies and industry
standards, we may not remain competitive and cdoksk clients or advertising inventory.

The online media and marketing industry is charazgd by rapidly changing standards, changing teldgies, frequent new product and
service introductions, and changing user and ctientands. The introduction of new technologiesserdices embodying new technologies
and the emergence of new industry standards amtigea could render our existing technologies ardises obsolete and unmarketable or
require unanticipated investments in technology.dstgtinually make enhancements and other modifinatto our proprietary technologies,
and these changes may contain design or perfornt®ieets that are not readily apparent. If our petgry technologies fail to achieve their
intended purpose or are less effective than tecigied used by our competitors, our business coilsiaibmed.

Our future success will depend in part on our gbit successfully adapt to these rapidly changinigne media formats and other
technologies. If we fail to adapt successfully,co@ild lose advertising inventory.

More people are using mobile devices to accesdrternet. If we fail to develop our websites to egace with this shift in user devices,
we may not remain competitive and could lose clgot advertising inventory.

The number of people who access the Internet througpile devices such as smart phones and tatdstmbreased dramatically in the
past few years, and the trend is expected to aseti@ur online marketing services and content weargnally designed for desktop or laptop
computers. The shift from desktop or laptop comsute mobile devices could potentially deteriortiie user experience for visitors to our
websites and may make it more difficult for visgdo respond to our offerings. It may also requiseo develop new offerings specifically
designed for mobile devices. Additionally, the miiregtion of our online marketing services and cotgen these mobile devices might not be
as lucrative for us compared to those on desktddagptop computers. If we fail to develop our wébsicost effectively and improve our
monetization capabilities of our mobile marketimgvices, we may not remain competitive and may tiegjg affect our business and
operating results.

We rely on our management team and other key emeésy and the loss of one or more key employeesdclhatm our business.

Our success and future growth depend upon therzaediservices of our management team, includinggswalenti, Chief Executive
Officer, and other key employees in all areas afarganization. From time to time, there may benges in our key employees resulting from
the hiring or departure of executives and employebgch could disrupt our business. Many membermsusfmanagement team and employee:s
have also become, or will soon become, substantiakited in their equity grants or may have limitegntion value in their existing grants. In
addition, in fiscal year 2013, we experienced d@diin our business and a depressed stock pri¢gngnaur equity and cash incentive
compensation programs less attractive to curreshipatential key employees. If we lose the servafdsey employees or if we are unable to
attract and retain additional qualified employe=s, business and growth could suffer.
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A substantial portion of our revenue is generatedrn a limited number of clients and, if we lose aajuor client, our revenue will decreas
and our business and prospects would be harmed.

A substantial portion of our revenue is generatethfa limited number of clients. None are 10% oranbowever we have a few
customers that account for a large portion of @irravenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20lBclients can generally terminate their
contracts with us at any time, with limited priatice or penalty as these contracts do not coamalty provisions for cancellations before
end of the contract term. Our clients may also cedteir level of business with us, leading to lovexenue.

In addition, reductions in business by one or nsigeificant clients may trigger price reductions éar other clients for products whose
prices are determined in whole or in part by cligidding or competition. Any such price reductiauld result in lower revenue. We expect
that a limited number of clients will continue tocaunt for a significant percentage of our reveranel the loss of any one of these clients, or
material reduction in their marketing spending with) could decrease our revenue and harm our lassine

Third-party publishers or vendors may engage in wihorized or unlawful acts that could subject us stgnificant liability or cause us to
lose clients.

We generate a significant portion of our web vistisom online media that we purchase from thpedty website publishers. We also r
on third party call centers and email marketersn&of these third parties are authorized to useleemts’ brands, subject to contractual
restrictions. Any activity by third party publistseor vendors that clients view as potentially daimgdp their brands can harm our relationship
with the client and cause the client to terminggeélationship with us, resulting in a loss ofeeue. In addition, we may also face liability for
any failure of our third-party publishers or venslts comply with regulatory requirements, as furttiescribed in the risk factor beginning,
“Our business is subject to many regulatory reegmémsts, and current or future regulation could hewveaterial adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.”

The law is unsettled on the extent of liabilityttha advertiser in our position has for the adgsitof third-party publishers or vendors.
Recent Department of Education regulations imptrset Hability on our education clients for misnesentations made by their marketing
service providers. In addition, certain of our gants impose liability on us for the acts of ourdkparty publishers or vendors. We could be
subject to costly litigation and, if we are unswssfal in defending ourselves, damages for the toaized or unlawful acts of third-party
publishers or vendors.

We gather, transmit and store consumer personatigntifiable information and unauthorized access o accidental disclosure of this
information may cause us to incur significant expsas and may negatively affect our reputation andsmess.

We gather, transmit and store consumer persora#iytifiable information. This information may inde social security numbers, credit
scores, credit card information, and financial Aedlth information, some of which is held and mamklgy our third party vendors. As a result,
we are subject to certain contractual terms, abagdFederal, state and foreign laws and regulsititsigned to protect personally identifiable
information. Despite our implementation of securitgasures and controls, our computer systems maydoeptible to electronic or physical
computer break-ins, viruses and other disruptionksscurity breaches. In the past, we have expaiksecurity incidents involving access to
our user databases. Although, to our knowledgeemsitive financial or personal information hasrbeempromised in the past, any future
security incidents could result in the compromiteuzh data and subject us to liability. In additithe increased use of mobile devices by our
employees increases the risk of unintentional dgale of personally identifiable information. Angrpeived or actual unauthorized disclosure
of personally identifiable information, whetherdhgh breach of our network by an unauthorized partyployee theft, misuse, or error could
harm our reputation, impair our ability to attraetbsite visitors and to attract and retain oumtfieor subject us to claims or litigation arising
from damages suffered by consumers, and thereloy bar business and operating results. In additiencould incur significant costs in
complying with the multitude of state, Federal d&mbign laws regarding personally identifiable imfation.
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Acquisitions and investments could complicate op@as, or could result in dilution and other harmfuconsequences that may adversely
impact our business and results of operations.

Acquisitions have historically been an importamneént of our overall corporate strategy and usmpital. Any possible future
acquisitions could be material to our financial dition and results of operations. We may evaluateenter into discussions regarding a wide
array of potential strategic transactions. The pssmf integrating an acquired company, businetscbnology has created, and will continu
create, unforeseen operating difficulties and egfiares. The areas where we face risks include:

» diversion of management time and focus from opegatiur business to acquisition integration chaken
» failure to successfully further develop the acqiiibesiness or technolog
» implementation or remediation of controls, procesuand policies at the acquired comps

» integration of the acquired company’s accountingnan resource, and other administrative systentscaardination of product,
engineering and sales and marketing functi

» transition of operations, users and customers ountexisting platforms

» failure to obtain required approvals on a timelgibaif at all, from governmental authorities, onditions placed upon approval,
under competition and antitrust laws which couldpag other things, delay or prevent us from conipded transaction, or
otherwise restrict our ability to realize the exelcfinancial or strategic goals of an acquisiti

* in the case of foreign acquisitions, the need tegrate operations across different cultures anguages and to address the
particular economic, currency, political and regoig risks associated with specific countri

» cultural challenges associated with integrating legg®es from the acquired company into our orgaiiraeind retention of
employees from the businesses we acq

» liability for activities of the acquired companyfbee the acquisition, including patent and traddniafringement claims, violations
of laws, commercial disputes, tax liabilities antdey known and unknown liabilities; a

» litigation or other claims in connection with theqaired company, including claims from terminatetbéoyees, customers, former
stockholders or other third partie

Our failure to address these risks or other problentountered in connection with our past or fubaguisitions and investments could
cause us to fail to realize the anticipated bemefitsuch acquisitions or investments, incur urgdied liabilities and harm our business
generally.

Future acquisitions could also result in dilutissiances of our equity securities, the incurrefickelot, contingent liabilities, amortizati
expenses, impairment of goodwill or restructurihgrges, any of which could harm our financial ctindior results. Also, the anticipated
benefit of many of our acquisitions may not malexéa

We rely on certain advertising agencies for the phase of various advertising and marketing serviegsbehalf of their clients. Such
agencies may have or develop high-risk credit piedi which may result in credit risk to us.

A portion of our client business is sourced throadkertising agencies and, in many cases, we aintith these agencies and not
directly with the underlying client. Contractingttvithese agencies subjects us to greater creklithdsm where we contract with clients directly.
In many cases, agencies are not required to paplass and until they are paid by the underlyingnt! In addition, many agencies are thinly
capitalized and have
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or may develop high-risk credit profiles. This dtetsk may vary depending on the nature of an agsmaggregated client base. If an agency
became insolvent, or if an underlying client did pay the agency, we may be required to write ofoaint receivables as bad debt. Any such
write-offs could have a materially negative effentour results of operations for the periods inchtthe write-offs occur.

We have a significant amount of debt, which may itrour ability to fund general corporate requireménand obtain additional
financing, limit our flexibility in responding to lusiness opportunities and competitive developmemtd increase our vulnerability to
adverse economic and industry conditions.

As of June 30, 2013, we had debt with a princigddibce of $90 million. As of June 30, 2013, we &lad outstanding notes to sellers
arising from numerous acquisitions in the totahpipal amount of $4.0 million. As a result of oldigns associated with our debt, we may no
have sufficient liquidity:

» torespond to business opportunities, competiteaeetbpments and adverse economic conditi
» to fund all of our costs if our revenue declinegosts increase; ar
» to repay the principal balance of our debt when

Our debt obligations may also impair our abilityotstain additional financing, if needed. Our indahtess is secured by substantially all
of our assets, leaving us with limited collate@l &dditional financing. Moreover, the terms of (debtedness restrict our ability to take
certain actions, including the incurrence of additil indebtedness, certain mergers and acquisitionsstments, asset sales, dividends and
stock repurchases. In addition, even if we are @ibtaise needed equity financing, we are requivagse a portion of the net proceeds of ce
types of equity financings to repay the outstandiat;ance of our term loan. A failure to pay intém@sindebtedness when due could result in &
variety of adverse consequences, including thelaat®n of our indebtedness. In such a situaiior,unlikely that we would be able to fulfill
our obligations under our credit facility or rephg accelerated indebtedness or otherwise coverasts.

Damage to our reputation could harm our businesgancial condition and results of operations.

Our business is dependent on attracting a largéoauof visitors to our and our third-party publistievebsites and providing leads,
clicks, calls and customers to our clients, whiepa&hds in part on our reputation within the induatrd with our clients. There are companies
within our industry that regularly engage in adtes that others may view as unlawful or inapprateri These activities by third parties, such a
spyware or deceptive promotions, may be seen aaateaistic of participants in our industry anceréfore, may harm the reputation of all
participants in our industry, including us.

Our ability to attract potential consumers andrebg, clients also depends in part on consumemviag competitive levels of customer
service, responsiveness and prices from our leechpsers. If lead purchasers do not provide cotmetevels of service to consumers, our
reputation and our ability to attract clients antisumers could be harmed.

In addition, from time to time, we may be subjecirtvestigations, inquiries or litigation by varstegulators, which may harm our
reputation regardless of the outcome of any suttbrad-or example, in 2012, we responded to a aiviéstigation conducted by the attorneys
general of a number of states into certain of oarketing and business practices resulting in usrigngf into an Assurance of Voluntary
Compliance agreement. Negative perceptions of osinless may result in additional regulation, erdarent actions by the government and
increased litigation, any of which may affect ousimess and result in lower revenue.

Any damage to our reputation, including from puitjiérom legal proceedings against us or compattiaswork within our industry,
governmental proceedings, consumer class actigatiibn, or the disclosure of information secubtgaches or private information misuse,
could adversely affect our business, financial o and results of operations.
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If we do not effectively manage any future growihr operating performance will suffer and we mayse clients.

We have historically experienced rapid growth im operations and operating locations. This groviditgd, and any future growth will
continue to place, significant demands on our memamt and our operational and financial infrastrectRapid growth, if any, may make it
more difficult for us to accomplish the following:

» successfully scale our technology to accommodé#édeger business and integrate acquisitic

* maintain our standing with key vendors, includingelnet search companies and t-party website publisher

* maintain our client service standards;

» develop and improve our operational, financial ar@hagement controls and maintain adequate repaystgms and proceduri

Our future success depends in part on the effigierformance of our software and technology infredtire. As the numbers of websites
and Internet users increase, our technology infrestre may not be able to meet the increased dé&ntlmexpected constraints on our
technology infrastructure could lead to slower vilehiesponse times or system failures and adveseddgt the availability of websites and the
level of user responses received, which could téshe loss of clients or revenue or harm to lousiness and results of operations.

In addition, our personnel, systems, procedurescanttols may be inadequate to support our futperations if we return to growth. T
improvements required to manage growth may reaqusr® make significant expenditures, expand, taaith manage our employee base and
reallocate valuable management resources. If wéofaiffectively manage future growth, our opergtperformance will suffer, and we may
lose clients, key vendors and key personnel.

Interruption or failure of our information technolayy and communications systems could impair our &pito effectively deliver our
services, which could cause us to lose clients &adm our operating results.

Our delivery of marketing and media services depamdthe continuing operation of our technologyasfructure and systems. Any
damage to or failure of our systems could resuilhi@rruptions in our ability to deliver offeringgiickly and accurately or process visitors’
responses emanating from our various web preseimteguptions in our service could reduce our naeand profits, and our reputation coulc
be damaged if people believe our systems are abteliOur systems and operations are vulneralarttage or interruption from earthquakes
terrorist attacks, floods, fires, power loss, breek hardware or software failures, telecommuinicest failures, computer viruses or other
attempts to harm our systems, and similar evehtge lor third-party data centers that we utilizerev® experience a major power outage, we
would have to rely on back-up generators. Thesk-bpmenerators may not operate properly througtar power outage and their fuel
supply could also be inadequate during a major p@utage or disruptive event. Furthermore, we docoarently have backup generators at
our Foster City, California headquarters. Informatsystems such as ours may be disrupted by eiafrpbiver outages, or by the fluctuations
in power resulting from switches to and from bagkgenerators. This could give rise to obligatitmeertain of our clients which could have
adverse effect on our results for the period oktimwhich any disruption of utility services to ascurs.

Our primary data center is at a third-party co-tmsacenter in San Francisco, California. All oétbritical components of the system are
redundant and we have a backup data center in kgas/ Nevada. We have implemented these backwgnsysind redundancies to minimize
the risk associated with earthquakes, fire, powass,ltelecommunications failure, and other eveeysid our control.

Any unscheduled interruption in our service wowddult in an immediate loss of revenue. If we exgreré frequent or persistent system
failures, the attractiveness of our technologias$ services to clients and website publishers cbaldermanently harmed. The steps we have
taken to increase the reliability and redundancy of
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our systems are expensive, reduce our operatingimand may not be successful in reducing the faqy or duration of unscheduled
interruptions.

We rely on call centers, Internet and data centeopiders, and other third parties for key aspecfstioe process of providing services to
our clients, and any failure or interruption in theservices and products provided by these third jgagrtould harm our business.

We rely on internal and third party call centersvadl as third-party vendors, including data cemted Internet providers.
Notwithstanding disaster recovery and businessmaity plans and precautions instituted to protaat clients and us from events that ca
interrupt delivery of services, there is no guagarthat such interruptions would not result in@qrged interruption in our ability to provide
services to our clients. Any temporary or permartetruption in the services provided by our cahters or third party providers could
significantly harm our business.

In addition, any financial or other difficulties othird-party providers face may have negative@f@n our business, the nature and
extent of which we cannot predict. We exercis&litbntrol over our thirgearty vendors, which increases our vulnerabilitpitoblems with th
services they provide. We license technology atated databases from third parties to facilitatalgsis and storage of data and delivery of
offerings. We have experienced interruptions ardydein service and availability for data centéandwidth and other technologies in the |
Any errors, failures, interruptions or delays exg@eced in connection with these thipasty technologies and services could adversegcatiui
business and could expose us to liabilities taltparties.

We may need additional capital in the future to ni@air financial obligations and to pursue our buséss objectives. Additional capital
may not be available or may not be available ondeable terms and our business and financial conditi could therefore be adversely
affected.

While we anticipate that our existing cash and eaghivalents, together with availability under coedit facility and cash from
operations, will be sufficient to fund our operatidfor at least the next 12 months, we may needise additional capital to fund operations in
the future or to finance acquisitions. If we seekaise additional capital in order to meet variobgectives, including developing future
technologies and services, increasing working egptquiring businesses and responding to comygefitessures, capital may not be avail
on favorable terms or may not be available ataladdition, pursuant to the terms of our crediflfgy, we are required to use a portion of the
net proceeds of certain equity financings to repp@youtstanding balance of our term loan. Lackufficient capital resources could
significantly limit our ability to take advantagélousiness and strategic opportunities. Any add#laapital raised through the sale of equity o
debt securities with an equity component wouldtdilour stock ownership. If adequate additional fuack not available, we may be require
delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate mateaatspof our business strategy, including potemtittlitional acquisitions or development of n
technologies.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may dtuate significantly from quarter to quarter due weasonal fluctuations in advertisir
spending.

In addition to other factors that cause our opegatésults to fluctuate, results are also subgestgnificant seasonal fluctuation. In
particular, our quarters ending December 31 (ocosé fiscal quarter) are typically characterizedsbgsonal weakness. In our second fiscal
quarters, there is generally lower availabilityedd supply from some forms of media during thedagl period on a cost effective basis and
some of our clients have lower budgets. In our gusrending March 31 (our third fiscal quarter)s tihend generally reverses with better lead
availability and often new budgets at the beginmhthe year for our clients with fiscal years emgiDecember 31.

If the market for online marketing services fail® ttontinue to develop, our success may be limitati our revenue may decrease.

The online marketing services market is relativedy and rapidly evolving, and it uses different mgaments than traditional media to
gauge its effectiveness. Some of our current cerd@l clients have
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little or no experience using the Internet for atiseng and marketing purposes and have allocatddlimnited portions of their advertising and
marketing budgets to the Internet. The adoptioonbihe marketing, particularly by those entitieatthave historically relied upon traditional
media for advertising, requires the acceptancergfvaway of conducting business, exchanging infeionaand evaluating new advertising and
marketing technologies and services. In particularare dependent on our clients’ adoption of neatrigs to measure the success of online
marketing campaigns. We may also experience resistiiom traditional advertising agencies who mayabvising our clients. We cannot
assure you that the market for online marketingises will continue to grow. If the market for améi marketing services fails to continue to
develop or develops more slowly than we anticipdie,success of our business may be limited, andesenue may decrease.

If we do not adequately protect our intellectualqperty rights, our competitive position and busisesay suffer.

Our ability to compete effectively depends upon puaprietary systems and technology. We rely oemiatrade secret, trademark and
copyright law, confidentiality agreements and téchAihmeasures to protect our proprietary rights. &fteer into confidentiality agreements with
our employees, consultants, independent contra@dussors, client vendors and publishers. Theseemgents may not effectively prevent
unauthorized disclosure of confidential informatmrunauthorized parties from copying aspects ofseuvices or obtaining and using our
proprietary information. Further, these agreemerdg not provide an adequate remedy in the evembafithorized disclosures or uses, and w
cannot assure you that our rights under such agnetsmwill be enforceable. Effective patent, tragerst, copyright and trademark protection
may not be available in all countries where we ently operate or in which we may operate in tharit Some of our systems and technola
are not covered by any copyright, patent or paeptication. We cannot guarantee that: (i) ourliettual property rights will provide
competitive advantages to us; (ii) our ability &sert our intellectual property rights against ptéd competitors or to settle current or future
disputes will be effective; (iii) our intellectuptoperty rights will be enforced in jurisdictionsd@re competition may be intense or where legal
protection may be weak; (iv) any of the patentléraark, copyright, trade secret or other intellakcproperty rights that we presently emplo
our business will not lapse or be invalidated, wingented, challenged, or abandoned; (v) competitidrsot design around our protected
systems and technology; or (vi) that we will natddhe ability to assert our intellectual propeigits against others.

We have from time to time become aware of thirdipaiwho we believe may have infringed our inteliat property rights. Such
infringement or infringement of which we are not gevare could reduce our competitive advantagesanse us to lose clients, third-party
website publishers or could otherwise harm ourrmss. Policing unauthorized use of our proprietigyts can be difficult and costly.
Litigation, while it may be necessary to enforcgmotect our intellectual property rights, coulduk in substantial costs and diversion of
resources and management attention and could a&tivaffect our business, even if we are successfithe merits. In addition, others may
independently discover trade secrets and propyi@téormation, and in such cases we could not asssrtrade secret rights against such
parties.

Third parties may sue us for intellectual properityfringement, which, even if unsuccessful, couldqeire us to expend significant costs
to defend or settle.

We cannot be certain that our internally developedcquired systems and technologies do not ardaatiinfringe the intellectual
property rights of others. In addition, we licememtent, software and other intellectual propeigits from third parties and may be subject to
claims of infringement if such parties do not passthe necessary intellectual property rights ¢égafoducts they license to us.

In addition, we have in the past, and may in thiar2) be subject to legal proceedings and claimsvite have infringed the patents or
other intellectual property rights of third partidhiese claims sometimes involve patent holdingpamies or other adverse patent owners whe
have no relevant product revenue and against whorwen intellectual property rights, if any, magthfore provide little or no deterrence.
example, in December 2012, Internet Patents Cotiparé'IPC”) filed a patent infringement lawsuit@gst us in the
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Northern District of California alleging that sorakour websites infringe a patent held by IPC. IP@ nol-practicing entity that relies on
asserting its patents as its primary source ofmeseln addition, third parties have asserted aag imthe future assert intellectual property
infringement claims against our clients, and weehagreed in certain circumstances to indemnifydefdnd against such claims. Any
intellectual propertyrelated infringement claims, whether or not meiitos and regardless of the outcome of the litigatauld result in cost
litigation and could divert management resourcekatention. Should we be found liable for infringent, we may be required to enter into
licensing agreements, if available on acceptaliiader at all, pay substantial damages, or limitwotail our systems and technologies.
Moreover, we may need to redesign some of our mystnd technologies to avoid future infringemeatility. Any of the foregoing could
prevent us from competing effectively and increaisecosts.

Additionally, the laws relating to use of tradensda the Internet are unsettled, particularly ay #pply to search engine functionality.
For example, other Internet marketing and searatpemies have been sued for trademark infringemehbther intellectual property-related
claims for displaying ads or search results inoesp to user queries that include trademarked térhesoutcomes of these lawsuits have
differed from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. We mdge subject to trademark infringement, unfair corntioet, misappropriation or other
intellectual property-related claims which coulddwstly to defend and result in substantial damagesgherwise limit or curtail our activities,
and therefore adversely affect our business ompgas.

Limitations on our ability to collect and use datierived from user activities could significantlyrdinish the value of our services and
have an adverse effect on our ability to generad¢@enue.

When a user visits our websites, we use technapgieluding “cookies,” to collect information suak the user’s IP address and the
user’s past responses to our offerings. We accabarsalyze this information in order to determine ¢ffectiveness of a marketing campaign
and to determine how to modify the campaign. Theafscookies is the subject of litigation, regutgtecrutiny and industry self-regulatory
activities, including the discussion of “do-noteké technologies and guidelines. The European Ufiioa “EU”) recently passed new data l¢
relating to the collection and misuse of personfdrimation, including restrictions on the use dehnet tracking tools, or cookies. The EU
regulations or any similar regulations that arepteld in the U.S. could restrict the manner in whighuse cookies and require us to incur
additional costs or change our business practagspf which could harm our business.

Additionally, users are able to block or deletekies from their browser. Periodically, certain oir @lients and publishers seek to
prohibit or limit our collection or use of this datinterruptions, failures or defects in our daifiection systems, as well as privacy concerns
regarding the collection of user data, could ailsit lour ability to analyze data from our clientearketing campaigns. This risk is heightened
when we deliver marketing services to clients mfihancial services client vertical. If our accésslata is limited in the future, we may be
unable to provide effective technologies and sewvio clients and we may lose clients and revenue.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective interdaontrols, our ability to produce accurate finargi statements on a timely basis could
impaired, which would adversely affect our ability operate our business.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our finahoégorting and the preparation of financial stagets for external purposes in accordance witt
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Vdg i the future discover areas of our internahficial and accounting controls and
procedures that need improvement. Our internalrobater financial reporting will not prevent ortdet all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operatedpoovide only reasonable, not absolute, assurthiat¢he control system’s objectives will
be met. All control system have inherent limitapand, accordingly, no evaluation of controls pesvide absolute assurance that
misstatements due to error or fraud will not oamuthat all control issues and instances of fraibbe detected. If we are unable to maintain
proper and effective internal controls, we may lmtble to produce accurate financial statemengstonely basis, which could adversely
affect our ability to operate our business and @¢oesult in regulatory action.
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As a creator and a distributor of Internet contentie face potential liability and expenses for legddims based on the nature and conte
of the materials that we create or distribute. lfevare required to pay damages or expenses in cotineavith these legal claims, our
operating results and business may be harmed.

We display original content and third-party contentour websites and in our marketing messages. r&sult, we face potential liability
based on a variety of theories, including defanmati®gligence, deceptive advertising (including &é&pent of Education regulations regarc
misrepresentation in education marketing), copyragitrademark infringement. We are also exposeikkothat content provided by third
parties is inaccurate or misleading, and for mat@osted to our websites by users and other gfartles. These claims, whether brought in the
United States or abroad, could divert managemard &nd attention away from our business and rasslgnificant costs to investigate and
defend, regardless of the merit of these claimaduition, if we become subject to these typedaifits and are not successful in our defense,
we may be forced to pay substantial damages.

We face additional risks in conducting businessiimernational markets.

We have entered into certain international margatsmay enter into additional international markethe future. We have limited
experience in marketing, selling and supportingsmrvices outside of the United States, and we maape successful in introducing or
marketing our services abroad. There are riskschatlenges inherent in conducting business inatiional markets, such as:

« adapting our technologies and services to foreligmts’ preferences and custon

» successfully navigating foreign laws and regulatjancluding marketing, privacy regulations, empt@nt and labor regulation

» changes in foreign political and economic condii

» tariffs and other trade barriers, fluctuationsumrency exchange rates and potentially adversedagequence:

» language barriers or cultural differenc

» reduced or limited protection for intellectual pesty rights in foreign jurisdictions

« difficulties and costs in staffing, managing or meeing foreign operation

» education of potential clients who may not be faamnilith online marketing

« challenges in collecting accounts receivables;

» successfully interpreting and complying with th&SUFForeign Corrupt Practices Act and similar woilttivanti-bribery laws,
particularly when operating in countries with vamyidegrees of governmental corrupti

If we are unable to successfully expand and markeservices abroad, our business and future grovathbe harmed, and we may incur
costs that may not lead to future revenue.

We recognized an impairment in the carrying valuegoodwill. Additional such charges in the futureoald negatively affect our
operating results and financial condition.

We continue to have a substantial amount of god@dnd purchased intangible assets on our balarest sls a result of historical
acquisitions. The carrying value of goodwill regnets the fair value of an acquired business ingxoéidentifiable assets and liabilities as of
the acquisition date. The carrying value of inthfgiassets with identifiable useful lives represehe fair value of relationships, content,
domain names, acquired technology, among otherd, the acquisition date, and are amortized basetti@ir economic lives. Goodwill
expected to contribute indefinitely to our caswi#as not amortized, but must be evaluated for impent at least annually. If the carrying
value exceeds current fair value as determineddbase¢he discounted future cash
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flows of the related business, the goodwill or igfible asset is considered impaired and is redtaéalr value via a non-cash charge to
earnings. Events and conditions that could reauthpairment include adverse changes in the regylanvironment, a reduced market
capitalization or other factors leading to reductio expected long-term growth or profitability.

Goodwill impairment analysis and measurement isoagss that requires significant judgment. Ourlsfmice and any estimated control
premium are factors affecting the assessment diih&alue of our underlying reporting units farrposes of performing any goodwiill
impairment assessment. For example, our public eadpitalization sustained a decline after DecerBhe2012 to a value below the net b
carrying value of our equity, triggering the needd goodwill impairment analysis. As a result af goodwill impairment analysis, we
recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $92.4ionillin the second quarter of fiscal year 2013.

It is possible that another material change coutmipin the future. We will continue to conduct iamment analyses of our goodwill on
an annual basis, unless indicators of possible inmgat arise that would cause a triggering evamd,\ae would be required to take additional
impairment charges in the future if any recovergbédssessments reflect estimated fair valuesatetess than our recorded values. Further
impairment charges with respect to our goodwilllddwave a material adverse effect on our resultgefations and financial condition.

We could lose clients if we fail to detect clickrttugh or other fraud on advertisements in a manntkiat is acceptable to our clients.

We are exposed to the risk of fraudulent clickaatfons on our websites or our third-party publishevebsites, which could lead the
clients to become dissatisfied with our campaignsl in turn, lead to loss of clients and relateeéneie. Click-through fraud occurs when an
individual clicks on an ad displayed on a websitamautomated system is used to create such dlitkghe intent of generating the revenue
share payment to the publisher rather than to #i@anderlying content. Action fraud occurs whefimenforms are completed with false or
fictitious information in an effort to increase alisher’'s compensable actions. From time to twehave experienced fraudulent clicks or
actions. We do not charge our clients for fraudutdicks or actions when they are detected, ant siacidulent activities could negatively
affect our profitability or harm our reputation.fthudulent clicks or actions are not detected attiected clients may experience a reduced
return on their investment in our marketing progsamhich could lead the clients to become dissatiskith our campaigns, and in turn, lead
to loss of clients and the related revenue. Addglty, we have, from time to time, had to, andha future may have to, terminate relationship:
with publishers who we believed to have engagddhimd. Termination of such relationships entailess of revenue associated with the
legitimate actions or clicks generated by suchigtbls.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price has been volatile, and you may betable to resell shares of our common stock aabove the price you paid.

The trading price of our common stock has beenti¥®lsince our initial public offering and may conte to be subject to wide
fluctuations in response to various factors, somehich are beyond our control. These factors idelthose discussed in this “Risk Factors”
section of this periodic report and others such as:

» our ability to return to growth and to manage amgtsgrowth effectively

» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatioasdyities analyst:

* announcements about our revenue, earnings or filaeicial results that are not in line with analggpectations
» our ability to find, develop or retain high qualigrgeted media on a cost effective be

« relatively low trading volume in our stock creabelserent volatility regardless of factors relatedbtir business performance or
prospects
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» the sale of, or indication of the intent to selibstantial amounts of our common stock by our damsg officers or substantial
shareholders

* announcements by us or our competitors of new aesysignificant contracts, commercial relationshgzquisitions or capital
commitments

* our commencement of, or involvement in, litigatiamgd
* negative publicity about us, our industry, our migeor our clienf’ industries.

In recent years, the stock market in general, hadnarket for technology and Internet-based conggaini particular, has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated or disproportionate to the ojpgraerformance of those companies.
Broad market and industry factors may seriouslgafthe market price of our common stock, regasdidour actual operating performance
addition, in the past, following periods of volailin the overall market and the market price giaaticular company’s securities, securities
class action litigation has often been institutgdiast these companies. Such litigation, if ingtitlagainst us, could result in substantial costs
and a diversion of our management’s attention asdurces.

If securities or industry analysts do not publislkesearch or reports about our business, or if thegue an adverse opinion regarding our
stock, our stock price and trading volume could tiee.

The trading market for our common stock is influeth@y the research and reports that industry arrgexs analysts publish about us,
business or the industries or businesses of cemtsli If any of the analysts issue an adverse apirggarding our stock or if our actual results
do not meet analyst estimates, our stock price avitkeély decline. If one or more of these analystases coverage of our company or fails to
publish reports on us regularly, we could losebiigy in the financial markets, which in turn cautause our stock price or trading volume to
decline.

Our directors and executive officers and their resgive affiliates have substantial control over and could delay or prevent a change in
corporate control.

As of June 30, 2013, our directors and executifiees, together with their affiliates, beneficiabwned approximately 29% of our
outstanding common stock. As a result, these stidkins, acting together, have substantial contret the outcome of matters submitted to
stockholders for approval, including the electidmlivectors and any merger, consolidation or sélalomr substantially all of our assets. In
addition, these stockholders, acting together, Isgy@ficant influence over the management andraffaf our company. Accordingly, this
concentration of ownership may have the effect of:

» delaying, deferring or preventing a change in caafgcontrol.
» impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othesiness combination involving us;
« discouraging a potential acquirer from making altgroffer or otherwise attempting to obtain contbls.

Provisions in our charter documents under Delawdesv and in contractual obligations could discouragetakeover that stockholders
may consider favorable and may lead to entrenchmehtmanagement.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamatind bylaws contain provisions that could haeedtfiect of delaying or preventing
changes in control or changes in our managemehouiithe consent of our board of directors. Thesgigions include:

» aclassified board of directors with thrgear staggered terms, which may delay the abifigtackholders to change the member
of a majority of our board of director
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* no cumulative voting in the election of directasich limits the ability of minority stockholders tlect director candidate

» the exclusive right of our board of directors teatla director to fill a vacancy created by theaggion of the board of directors or
the resignation, death or removal of a directoricliprevents stockholders from being able to fitancies on our board of
directors;

» the ability of our board of directors to determtndssue shares of preferred stock and to deterthimgrice and other terms of thc
shares, including preferences and voting righttauit stockholder approval, which could be usesigaificantly dilute the
ownership of a hostile acquire

* a prohibition on stockholder action by written cent which forces stockholder action to be takemnaannual or special meeting of
our stockholders

» the requirement that a special meeting of stocldrslchay be called only by the chairman of the bo&rirectors, the chief
executive officer or the board of directors, whinhy delay the ability of our stockholders to focomsideration of a proposal or to
take action, including the removal of directorsgl.

» advance notice procedures that stockholders musplgowith in order to nominate candidates to ouaroloof directors or to propa
matters to be acted upon at a stockholders’ meetihigth may discourage or deter a potential acqdifmom conducting a
solicitation of proxies to elect the acqu’s own slate of directors or otherwise attemptingkitain control of us

We are also subject to certain anti-takeover piongsunder Delaware law. Under Delaware law, a@@ion may not, in general,
engage in a business combination with any holdé5é6 or more of its capital stock unless the holdes held the stock for three years or,
among other things, the board of directors hasamul the transaction.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on aaommon stock and, consequently, your ability to ale a return on your investment
will depend on appreciation in the price of our canon stock.

We currently have not and do not intend to deddaue: pay dividends on our common stock for in ther herm. We currently intend to
invest our future earnings, if any, to fund ourwtio. Additionally, the terms of our credit facilitgstrict our ability to pay dividends. Therefc
you are not likely to receive any dividends on yoommon stock in the near ter

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices are located inaslked facility in Foster City, California, consigfiof approximately 63,998 square feet of
office space under a lease that expires in Octdd&8 with the option to extend the lease term lptlzar two years. This facility accommode
our principal engineering, sales, marketing, openat finance and administrative activities. Weodsase additional facilities to accommodate
sales, marketing, and operations throughout théedr$tates. Outside of the United States, we abssel facilities to accommodate engineering
sales, marketing, and operations in Brazil andadndi

We may add new facilities and expand our existawilities as we add employees and expand our ngr&etl we believe that suitable
additional or substitute space will be availabl@i@sded to accommodate any such expansion of euatins.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In November 2012, we entered into a confidentidfl&aent and Release Agreement (“SRA”) with Lendireg, LLC (“Lending Tree"),
under which we and our wholly owned subsidiaries lbending Tree mutually released the claims agaash other and we and our wholly
owned subsidiaries licensed two of Lending Treatepts. Lending Tree and we filed a StipulatioDsmissal Without Prejudice with the
United States District Court, Western Division adiih Carolina, Charlotte Division on November 2612. The court issued an Order of
Dismissal Without Prejudice on January 3, 2013.

In December 2012, Internet Patents CorporationG”)Riled a patent infringement lawsuit againstimshe United States District Court
for the Northern District of California, seekingualgment that we had infringed a patent held by. N received the related summons and
complaint from IPC in March 2013. On May 3, 201% filed a Motion to Dismiss with the Court, whichdcheduled to be heard in October
2013. While we deny IPC’s claims, there can bessugance that we will prevail in this matter, angt adverse ruling may have a significant
impact on our business and operating results. diitiad, regardless of the outcome of the matterywes incur significant legal fees defending
the action until it is resolved. There is a reabdmpossibility that a loss may be incurred, howeaa estimate of the loss or potential range of
loss, if any, associated with the litigation canbetmade as of the filing date of this annual repor

In August 2011, the attorneys general of a numbstates sent a letter of inquiry regarding marigeservices that we provide to for-
profit schools. The marketing services at issuategio our websites, such as www.gibill.com, wwmgstudyguide.com, and others, whose
intended audience comprises service members aathnstof the United States military. The attorrgsseral expressed concerns that the
websites could mislead consumers into believingtthawebsites are affiliated with the governmarthat the featured schools are the only
ones that accept scholastic subsidies (such asghrte Gl Bill) from service members and veteramd may thus violate the consumer
protection laws of the respective States. Subselyéime attorneys general initiated a civil inugative demand, requesting information about
our marketing, pricing structure, business relaiops, and financial data with respect to the fmfipschools that appear on www.gibill.com
and similar websites. In June 2012, we entereddntdssurance of Voluntary Compliance agreemeet‘@greement”) with the attorneys
general. Under the Agreement, we donated the URBI[Zom” to the United States Department of Vetaes Affairs. We also agreed to pay a
total of $2.5 million to the settling states toméiurse them for the cost of the investigation agglotiating process, and further agreed to
provide expanded disclosures on other militaryrdad and education-related websites. We believareén material compliance with the
terms of the Agreement as of June 30, 2013.

From time to time, we may become involved in otlegal proceedings and claims arising in the ordimaurse of our business.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sktwmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Our common stock has been traded on the NASDAQ dbiBblect Market under the symbol “QNST” since initial public offering on
February 11, 2010. Prior to this time, there wapulolic market for our common stock. The followitadple shows the high and low sale prices
per share of our common stock as reported on th8Q Global Select Market for the periods indicated

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 High Low
First quarter ended September 30, 2011 $13.8( $10.12
Second quarter ended December 31, - $12.6¢ $ 8.44
Third quarter ended March 31, 20 $11.3¢ $ 8.6C
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2I $11.9( $ 7.8C

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 High Low
First quarter ended September 30, 2012 $10.1¢ $ 8.0¢
Second quarter ended December 31, - $ 8.81 $ 5.6¢
Third quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 7.0¢ $ 5.41
Fourth quarter ended June 30, 2I $ 8.74 $ 5.7¢

On August 15, 2013, the closing price as reportethe NASDAQ Global Select Market of our commorcktwas $8.73 per share and
we had approximately 122 stockholders of recordusfcommon stock.

We have never declared or paid, and do not anteigeclaring or paying, any dividends on our comstoick. Any future determination
as to the declaration and payment of dividendsnyf, will be at the discretion of our board of digrs and will depend on then existing
conditions, including our financial condition, opéng results, contractual restrictions, capitguieements, business prospects and other fe
our board of directors may deem relevant. Our trfedility also restricts our ability to pay dividds.

For equity compensation plan information refertear 12 in Part IIl of this Annual Report on FormHKO
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph shall not be deefseticiting material” or to be “filed” with the Smirities and Exchange Commission
for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgbhahct of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Adthmrwise subject to the liabilities unc
that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incatpad by reference into any filing of QuinStreat;.lunder the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Exchange Act.

The following performance graph shows a comparfsmm February 11, 2010 (the date our common stockmenced trading on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market) through June 30, 261.8umulative total return for our common stocle tRASDAQ Composite Index ar
the RDG Internet Composite Index. Such returndased on historical results and are not intendetiggest future performance. Data for the
NASDAQ Composite Index and the RDG Internet Comigoisidex assume reinvestment of divider

COMPARISON OF 40 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among QuinStreet, Inc., the NASDAQ Composite Index, and the RDG Internet Composite Index
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100 invested an 2111700 steckor 1131010 index, induding remvestment of dividends
Fizcal year ending June 30.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
There were no unregistered sales of our equityrgasuduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
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Iltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dsttauld be read together with “Management’s Disarsand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operatioresid with the consolidated financial statementsagwmpanying notes appearing elsewhere in thigtre
The selected consolidated financial data in thiti@e is not intended to replace our consolidatedricial statements and the accompanying
notes. The results of acquired businesses haveiheeded in our consolidated financial statemesiise their respective dates of acquisition.

Our historical results are not necessarily indi@bf our future results and any interim resultsraot necessarily indicative of the results for a
full fiscal year.

We derived the consolidated statements of operadatea for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20112,2(hd 2011 and the consolidated

balance sheets data as of June 30, 2013 and 2@h2fir audited consolidated financial statemengeapng elsewhere in this report. The
consolidated statements of operations data fofigshal year ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 and timotidated balance sheets data as of
June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are derived from wdited consolidated financial statements, whichratencluded in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share date

Consolidated Statements of Operations Datz
Net revenus $305,10: $370,46! $403,02: $334,83! $260,52°
Cost of revenu(d) 251,59: 283,46( 291,99: 240,73 181,59:
Gross profit 53,51( 87,00: 111,03( 94,10t 78,93
Operating expense(l)

Product developmel 19,04¢ 21,05: 24,16 19,72¢ 14,88°

Sales and marketir 14,70¢ 14,07 17,38: 16,69¢ 16,15

General and administrati\ 16,22¢ 23,37¢ 20,39¢ 18,46 13,17:

Imapirment of goodwil 92,35( — — — —
Total operating expens 142,32¢ 58,50( 61,94: 54,88¢ 44,21
Operating (loss) incom (88,819 28,50: 49,08¢ 39,217 34,72:
Interest incomi 11t 134 16¢ 97 24t
Interest expens (5,200) (4,467) (4,217) (3,977) (3,549
Other (expense) income, r (69) (42) 56 1,52¢ (239)
Interest and other expense, (5,159 (4,370 (3,98¢) (2,357) (3,539

(Loss) income before income tax (93,979 24,13: 45,10: 36,86( 31,18¢
Benefit from (provision) for taxe 26,60 (11,137 (17,887) (16,27€) (13,909
Net (loss) incom $(67,37) $ 13,00: $ 27,21« $ 20,58¢ $ 17,27:

Less: 8% no-cumulative dividends on convertible preferred st $ — $ — S — $ (2,018 $ (3,279

Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to conviertiseferred stoc $ — $ — $ — $ (5,78) $ (8,599
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhal— Basic $(67,377) $ 13,00: $ 27,21 $ 12,78: $ 5,39¢

Undistributed earnings -allocated to common stor $ — $ — $ — $  4ac¢ $  39¢
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhe— Diluted $(67,37) $ 13,00: $ 27,21« $ 13,20: $ 5,79¢
Net (loss) income per share attributable to comstonkholders(?)

Basic $ (A5) $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.5 $ 041

Diluted $ (15) $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5t $ 0.4¢€ $ 0.3¢
Weighted average shares used in computing nej {lessme per share attributable to common stoclérst

Basic 42,81t 45,84t 46,22 25,61¢ 13,29:

Diluted 42,81t 46,85¢ 49,13( 28,42¢ 14,97:
(@) Cost of revenue and operating expenses includé-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenur $3,93( $4,29: $4,50¢ $3,111 $1,91¢

Product developmel 2,76 2,57(C 2,70¢ 2,17¢ 66¢

Sales and marketir 3,26¢ 3,09¢ 3,747 3,467 1,761

General and administrati\ 2,057 3,037 2,992 4,621 1,827
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(2 see Note 3, Net (Loss) Income Attributable to @mn Stockholders and Net (Loss) Income per Shareyit consolidated financial statements for ananagiion of the method used to
calculate basic and diluted net (loss) income paresof common stoc

June 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheets Dati

Cash and cash equivalel $ 90,117 $ 68,53: $132,29( $155,77( $ 25,18:
Working capital 111,04( 103,22: 162,36: 155,16« 16,42¢
Total asset 429,54° 507,16( 524,92: 434,63( 212,87¢
Total liabilities 150,65: 168,80: 169,53! 144,60t 96,28¢
Total debt 92,67 107,59¢ 106,04¢ 93,60¢ 57,24(
Total stockholder equity 278,89! 338,35 355,38¢ 290,02: 73,18¢

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Dat

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 51,91¢ $ 47,72 $ 78,17: $ 38,50¢ $ 32,57(
Depreciation and amortizatic 32,32¢ 31,15( 27,27: 18,79: 15,97¢
Capital expenditure 1,341 2,26¢ 5,36 2,71(C 1,347

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA() $ 47,87: $ 72,64¢ $ 90,31: $ 71,37¢ $ 56,87:

(@) we define adjusted EBITDA as net (loss) income bessefit from (provision for) taxes, depreciatioqpense, amortization expense, s-based compensation expense, interest and
other income (expense), net, and impairment of gilbdPlease see the “adjusted EBITDA” section wittManagement's Discussion and Analysis of Finah€londition and Results
of Operation” for more information

The following table presents a reconciliation ojusted EBITDA to net (loss) income calculated ie@cdance with U.S. generally accepted accountiingiples (GAAP), the most
comparable GAAP measure, for each of the periodisated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Net (loss) incom $(67,377) $13,00: $27,21¢ $20,58¢ $17,27¢
Interest and other (income) expense, 5,15¢ 4,37( 3,98¢ 2,357 3,563¢
(Benefit from) provision for taxe (26,607) 11,13: 17,887 16,27¢ 13,90¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 32,32t 31,15( 27,27: 18,79: 15,97¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 12,01¢ 12,99¢ 13,95( 13,37: 6,17:
Impairment of goodwil 92,35( — — — —
Adjusted EBITDA $47,87: $72,64¢ $90,31: $71,37¢ $56,87:
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion of ouarficial condition and results of operations in camgtion with the consolidated financ
statements and the notes thereto included elsevihéiné report. The following discussion contafosvard-looking statements that reflect our
plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual resultdadiffer materially from those discussed in tberard-looking statements. Factors that
could cause or contribute to these differenceaitelthose discussed below and elsewhere in thistrgparticularly in the sections titled
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemerdad “Risk Factors”.

Management Overview

QuinStreet is a leader in performance marketingnenWe have built a strong set of capabilitiestgage Internet visitors with targeted
media and to connect our marketing clients witlirthetential customers online. We focus on sendlignts in large, information-intensive
industry verticals where relevant, targeted medi @fferings help visitors make informed choic@sd the products that match their needs,
thus become qualified customer prospects for aant.

We deliver coseffective marketing results to our clients mostid¢gfly in the form of a qualified lead or inquiry, the form of a qualifie
click, or call. Leads, clicks or calls can then eert into a customer or sale for clients at a thid results in an acceptable marketing cost to
them. We are typically paid by clients when we dsliqualified leads, clicks, calls or customerslefined by our agreements with them.
Because we bear the costs of media, our prograresadeliver value to our clients and provide for edia yield, or generation of an acceptable
margin on our media costs, that provides a sourahfiial outcome for us. To deliver leads, clickdlsc and customers to our clients, generally
we:

. own or access targeted mec

* run advertisements or other forms of marketing mgss and programs in that media to create visgigpanses in the form most
typically of leads (visitor generated contact imfi@tion and requests), clicks (to further qualificator matching steps, or to online
client applications or offerings), or calls (to mwned and operated call centers or that of oentdior their agents

* match these leads, clicks, calls, or customerfigatofferings or brands that we believe can nwigtor interests or needs,
converting visitors into qualified leads, clicksjls, or customers for our clients; a

» optimize client matches and media yield such thatehieve desired results for clients and a soimath¢ial outcome for u:

Our primary financial objective has been and remaneating revenue growth from sustainable soustdayget levels of profitability.
Our primary financial objective is not to maximigeofits, but rather to achieve target levels offipability while investing in various growth
initiatives, as we continue to believe we are mdlarly stages of a large, long-term market.

Our Direct Marketing Services (“DMS”), business @anted for substantially all of our net revenudsical years 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Our DMS business derives its net revenue from éaesed through the delivery of qualified leadsskdj calls or customers and, to a lesser
extent, display advertisements, or impressionsoddjin a vertical focus, targeted media presenceantechnology platform, we are able to
deliver targeted, measurable marketing resultsitaients.

Our two largest client verticals within our DMS Iness are education and financial services. Oucathn client vertical represented
44%, 42% and 44% of net revenue in fiscal year82R012 and 2011. Our financial services clientigal represented 40%, 42% and 45% of
net revenue in fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011ei@DMS client verticals, consisting primarily aisiness-to-business technology, home
services and medical, represented 16%, 16% andof 1ft revenue in fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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In addition, we derived less than 1% of our neeraie in fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 from theigion of a hosted solution and
related services for clients in the direct sellimdustry, also referred to as our Direct Sellingv8®s (“DSS”) business.

We generated substantially all of our revenue fsaes to clients in the United States.

Trends Affecting our Business
Client Verticals

To date, we have generated the majority of ourmagdrom clients in our education and financialviess client verticals. We expect that
a majority of our revenue in fiscal year 2014 Wil generated from clients in these two client gal$i.

Our education client vertical has been significaaffected by the adoption of regulations affectiogprofit educational institutions over
the past several years. The regulations have affentd are expected to continue to affect our tslidnusinesses and marketing practices,
including an overall decrease in our clients’ exé&marketing expenditures. The effect of theselegipns or any future regulations may
continue to result in fluctuations in the volumelamix of our business with these clients.

Our financial services client vertical continuedonegatively affected due to reduced availabdfthigh quality media at acceptable
margins caused by changes in search engine algsihicquisition of media sources by competitorsinogtased competition for quality
media. These effects may continue to impact ouinless in the near future.

Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2013
We did not complete any acquisitions during fiseesdr 2013.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012

In February 2012, we acquired certain assets 6fX¢fis Enterprise from Enterprise Media Group.,.JacNew York-based online media
and marketing company in the business-to-busireetsblogy market, in exchange for $17.3 milliorcash, to broaden our registered user
database and brand name in the business-to-busands®logy market. In August 2011, we acquired%a@d the outstanding equity interests
of NarrowCast Group, LLC, or IT BusinessEdge, atkeky-based Internet media company in the busite$sisiness technology market, in
exchange for $24.0 million in cash, to broadenregistered user database and media access ingheebstto-business technology market.
During fiscal year 2012, in addition to certaineisf Ziff Davis Enterprise and all of the equiitierests of IT BusinessEdge, we acquired
eleven other online publishing businesses.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011

In November 2010, we acquired 100% of the outstamdhares of Car Insurance.com, Inc., or Carlngaraom, a Florida-based online
insurance business, and certain of its affiliatechpanies, in exchange for $49.7 million in cash jt®capacity to generate online visitors in
financial services market. In July 2010, we acqlitee website business Insurance.com from InsuremreGroup, Inc., an Ohio-based online
insurance business, in exchange for $33.0 millioceish and the issuance of a $2.6 million non-@stelbearing, unsecured promissory note, fc
its capacity to generate online visitors in thefinial services market. During fiscal year 201Jaddition to the acquisitions of
Carlnsurance.com and Insurance.com, we acquiredhE8 online publishing businesses.

33



Table of Contents

Development, Acquisition and Retention of Targeteedia

One of the primary challenges of our businessasi@ing or creating media that is high quality dacheted enough to attract prospects
for our clients at costs that work for our businesslel. In order to grow our business, we mustlide & develop or acquire and retain quality
targeted media on a cost-effective basis. Chamgssarch engine algorithms, our ability to developcquire and retain high quality targeted
media and increased competition on available mieala during some periods, limited and may conttodanit our ability to generate revenue.

Seasonality

Our results are subject to significant fluctuatama result of seasonality. In particular, our tgrarending December 31 (our second fi
quarter) are typically characterized by seasonalkwess. In our second fiscal quarters, there isl@wvailability of lead supply from some
forms of media during the holiday period on a @af&ctive basis and some of our clients have Idwelgets. In our quarters ending March 31
(our third fiscal quarter), this trend generallyeeses with better lead availability and often rimwlgets at the beginning of the year for our
clients with fiscal years ending December 31.

Regulations

Our revenue has fluctuated as a result of nemllgpted or amended regulations and the increagecement of existing regulations. C
business is affected directly because we operabsites and conduct telemarketing and email marggetind indirectly as clients in our
education and financial services client verticalgist their operations as a result of regulatogngfes that affect their industries.

One example of recent regulatory change that nfagtadur business is the TCPA, which the Federah@anications Commission
recently amended, among other things, impose herighlt consent and opt-out requirements that companmeucting telemarketing must
follow. Certain provisions of the regulations beeaeifective in July 2012, and additional regulasioaquiring prior express written consent
telemarketing calls to wireless numbers becomestfie in October 2013. We generate a significanbam of revenue from calls made by our
internal call centers as well as by third party cahters. Our efforts to comply with the new redigins may negatively affect media conver:
rates and, thus, our revenue or profitability.

In addition, our education client vertical has beigmificantly affected by the adoption of regutas affecting for-profit educational
institutions over the past several years, and adritpvel of legislative scrutiny is expected tatioue. Clients in our financial services vertical
have increasingly been affected by laws and reiguiaias a result of the adoption of new regulatiomder The Dodd—Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act and the incbaséorcement of new and pre-existing laws andlegiguns. The effect of these
regulations, or any future regulations, may corgitmresult in fluctuations in the volume and mioar business with these clients.

Basis of Presentation
General

We operate in two segments: DMS and DSS. See Nbt8dgment Information, to our consolidated finahstatements for further
discussion and financial information regarding mporting segments.

Net Revenue

DMS.Our DMS business generates revenue from fees ethirmayh the delivery of qualified leads, clickalls, customers and, to a
lesser extent, display advertisements, or imprassid/e deliver targeted and measurable resultsighra vertical focus that we classify into
following client verticals: education, financialrsges and “other” (which includes business-to-hass technology, home services and
medical).
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DSS. Our DSS business generated less than 1% of neniwevin fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011. We exp8& to continue to
represent an immaterial portion of our business.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of media cqsssonnel costs, amortization of intangible asskfgreciation expense and amortiza
of internal software development costs relatingetcenue-producing technologies. Media costs copsistarily of fees paid to website
publishers that are directly related to a revenereegating event and pay-per-click, or PPC, ad maeh from Internet search companies. We
pay these Internet search companies and websitisipeits on a revenue-share, a cost-per-lead, or G#4t-per-click, or CPC, and cost-per-
thousand-impressions, or CPM, basis. Personned audtide salaries, stock-based compensation egpbosuses and employee benefit costs
Personnel costs are primarily related to individuedsociated with maintaining our servers and weshsbur editorial staff, client management,
creative team, content, compliance group and maatiehasing analysts. Costs associated with softimatered in the development phase or
obtained for internal use are capitalized and amettin cost of revenue over the software’s estmatseful life. We anticipate that our cost of
revenue will increase more than our revenue imta term as we invest in opportunities we seberfinancial services client vertical.

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three caieg; product development, sales and marketingjgemeral and administrative. Our
operating expenses consist primarily of personasiscand, to a lesser extent, professional serféess rent and other costs. Personnel cos
each category of operating expenses generallydecalaries, stock-based compensation expensesdmmommissions and employee benefi
costs.

Product DevelopmenBroduct development expenses consist primarilyeesgnnel costs and professional services feesiasswaevith
the development and maintenance of our technoltajopms, development and launching of our webspesductbased quality assurance ¢
testing. In the current period of business chaksngve are constraining expenses generally toxtieatepracticable. However, we believe that
continued investment in technology is critical tmaing our strategic objectives and, as a residtexpect product development expenses to
increase in absolute dollars in the future.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses consist primarihefgnnel costs and, to a lesser extent, profedsienaces fees,
travel costs and advertising. In the current pedbldusiness challenges, we are constraining exgsegsnerally to the extent practicable.
However, we expect sales and marketing expendaesrease in absolute dollars as we hire additipeedonnel in sales and marketing to
support our offerings.

General and AdministrativeGeneral and administrative expenses consist pifintd personnel costs of our executive, finariegal,
corporate and business development, employee benefi compliance, technical support and other midimaitive personnel, as well as
accounting and legal professional services feasjrmurance. In the current period of businesslehgés, we are constraining expenses
generally to the extent practicable. However, weeek general and administrative expenses, incluidicrgased legal and accounting costs to
increase in absolute dollars in future periods axantinue to invest in corporate infrastructurd arpand our business internationally.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other income (expense), net, cor@istarily of interest expense, other income andeesg, net and interest income. Inte
expense is related to our credit facility, incluglithe related interest rate swap and promissomysrissued in connection with our acquisitions,
and includes imputed interest on non-interest hgambtes. Borrowings under our credit facility, #ggregate principal amount of outstanding
promissory notes and related interest expense @ociidase if we make additional acquisitions thiodgbt financing. Interest income
represents interest earned on our cash, cash éntvand marketable securities, which may increaskecrease depending on market interes
rates and the amounts invested.
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Other income (expense), net, includes foreign cuyexchange gains and losses and other non-apgitims.

Income Tax Benefit from (Provision for)

We are subject to tax in the United States as agetither tax jurisdictions or countries in which @amduct business. Earnings from our
limited non-U.S. activities are subject to localintry income tax and may be subject to U.S. inctamre

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our consolidatedestzent of operations for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Net revenue $305,10. 100.(%  $370,46¢ 100.% $403,02: 100.%
Cost of revenu® 251,59: 82.t 283,46t 76.5 291,99: 72.5
Gross profit 53,51( 17.t 87,00: 23.t 111,03( 27.t
Operating expense®

Product developmel 19,04¢ 6.2 21,05 5.7 24,16: 6.C

Sales and marketir 14,70¢ 4.€ 14,07 3.€ 17,38: 4.3

General and administrati 16,22¢ Bee 23,37t 6.3 20,39¢ 5.C

Impairment of goodwil 92,35( 30.8 — — — —
Operating (loss) incom (88,819 (29.) 28,50: 7.7 49,08¢ 12.2
Interest incom 11F 0.C 134 0.C 16¢€ 0.C
Interest expens (5,200 (2.7 (4,462 (1.2 (4,219 (2.0
Other (expense) income, r (69) (0.0 (42 (0.0 56 0.C
(Loss) income before income tax (93,979  (30.9) 24,13: 6.5 45,10: 11.2
Benefit from (provision for) taxe 26,60 8.7 (11,13) (3.0 (17,887 (4.9
Net (loss) incom $(67,37) (22.1)% $ 13,00: 3.5% $ 27,21« 6.6%

@ Cost of revenue and operating expenses includé&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu $3,93( 1.3% $4,29: 1.2% $4,50¢ 1.1%
Product developmel 2,76¢ 0.€ 2,57(C 0.7 2,70t 0.7
Sales and marketir 3,26¢ 1.1 3,09¢ 0.8 3,747 0.€
General and administrati 2,057 0.7 3,037 0.8 2,992 0.7
Net Revenue
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2013- 201: 2012- 2011
2013 2012 2011 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Net revenue $305,10: $370,46¢ $403,02: (18%) (8%)
Cost of revenu 251,59: 283,46¢ 291,99: (11%) (3%)
Gross profit $ 53,51( $ 87,00: $111,03( (38%) (22%)
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Net revenue decreased $65.4 million, or 18%, icefigear 2013 compared to fiscal year 2012. Owrfaial services client vertical
revenue decreased $35.4 million, or 23%, primatilg to reduced availability of quality publisherdigas a result of search engine algorithm
changes, acquisitions of media sources by compe#ted increased competition for quality media. €ducation client vertical revenue
decreased $19.6 million, or 13%, primarily as ailtesf our education clients’ lower budgets, laggélie to uncertainty surrounding regulations
affecting for-profit educational institutions arftetr operational adjustment to those regulatiomgka. Revenue from other client verticals
decreased $10.3 million, or 17%, primarily due ¢ar@ased client demand in our home services anddsssto-business technology client
verticals.

Net revenue decreased $32.6 million, or 8%, irefiyear 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. This pvasarily due to a decrease in
revenue from our financial services and educati@mmtverticals, which was partially offset by gribwin revenue in our other client verticals.
Our financial services client vertical revenue @ased $26.2 million, or 14%, due to lower volumessitting from reduced availability of
quality publisher media and, to a lesser degreecialick prices as compared to fiscal year 201iify in our financial services client vertic
was relatively stable throughout fiscal year 20Q8r education client vertical revenue decreasedd$2@lion, or 12%, as a result of our
education clients purchasing fewer inquiries duerteertainty surrounding new regulations affecfimgprofit educational institutions. Lower
inquiry volumes were marginally offset by higheices. Revenue from other client verticals incregi&ktl 1 million, or 31%, primarily due to
the acquisition of IT BusinessEdge and certaintagseZiff Davis Enterprise in the business-to-lmesis technology client vertical and, to a
lesser extent, higher lead volumes in our homeicses\client vertical.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased $31.9 million, or 11%isoal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 2012adriby decreased media costs of
$26.1 million due to lower lead and click volumdecreased personnel costs of $4.9 million and atbereases of $1.7 million, partially offset
by increased amortization of intangible assetsdepteciation of $1.2 million. The decreased persboasts were attributable to a reduction in
average headcount. Gross margin, which is therdiffee between net revenue and cost of revenup@s@ntage of net revenue was 18% in
fiscal year 2013 compared to 23% in fiscal yearZ@tiven primarily by an increase as a percemsadfrevenue in media cost, amortization
expense, personnel and other fixed costs on a lmvenue base.

Cost of revenue decreased $8.5 million, or 3%isicel year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011, driwedecreased media costs of $12.€
million due to lower click volumes and decreasetspenel costs of $2.0 million, partially offset ingreased amortization of acquisitioglatec
intangible assets of $4.1 million, professionalarr fees of $1.0 million and a one-time offlinenketing event expense of $0.8 million related
to an acquisition. The decreased personnel costs atiibutable to a reduction in average headcdsirdss margin, which is the difference
between net revenue and cost of revenue as a pegeenf net revenue was 23% in fiscal year 2012peoed to 28% in fiscal year 2011,
primarily due to a lower mix of traffic from ownexhd operated media, lower margins from publishemgiements and higher amortization
expenses, partially offset by decreased persomsts.c

Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2013- 201z 2012- 2011
2013 2012 2011 % Change % Change
(In thousands)

Product developmel $ 19,04¢ $21,05: $24,16: (10%) (13%)
Sales and marketir 14,70¢ 14,07: 17,38: 4% (19%)
General and administrati 16,22¢ 23,37t 20,39¢ (31%) 15%
Impairment of goodwil 92,35( — — 100(% 0%
Operating expense¢ $142,32! $58,50( $61,94: 14% (6%)
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Product Development Expenses

Product development expenses decreased $2.0 milidi0%, in fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscarny2012, primarily due to
decreased personnel costs of $1.5 million resuftioim a reduction in average headcount and othenedses in various product development
expenses.

Product development expenses decreased $3.1 milidk8%, in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscalry2011, primarily due to
decreased personnel costs of $1.7 million resuftimig a reduction in average headcount, increaapdatized software expenses of $0.6
million and decreased professional services of §lkon.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased $0.6 mitliof®o, in fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscalry2@l2, primarily due to increased
personnel costs of $0.8 million and increased stded compensation expense of $0.2 million phrtdfset by decreased advertising cost of
$0.2 million.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased $3.3 mdlidi®%, in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscary2011, primarily due to decreas
personnel costs of $2.3 million resulting from dexsed performance bonus expenses and decreadethased compensation expense of $0.7
million.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreasedriliidn, or 31%, in fiscal year 2013 compared techl year 2012. This was due to a
$2.5 million payment to the attorneys general oftiple states in connection with a settlement eab online marketing for education
companies in the prior year and additional deciésgal costs of $1.9 million related primarilyltiigation expense, decreased bad debt
expense of $1.4 million resulting from the insolegf an advertising agency of record of one ofdients in the prior year, and decreased
stock-based compensation expense of $1.0 milliate to the departure of one of our directors reaitiction in average headcount.

General and administrative expenses increased$ilion, or 15%, in fiscal year 2012 compared techil year 2011. This was due to a
$2.5 million payment to the attorneys general oftiple states in connection with a settlement esdab online marketing for education
companies, increased bad debt expense of $1.4millisulting from the insolvency of an advertisaggency of record of one of our clients,
partially offset by decreased personnel costs af #iillion attributable to a reduction in averagatcount.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2013- 201: 2012- 2011
2013 2012 2011 % Change % Change
(In thousands)
Interest incom $ 11t $ 134 $ 16¢ (14%) (21%)
Interest expens (5,200 (4,467 (4,21 17% 6%
Other (expense) income, r (69) (42 56 64% (17=%)
Interest and other (expense), $(5,15¢) $(4,370) $(3,98¢) 18% 10%

Interest and other (expense), net increased byriBn, or 18%, in fiscal year 2013 comparediszél year 2012, primarily due to
increased interest expense related to acceleratediaation of approximately $0.7 million of unantieed deferred upfront costs incurred in
connection with the amendment of our loan agreemerihg the third quarter of fiscal 2013. See N@t®ebt, to our consolidated financial
statements for more information about our creditlits.
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Interest and other (expense), net increased byriillidn, or 10%, in fiscal year 2012 compared iscél year 2011, primarily due to
increased interest expense of $0.2 million in figear 2012 and $0.2 million attributable to prate&om a settlement of a legal matter in
fiscal year 2011.

Benefit from (Provision for) Taxes

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Benefit from (provision for) taxe $26,60: $(11,13) $(17,887)
Effective tax rate 28.2% 46.1% 39.7%

The decrease in our effective tax rate for fisadry2013 compared to fiscal year 2012, was pripndrik to a goodwill impairment chai
of $92.4 million for fiscal year 2013. The goodwitipairment charge had an associated tax bene®i2®f7 million due to the impairment of
goodwill that is deductible for tax purposes.

The increase in our effective tax rate for fisoadhy2012 compared to fiscal year 2011, was prigndtie to higher non-deductible stock-
based compensation expense. The effective taxliff¢ées from the annual federal statutory rate ¥@3due to various permanent differences
primarily related to stock-based compensation.

As of June 30, 2013, we had net deferred tax aess&47.0 million. Our net deferred tax assets sim@imarily of goodwill impairment
expense, stock-based compensation expense, acandhteserves not currently deductible for tax pags. See Note 8, Income Taxes, to our
consolidated financial statements for more infoiaragbout our deferred tax assets.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data

The following table sets forth our unaudited qudyteonsolidated statements of operations datéhf®eight quarters ended June 30,
2013. We have prepared the statements of operdboreach of these quarters on the same basieasitlited consolidated financial statem
included elsewhere in this report and, in the apirof management, each statement of operationsdeslall adjustments, consisting solely of
normal recurring adjustments, necessary for thestatement of the results of operations for theséds. This
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information should be read in conjunction with thelited consolidated financial statements andeelabtes included elsewhere in this report.
These quarterly operating results are not necégsadicative of our operating results for any fréwperiod.

Three Months Ended

June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30, June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30,
2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011
(In thousands)

Net revenu $75,707 $79,01° $71,75. $78,62¢ $85,69¢ $93,02! $90,52! $101,22
Costs of revenu 60,82¢ 63,86 61,71: 65,19( 67,04« 72,27¢ 68,39¢ 75,74¢
Gross profit 14,88: 15,15¢ 10,03¢ 13,43¢ 18,65« 20,74¢ 22,127 25,47¢
Operating expense

Product developmel 4,76( 4,891 4,50/ 4,89: 4,80¢ 5,06¢ 5,10z 6,07«

Sales and marketir 3,83t 3,68: 3,49¢ 3,691 2,96( 3,39¢ 3,68¢ 4,03¢

General and administrati 3,881 4,39¢ 4,01¢ 3,92¢ 7,072 6,23¢ 4,847 5,217

Imapirment of goodwil — — 92,35( — — — — —
Operating income (los: 2,39¢ 2,18¢ (94,330 92¢ 3,81¢ 6,04: 8,49: 10,15:
Interest incomt 31 28 28 28 28 31 36 38
Interest expens (1,029 (1,810 (1,359 (1,019 (1,159 (1,117 (1,119 (1,087)
Other (expense) income, r (72 (39 (4) 46 79 3 (93 (32)
Income (loss) before income tax 1,33¢ 36& (95,660) (12 2,771 4,96¢ 7,32( 9,07t
(Provision for) benefit from taxe (2,916 (2,527 32,16¢ (125) (2,570 (2,099 (2,887 (3,58))
Net (loss) incom $(1,587) $(2,167) $(63,49) $ (137 $ 201 $2,87: $443: $ 5,49
Net (loss) income per shai®

Basic $(1,587) $ (0.0 $ (148 $ (00O $ 00OC $ 006 $ 0.0 $ 0.17

Diluted $(1,58) $ (0.0 $ (148 $ (00O $ O00OC $ 006 $ 00¢ $ 0.11
Other Financial Data:

Adjusted EBITDA $12,26. $12,40° $11,22¢ $11,97¢ $15,21« $17,27. $19,53( $ 20,63

(1) Net (loss) income per share for the four quartéesach fiscal year may not sum to the total forfikeal year because of the differe
number of shares outstanding during each pe

Adjusted EBITDA

Our use of adjusted EBITDANe include adjusted EBITDA in this report beca(is&e seek to manage our business to a consiltesit
of adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of net revefiijét is a key basis upon which our managemestases our operating performance, (iii) i
is one of the primary metrics investors use in eatihg Internet marketing companies, (iv) it isaatbr in the evaluation of the performance of
our management in determining compensation, ani i&pn element of certain financial covenantdarour debt agreements. We define
adjusted EBITDA as net income less benefit fronoymion for) taxes, depreciation expense, amortapaéxpense, stock-based compensation
expense, interest, other income (expense), netingmairment of goodwill.

We use adjusted EBITDA as a key performance medmaause we believe it facilitates operating pemtorce comparisons from period
to period by excluding potential differences caulsgdariations in capital structures (affectingeirgist expense), tax positions (such as the
impact on periods or companies of changes in
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effective tax rates or fluctuations in permaneffedénces or discrete quarterly items) and the cash impact of depreciation, amortization,
stock-based compensation expense, and impairmeutoafwill. Since adjusted EBITDA facilitates intalrcomparisons of our historical
operating performance on a more consistent basislso use adjusted EBITDA for business planninp@ges, to incentivize and compensate
our management personnel and in evaluating aciquisipportunities.

In addition, we believe adjusted EBITDA and similaeasures are widely used by investors, secudtialysts, ratings agencies and o
interested parties in our industry as a measufimaficial performance and debt-service capabilitids use of adjusted EBITDA has
limitations as an analytical tool, and it should he considered in isolation or as a substitutefalysis of our results as reported under GA
Some of these limitations are:

» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expemegdior capital equipment or other contractual camments;

» although depreciation and amortization are non-casinges, the assets being depreciated and antomtiag have to be replaced in
the future, and adjusted EBITDA does not reflecthceapital expenditure requirements for such replents

» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, ohaasjuirements for, our working capital nee

» adjusted EBITDA does not consider the potentiailytive impact of issuing stock-based compensatioour management team
and employees

» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the interest exgeor the cash requirements necessary to serv@eshor principal payments
our indebtednes:

» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect certain tax paytaeéhat may represent a reduction in cash avaitahles; anc

» other companies, including companies in our ingustray calculate adjusted EBITDA measures diffdyemthich reduces their
usefulness as a comparative meas

Due to these limitations, adjusted EBITDA should e considered as a measure of discretionaryaastable to us to invest in the
growth of our business. When evaluating our pertoroe, adjusted EBITDA should be considered alomegsiller financial performance
measures, including various cash flow metrics,(les) income and our other GAAP results.

The following table presents a reconciliation ofusted EBITDA to net (loss) income, the most comapée GAAP measure, for each of
the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended

June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30, June 30, Mar 31, Dec 31, Sept 30,

2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011

(In thousands)

Net (loss) incom $(1,58) $(2,162) $(63,49) $ (137) $ 201 $287¢ $4,43: $ 549
Interest and other income (expense), 1,06t 1,821 1,33( 93¢ 1,04t 1,077 1,172 1,07¢
Provision for (benefit from) taxe 2,91¢ 2,52 (32,169 12t 2,57( 2,09 2,88 3,581
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,65¢ 7,20¢ 10,17¢ 8,27¢ 8,49: 8,03 7,517 7,10¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 3,20z 3,01z 3,02¢ 2,77( 2,90¢ 3,19¢ 3,521 3,37¢

Impairment of goodwil — — 92,35( — — — — —
Adjusted EBITDA $12,26: $12,40°7 $11,22¢  $11,97¢ $1521. $17,27. $19,53(  $20,63¢

Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of net
revenue 16% 16% 16% 15% 18% 19% 22% 20%
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Adjusted EBITDA quarterly trenddNe seek to manage our business to a consistegitdeadjusted EBITDA as a percentage of net
revenue. We do so on a fiscal year basis by vamyingperations to balance revenue growth and tlasisghout the fiscal year. We do not
seek to manage our business to a consistent léadjusted EBITDA on a quarterly basis and we ekpec adjusted EBITDA margins to vary
from quarter to quarter.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2013, our principal sources of liifyiconsisted of cash and cash equivalents ofi$8fllion, short-term marketable
securities of $37.8 million, cash we expect to gateefrom operations, and our $100.0 million revmdvcredit line, which is committed until
November 2016, a portion of which is available éodoawn subject to compliance with applicable cawvds. Our cash and cash equivalents
maintained in highly liquid investments with remiaim maturities of 90 days or less at the time athase. We believe our cash equivalent:
liquid and accessible.

Our short-term and long-term liquidity requiremeptsnarily arise from our working capital requirentg, debt service on our $90.0
million term loan balance at June 30, 2013, andiiadtpns from time to time. Our primary operatiogsh requirements include the payment o
media costs, personnel costs, costs of informagohnology systems and office facilities. Our @pito fund these requirements will depend or
our future cash flows, which are determined, irt,day future operating performance and are, theegfeubject to prevailing global
macroeconomic conditions and financial, businesksather factors, some of which are beyond our cbraind also our ability to access our
credit facility. Even though we may not need addisil funds, we may still elect to obtain additiodabt or equity securities or draw down on
or increase our borrowing capacity under our curceedit facility for other reasons.

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalehigrt-term marketable securities, cash genefeded operations and our available
borrowings under the credit facility will be sufiénit to satisfy our currently anticipated cash ieguents through at least the next 12 months.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activiti $ 51,91¢ $ 47,72 $ 78,17:

Cash flows used in investing activiti (8,720 (67,906 (134,76

Cash flows (used in) from financing activiti (21,616 (43,44Y) 33,07:

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Our net cash provided by operating activities iprily the result of our net (loss) income adjdster non-cash expenses such as
depreciation and amortization, stock-based compi@msexpense, impairment of goodwill and changesanking capital components. It is
influenced by the timing of cash collections froor glients and cash payments for purchases of natlather expenses.

Net cash flow provided by operating activitiesiscél year 2013 consisted of non-cash charges3#.8Imillion, partially offset by net
loss of $67.4 million and an increase in workingita of $18.5 million. The nomrash charges primarily consisted of impairmentaafdyvill of
$92.4 million, depreciation and amortization of $8fillion and stock-based compensation expensefriak benefits of $11.9 million. The
contribution to working capital accounts was priityadlue to an increase in deferred taxes of $30IBom resulting from tax deductible
goodwill write-off, a decrease in accounts receleali $15.3 million, net decrease in accounts pkeyahd accrued liabilities of $6.0 million,
and a decrease in prepaid expenses and other a&$8t2 million. The decrease in accounts recdesabe primarily due to better collections.
The net decrease in accounts payable and accrdegr@paid expenses and other assets are primaglyodtiming of payments.
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Net cash flow provided by operating activitiesiscal year 2012 consisted of non-cash charges@bd$4illion and net income of $13.0
million, partially offset by contributions to worlg capital of $11.3 million. The non-cash chargesarily consisted of depreciation and
amortization of $31.2 million and stock-based congation expense net of tax benefits of $12.8 mnillibhe contribution to working capital
accounts was primarily due to a decrease in acsqayable and accrued liabilities of $7.8 milliowa decrease in deferred taxes of $2.8
million, partially offset by an increase in prepaixjppenses and other assets of $2.7 million, andcaease in accounts receivable of
$2.0 million. The decrease in accounts payableaaadued liabilities is due to timing of paymentsl alecreased cost of revenue associated
decreased revenue. The decrease in deferred tadae to larger temporary differences betweenittan€ial statement carrying amount anc
tax basis of certain existing assets and liabdlitiehe increase in prepaid expenses and othesasggtmarily due to timing of payments. The
increase in accounts receivable is attributabtéeniing of receipts.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispahr 2011 consisted of non-cash charges of $3Blidmnet income of $27.2 million,
and changes in working capital components of $t¥lllon. The non-cash charges primarily consistédepreciation and amortization of
$27.3 million, and stock-based compensation expandeaelated tax benefits of $6.5 million. The djesin working capital components was
primarily due to an increase in accounts payabteaaerued liabilities of $8.9 million, a decreaseiepaid expenses and other assets of
$4.9 million and a decrease in accounts receivafo®3.9 million, partially offset by an increaseather noncurrent assets comprised primarily
of deferred taxes of $3.3 million. The increasadaounts payable and accrued liabilities is duering of payments and increased cost of
revenue associated with increased revenue. Thealein prepaid expenses and other assets is iyicha to timing of payments. The
decrease in accounts receivable is attributaliieniog of receipts. The increase in deferred tagetue to larger temporary differences betw
the financial statement carrying amount and thebtsis of certain existing assets and liabilities.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Our investing activities include acquisitions ofdiewebsites and businesses; purchases, salesatndti®s of marketable securities;
capital expenditures; and capitalized internal tégw@ent costs.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat 2Was primarily due to net investments in markietabcurities of $2.4 million and
licenses of intangible assets of $2.5 million. @GapExpenditures and internal software developroests totaled $3.9 million in fiscal year
2013.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat 2@as primarily due to our acquisition of IT Busas Edge for a cash payment of $24.0
million, acquisition of certain assets of Ziff Davnterprise of $17.3 million and the purchasethefoperations of eleven other online
publishing businesses for an aggregate of $14 leomih cash payments, as well as net investmentsarketable securities of $3.2 million.
Capital expenditures and internal software develamnoosts totaled $4.6 million in fiscal year 2012.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal yeat P@as primarily due to our acquisition of Carlreswre.com for an initial cash payment
of $49.7 million and Insurance.com for an initiasb payment of $33.0 million. Cash used in inveséctivities was also impacted by
purchases of the operations of 13 other onlineighiblg businesses for an aggregate of $9.2 milhazash payments, which included
$4.5 million of contingent consideration relatedatprior period acquisition, as well as net invesiis in marketable securities of $35.2 milli
Capital expenditures and internal software develamnoosts totaled $7.2 million in fiscal year 2011.

Net Cash Provided by or Used in Financing Activiie

Cash used in financing activities in fiscal yeat 2@vas primarily due to principal payments on astjoin-related notes payable and our
term loan and related fees of $15.8 million andirepases of our common stock of $6.2 million urmlarstock repurchase program partially
offset by proceeds received from exercises of stmtions of $0.5 million.
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Cash used in financing activities in fiscal yeat 2@vas primarily due to repurchases of our comntocksof $43.9 million under our
stock repurchase program and principal paymengqguisition-related notes payable and our term &ahrelated fees of $9.9 million,
partially offset by proceeds from bank debt of $ilion and exercises of stock options of $4.7liwl.

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y@811 was primarily due to net proceeds from tteavddown of our revolving credit
line of $24.4 million, proceeds from the exerci$stock options of $16.7 million and excess taxdfiés from stock-based compensation of
$7.5 million, partially offset by $15.4 million iprincipal payments on acquisition-related promigsates and our term loan.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have alationships with unconsolidated entities or finahpartnerships, such as entities o
referred to as structured finance or special pwemugities, which would have been establishediferpurpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or fhipurposes.

Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations relate primarily to tmwings under the credit facility, acquisition-riegdd notes payable, and operating leases

The following table sets forth payments due underomntractual obligations as of June 30, 2013:

Promissory Operating
Credit
Year Ending June 30, Notes Facility Leases Total
2014 $ 3,36¢ $12,50( $ 3,55¢ $ 19,42
2015 56C 17,50( 3,31( 21,37(
2016 50 20,00( 3,191 23,24
2017 — 40,00( 2,74¢ 42,74¢
2018 and thereaftt — — 3,72¢ 3,72¢
Total $ 3,97/ $90,00( $16,53: $110,50°

The above table does not include approximately 8#lifon of long-term income tax liabilities for gprtainty in income taxes due to the
fact that we are unable to reasonably estimatérfieg of these potential future payments.

Credit Facility

In November 2011, we entered into the Second Anttadd Restated Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agerde (“Second Loan
Agreement”) with Comerica Bank (the “Bank”), thenaidistrative agent and lead arranger. The Secorah lAgreement consists of a $100.0
million five-year term loan, with annual principainortization of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20% and 50%, andGO¥2million five-year revolving credit
line. On February 15, 2013, we entered into thetAmendment to Credit Agreement and Amendmentuarénty (“First Amendment to the
Second Loan Agreement”) with the Bank to, amongwothings: (1) amend the definition of adjusted HBA, effective as of December 31,
2012, to exclude extraordinary or non-recurring-cash expenses of losses including, without linatatgoodwill impairments, and any
extraordinary or non-recurring cash expenses iaggnegate amount not to exceed $5.0 million folifeeof the Second Loan Agreement; and
(2) reduce the $200.0 million five-year revolvingdit line portion of the facility to $100.0 milii effective as of February 15, 2013.
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Borrowings under the Second Loan Agreement areredday substantially all of our assets. Interegtagable at specified margins above
either the Eurodollar Margin or the Prime Rate. irtierest rate varies based upon the ratio of fdrdibt to adjusted EBITDA and ranges fi
Eurodollar Margin + 1.625% to 2.375% or Prime +02&for the revolving credit line and from EurodolMargin + 2.00% to 2.75% or Prime
+ 1.00% for the term loan. Adjusted EBITDA is defihas net (loss) income less benefit from (prowi$io) taxes, depreciation expense,
amortization expense, stock-based compensatiomegp@terest and other income (expense), acquisitsts for business combinations,
extraordinary or non-recurring non-cash expenséssses including, without limitation, goodwill impgments, and any extraordinary or non-
recurring cash expenses in an aggregate amouit eagteed $5.0 million for the life of this Secdnshn Agreement. The revolving credit line
requires an annual facility fee of 0.375% of theoteing credit line capacity.

To reduce our exposure to rising interest rategutite term loan, on February 24, 2012, we entettecan interest rate swap
encompassing the principal balances scheduled ¢oitséanding in January 2014 and thereafter, suokipal amount totaling $85.0 million in
January 2014 and amortizing to $35.0 million in Bimber 2016. The interest rate swap effectivelysfikee Eurodollar Margin at 0.97%.

The Second Loan Agreement expires in November ZDi€.Second Loan Agreement restricts our abilitsatee additional debt
financing and pay dividends, and also require®w®mply with other nonfinancial covenants. In aiddi, we are required to maintain financial
ratios computed as follows:

1. A minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1%4dlculated as the ratio of (i) trailing twelve ntlos of adjusted EBITDA to (ii) the
sum of capital expenditures, net cash interestresgaecash taxes, cash dividends and trailing twelmaths payments of indebtedness. Payr
of unsecured indebtedness is excluded to the dégmésufficient unused revolving credit line caipaexists such that the relevant debt
payment could be made from the credit facility.

2. A maximum funded debt to adjusted EBITDA ratf®3dL, calculated as the ratio of (i) the sum éfaligations owed to lending
institutions, the face amount of any letters ofidteéndebtedness owed in connection with acquisitielated notes and indebtedness owed in
connection with capital lease obligations to (igiling twelve months of adjusted EBITDA.

We were in compliance with the covenants of ounlagreements as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Upfront arrangement fees incurred in connectiomwie First Amendment of the Second Loan Agreentetdéed $0.2 million and were
deferred and will be amortized over the remainamgntof the arrangement. In connection with the céda of the revolving credit line
capacity, during the third quarter of fiscal ye@i.2 we accelerated amortization of approximately $illion of unamortized deferred upfront
costs.

Interest Rate Swap

As described above, we entered into an interestssafp to reduce our exposure to the financial anpbchanging interest rates under
our term loan. We do not speculate using derivatigguments. The effective date of the swap isilAr2012 with a maturity date of
November 4, 2016. At June 30, 2013, we had apprabeiy $85.0 million of notional amount outstandingder the swap agreement t
exchanges a variable interest rate base (Euroduobagin) for a fixed interest rate of 0.97% over tarm of the agreement. This interest rate
swap is designated as a cash flow hedge of theesiteate risk attributable to forecasted varidiierest payments. The effective portion of the
fair value gains or losses on this swap will bduded as a component of accumulated other compseleetoss in the consolidated balance
sheets.

At June 30, 2013, our interest rate swap qualifis@ cash flow hedge. For this qualifying hedge etfective portion of the change in 1
value will be recognized through earnings whenuth@erlying transaction being hedged affects eamitigereby allowing the swap’s gains anc
losses to offset interest expense from the term éwathe statement of operations. Any hedge ingfiergess is recognized in earnings in the
current period.
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Headquarters Lease

We entered into a lease agreement in February 0 Hpproximately 63,998 square feet of office gplacated at 950 Tower Lane,
Foster City, California. The term of the lease lmega November 1, 2010 and expires on October 318.2Dhe monthly base rent was abated
for the first 12 calendar months under the leasd,ramained at $0.1 million through the 24th casendonth of the term of the lease. After this
24 month period, monthly base rent increased t2 $0llion for the subsequent 12 months and thereswes approximately 3% after each 12-
month anniversary during the remaining term, ingigdany extensions under our options to extend h@le two options to extend the term of
the lease for one additional year for each optadlodving the expiration date of the lease or rendeman, as applicable.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have prepared our consolidated financial statésrig conformity with accounting principles gerraccepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”). In doing so, we are requiramirhake estimates and assumptions that affect juetesl amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiehatdate of the financial statements and repomeouats of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period.

Some of the estimates and assumptions we are e€loimake relate to matters that are inherenttgdain as they pertain to future
events. We base these estimates and assumptidnistamcal experience or on various other factbeg tve believe to be reasonable and
appropriate under the circumstances. On an ondedBt$, we reconsider and evaluate our estimateassuinptions. Actual results may differ
significantly from these estimates.

We believe that the critical accounting policiesdd below involve our more significant judgmesetgjmates and assumptions and,
therefore, could have the greatest potential impaaiur consolidated financial statements. In &alditwe believe that a discussion of these
policies is necessary to understand and evaluateahsolidated financial statements containedigréport.

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Hples, of our consolidated financial statementsffiother information on our critical
and other significant accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition
We derive our revenue from two sources: DMS and.DSS

DMS revenue is derived primarily from fees whick aarned through the delivery of qualified leadisks, calls, customers and, to a
lesser extent, display advertisements, or imprassid/e recognize revenue when persuasive eviddramearrangement exists, delivery has
occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable andectdlbility is reasonably assured. Delivery is dethoehave occurred at the time a qualified
lead or click is delivered to the client providéat no significant obligations remain.

Under our revenue recognition policies, we allocateenue in an arrangement using the estimatedgeltice (“ESP”) of deliverables if
vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE") of g price based on historical stand-alone saldkiai-party evidence (“TPE”) of selling
price does not exist. Due to the unique naturenfesof our multiple deliverable revenue arrangesiamé may not be able to establish selling
prices based on historical stand-alone sales at airty evidence, therefore we may use our béishate to establish selling prices for these
arrangements under the new standard. We estalatlebtimates within a range of selling prices immB1g multiple factors including, but not
limited to, factors such as class of client, sifz&ansaction, available media inventory, pricitigagegies and market conditions. We believe the
use of the best estimate of selling price allowgneie recognition in a manner consistent with tideulying economics of the transaction.
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From time to time, we may agree to credit a clfentcertain leads, clicks, calls or customers étffiail to meet the contractual or other
guidelines of a particular client. We have estdiglisa sales reserve based on historical experiéonagate, such credits have been within our
expectations.

For a portion of our revenue, we have agreemeritsproviders of online media or third-party pubbssiused in the generation of
qualified leads, clicks, calls or customers. Weehee a fee from our clients and pay a fee to phblis either on a revenue-share, cost-per-leac
cost-per-click or cost-per-thousand-impressionssb&ge are the primary obligor in the transactida.a result, the fees paid by our clients are
recognized as revenue and the fees paid to ouispebs$ are included in cost of revenue.

DSS revenue is comprised of (i) set-up and prodessiservices fees and (ii) usage fees. Set-uprnfdssional service fees that do not
provide stand-alone value to a client are recogh@eer the contractual term of the agreement oeitpected client relationship period,
whichever is longer, effective when the applicatieaches the “go-live” date. We define the “go-lidate as the date when the application
enters into a production environment or all essg¢fitinctionalities have been delivered. Usage &egecognized on a monthly basis as eal

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lgiim excess of recognized revenue and paymerdis/egtin advance of revenue
recognition.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and record the expense related to Based transactions based on the fair values a@faeds as determined on the date of
grant. For stock options, we selected and haverigsily used the Blaclscholes option pricing model to estimate the faiue. In applying th
Black-Scholes option pricing model, our determioatof fair value is affected by assumptions regayd number of highly complex and
subjective variables. These variables include dbeitnot limited to, the expected stock price vbtatover the term of the stock options and the
employees’ actual and projected stock option eserand pre-vesting employment termination behaviirece we do not have extensive
trading history, we estimate the expected volgtdit our common stock based on the historical W@labf comparable public companies over
the stock option’s expected term. We have no histoexpectation of paying dividends on our commatotk. The risk-free interest rate is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield for a term coasistith the expected term of the stock options fir value of restricted stock units is
determined based on the closing price of our comstack on the date of grant.

We recognize stock-based compensation expensdlevesquisite service period using the straigte-tmethod, based on awards
ultimately expected to vest. We estimate futuréeitures at the date of grant and revise the esisné necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Goodwill

We conduct a test for the impairment of goodwillaideast an annual basis but will conduct thedeah earlier date if indicators of
possible impairment arise that would cause a triggesvent. We have two reporting units, DMS andsDBhe impairment test first compares
the fair value of our reporting unit to its carrgiamount, including goodwill, to assess whetheraimpent is present. Our public market
capitalization sustained a decline after DecemhefB12, to a value below the net book carryingi@alf our equity. As a result, we
determined that this triggered the necessity t@loohan interim goodwill impairment test.

We first tested our lontived assets related to the DMS reporting unitfa@aecember 31, 2012 and, based on the undiscogat#dflows
determined that these assets were not impairedtidaally, a two-step process was then requiretd$d goodwill impairment. To estimate the
fair value for step one, we utilized a combinatidrincome and market approaches evenly weightedtimate the fair value of the reporting
units. The income approach involves discountingrieiestimated cash flows. The discount rate ust#kisalue-weighted average
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of the reporting unit's estimated cost of equitg alebt (“cost of capital”) derived using both knoamd estimated customary market metrics.
We performed sensitivity tests with respect to gtorates and discount rates used in the incomepapbr In applying the market approach,
valuation multiples are derived from historical grdjected operating data of selected peer compaeigluated and adjusted, if necessary,
based on our strengths and weaknesses relatifie setected peer companies, and applied to theaggte historical and/or projected
operating data to arrive at a fair value.

We completed step one of the impairment analysiedch of our reporting units and concluded thagféDecember 31, 2012, the fair
value of our DMS reporting unit was below its cémgyvalue, including goodwill. As such, step twotlbé impairment test was initiated to
determine the amount of the impairment by compattiregmplied fair value of the reporting unit’s gbwaill with its carrying value. We
recorded an estimated goodwill impairment chargg9@.4 million in the second quarter of fiscal y2ai3. We completed the second step of
the goodwill impairment test as described abowhénthird quarter of fiscal year 2013. The compleidf this second step did not result in an
adjustment to the goodwill impairment charge prasly recorded in the second quarter of fiscal Y&dr3.

In our quarter ending June 30, 2013, we determiinadthe estimated fair value of our DMS reportimit was in excess of its carrying
value. As described above, we utilized a combimadibincome and market approaches evenly weiglitestimate the fair value of the
reporting units. The carrying value of our DMS reipy unit was approximately $277.4 million in aquwarter ending June 30, 2013. The
estimated fair value of our DMS reporting unit vegegproximately $301.0 million in our quarter endihghe 30, 2013. This resulted in an exc
of fair value over the carrying value of approxielgt$23.6 million or 8.5%. The excess fair valueothe carrying value in our quarter ending
June 30, 2012 was 28%. The decline in the excesgmgvalue was primarily a result of the declinenarket capitalization at the time our
annual goodwill impairment test during the quaeleding June 30, 2013 compared to the market cegaitiin during the quarter ending
June 30, 2012.

In our quarter ending June 30, 2013, we deterniinadthe estimated fair value of our DSS reporting was in excess of its carrying
value. The carrying value of our DSS reporting wat approximately $1.3 million in our quarter emgddune 30, 2013. The estimated fair
value of our DSS reporting unit under an incomeraagh was approximately $2.3 million in our quagading June 30, 2013 based on the
present value of estimated future cash flows. Téssilted in a significant excess of fair value awwer carrying value.

Based on our revaluation of impairment as part of our annual impant test during the quarter ending June 30, 2@&3concluded thi
there was no additional indicator of impairmengobdwill for fiscal year 2013.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andragsions. We base these estimates
on historical and anticipated results and trenadsamnvarious other assumptions that we believeeasonable under the circumstances,
including assumptions as to future events. Actesiliits could differ from those estimates, and glitferences could affect the estimated fair
value of the reporting units and hence the valmatiogoodwill could be affected. Circumstances tmild affect the valuation of goodwill
include, among other things, a significant chamgeur market capitalization, the business climaie lauying habits of our subscriber base, ani
with respect to the DSS reporting unit, the losa efgnificant customer. The application of the dywidl impairment test requires judgment,
including the identification of reporting units gtlassignment of assets, liabilities and goodwitief@orting units and the determination of the
fair value of each reporting unit. Significant judgnts required to estimate the fair value of répgmiinits include estimating future cash flows
and determining appropriate discount rates, graatiss, an appropriate control premium and othamaptons. Changes in these estimates ar
assumptions could materially affect the determoratf fair value which could trigger impairment.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, such as propertyeganghment and purchased intangible assets witte fimes, for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying value of an asset
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may not be recoverable. We apply judgment whemesitng the fair value of the assets based on tdescounted future cash flows the assets
are expected to generate and recognize an impditosmif estimated undiscounted future cash flewsected to result from the use of the
asset plus net proceeds expected from disposifidreasset, if any, are less than the carryingevaf the asset. As mentioned in the Goodwill
section above, our public market capitalizatiort@ngd a decline after December 31, 2012, to aeviatiow the net book carrying value of our
equity. As such, we tested our long-lived assdtgad to the DMS reporting unit as of December28,2 and, based on the undiscounted cas
flows, determined that these assets were not imgaile re-evaluated our long-lived assets as pauroannual impairment test during the
quarter ending June 30, 2013 and determined that thas no indicator of impairment.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset aniitijgdppproach to record deferred taxes. Our defgincome tax assets represent
temporary differences between the financial statgroarrying amount and the tax basis of existirgptssand liabilities that will result in
deductible amounts in future years, including rperating loss carry forwards. A valuation allowarcescorded against our deferred tax as
which are not expected to be realized. Our judgmegerding future profitability may change dueutufe market conditions, changes in
U.S. or international tax laws and other factors.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Resicto our consolidated financial statementsrifarimation with respect to recent
accounting pronouncements and the impact of thesepncements on our consolidated financial statésne

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to market risks in the ordinary ®of our business. These risks include primaaitgifjn currency exchange and
interest rate risks.

Interest Rate Risk

We invest our cash equivalents and short-term invests primarily in liquid, highly-rated U.S. gomanent or municipal fixed income
securities, certificates of deposit with finangratitutions and money market funds. Unrestrictash¢ cash equivalents and short-term
investments are held for working capital purposes acquisition financing. We do not enter into isiveents for trading or speculative
purposes. We believe that we do not have matetfsure to changes in the fair value of these imvests as a result of changes in interest
rates due to the short-term nature of our investsa@eclines in interest rates may reduce futuestment income. However, a hypothetical
decline of 1% in the interest rate on our investtmerould not have a material effect on our consdéid financial statements.

As of June 30, 2013, our credit facility had a baring capacity of $100.0 million with $90.0 millian term loans outstanding, and no
amounts outstanding under our revolving line oflitrénterest on borrowings under the credit fagiis payable quarterly at specified margins
above either the Eurodollar Margin or the PrimeeR&ur exposure to interest rate risk under thditcfacility will depend on the extent to
which we utilize such facility. To reduce our expasto rising interest rates under the term loark-ebruary 24, 2012, we entered into an
interest rate swap encompassing the principal bakecheduled to be outstanding in January 2014haneafter, such principal amount will
total $85.0 million in January 2014 and amortiz&35.0 million in November 2016. The interest raep effectively fixes the Eurodollar
Margin at a fixed rate of 0.97%. A hypothetical sha of 1% from prevailing interest rates as of JB®e2013 would affect our interest expe
and the fair value of the swap by less than $0lliami
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In addition to the $85.0 million of term loans coe@ by the interest rate swap as of June 30, 2043 lso had variable rate debt
outstanding of $5.0 million.

A hypothetical increase of 1% in the Eurodollar §taror Prime Rate-based interest rate on our vigriatte debt outstanding of $5.0
million as of June 30, 2013 would result in an @age in our interest expense of $0.1 million paryassuming constant borrowing levels.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

To date, our international client agreements haentpredominately denominated in U.S. dollars,awbrdingly, we have limited
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluidnatrelated to client agreements, and do not ntlyrengage in foreign currency hedging
transactions. As the local accounts for some offan@ign operations are maintained in the locateney of the respective country, we are
subject to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuegtiassociated with the remeasurement to U.S.rdofahypothetical change of 10% in
foreign currency exchange rates would not have temaheffect on our consolidated financial statatse
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Quie&, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the index appearing under Item 15{(g)¢&sent fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of QuinStreet, brad its subsidiaries at June 30, 2013 and Jun203@, and the results of their operations anc
their cash flows for each of the three years inpeod ended June 30, 2013 in conformity with actimg principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. In addition, in our opimi the financial statement schedule listed inildex appearing under Item 15(a)(2) present:
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein when read in conjunction with th&ated consolidated financial statements. Alsc
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of June 30, 2013, based o
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management ionssiple for these financial statements and findrsteement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effeciss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management’s Report on ImiControl over Financial Reporting appearing uritlam 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statementfefinancial statement schedule, and on the Coypamternal control over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We caedusur audits in accordance with the standardseoPublic Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamgisine that we plan and perform the audits to obtae&rsonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgrand whether effective internal control overfinial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financialestants included examining, on a test basis, evasapporting the amounts and disclosures ir
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made agagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimabcontrol over financial reporting included adbtag an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thatagerial weakness exists, and testing and evafyitie design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclisdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readwaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
August 20, 2013
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Assets
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Accounts receivable, n
Deferred tax asse
Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, r
Deferred tax assets, noncurr
Other assets, noncurre
Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenu

Debt

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, noncurre
Debt, noncurrer
Other liabilities, noncurrer

Total liabilities

QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Commitments and contingencies (See Note

Stockholder equity

Common stock: $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 steartwrized; 42,886,884 and 43,350,831 shares issued
and 42,886,884 and 43,222,031 shares outstandihghat30, 2013 and 2012, respectiy

Additional paic-in capital

Treasury stock, at cost (0 and 128,800 sharemat3@, 2013 and 2012, respective

Accumulated other comprehensive i

Retained earning
Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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June 30, June 30,
2013 2012

$ 90,117 $ 68,53:
37,841 36,73¢
38,39 52,83(
6,75: 7,66t
4,62 7,77¢
177,73. 173,53t
9,70 8,75t
150,45t 243,04¢
50,48¢ 72,44«
40,28¢ 8,44¢
87¢ 93(
$429,54° $507,16(
$ 18,72: $ 22,87(
30,90: 29,46:
1,63¢ 2,55¢
15,42¢ 15,42¢
66,69: 70,31«
23¢ 49
77,24¢ 92,16
6,47 6,27
150,65: 168,80«
43 43
226,85 220,55:
— (1,179
(1,012 (1,439
53,00 120,37¢
278,89! 338,35
$429,54° $507,16(
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Net revenue
Cost of revenu(®

Gross profit
Operating expense®
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
General and administrati
Impairment of goodwil
Operating (loss) incom
Interest incom
Interest expens
Other (expense) income, r
(Loss) income before income tax
Benefit from (provision for) taxe
Net (loss) incomi

Net (loss) income per shal
Basic
Diluted

QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Weighted average shares used in computing nej (lossme

per share
Basic
Diluted

@ Cost of revenue and operating expenses includ&-based compensation expense as follc

Cost of revenu

Product developmel
Sales and marketir
General and administrati

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
$305,10:  $370,46¢  $403,02:
251,59: 283,46 291,99:

53,51 87,00: 111,03

19,04¢ 21,05 24,16

14,70¢ 14,07+ 17,38:

16,22¢ 23,37 20,39¢

92,35( — —
(88,819 28,50: 49,08t

11E 134 16¢

(5,200 (4,467) (4,219

(69) (42) 56

(93,979 24,13; 45,10

26,60 (11,13) (17,88)
$(67,37) $ 13,000  $ 27,21
$ (157 $ 026 $ 0.5¢
$ (157 $ 026 $ O05°
42,81¢ 45,84¢ 46,22:
42,81¢ 46,85¢ 49,13(

$3,93( $4,29: $4,50€

2,76¢ 2,57( 2,70¢
3,26¢ 3,00¢ 3,747
2,057 3,037 2,99:
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INC OME
(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
Net (loss) incom: $(67,372) $13,00: $27,21¢
Other comprehensive income (lo
Unrealized (loss) gain on investme (16) 2 2
Foreign currency translation adjustm (32 (359 40
Interest rate swa
Change in unrealized gain (lo¢ 482 (1,139 —
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gain) losduded in net incom (8) 8 —
Net change 47t (1,130 —
Other comprehensive income (lo 427 (1,490 42
Comprehensive (loss) incor $(66,945 $11,51: $27,25¢

See notes to condensed consolidated financiahstatks
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QUINSTREET, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at June 30, 201

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmg
Payments of initial public offering issuance cc
Stocl-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic
Repurchase of common sta
Comprehensive incom

Net (loss) incomu

Unrealized gain (loss) on investme

Currency translation adjustmetr

Balance at June 30, 201

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmg
Release of RSU
Stocl-based compensatic
Withholding taxes on the net settlement of R¢
Excess tax losses from st-based compensatic
Repurchase of common sta
Retirement of treasury sto
Comprehensive incom
Net (loss) incom
Unrealized gain (loss) on investme
Currency translation adjustmet
Unrealized (loss) gain on interest rate s\
Balance at June 30, 201

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmg
Release of RSU
Stocl-based compensatic
Withholding taxes on the net settlement of R¢
Excess tax benefits from st-based compensatic
Repurchase of common sta
Retirement of treasury sto
Comprehensive incom
Net (loss) incom
Unrealized gain (loss) on investme
Currency translation adjustmetr
Unrealized (loss) gain on interest rate s\

Balance at June 30, 201

(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Other

Comprehensive  Retainec

Total
Shareholders’

Paid-in
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss)  Earnings Equity
47,247,14 $ 47  (2,177,45) $ (7,779 $ 21758. $ 9 $80,16: $ 290,02:
2,317,73 3 — — 16,96" — — 16,97(
— — — — (103) — — (107)
— — — — 13,95( — — 13,95(
— — — — 7,292 — — 7,29:
— — — — — — 27,21 27,21
— — — — — 2 — 2
— — — — — 40 — 4C
49,564,87 $ 5C (2,177,45) $ (7,779 $ 255,68¢ $ 51 $107,37¢ $ 355,38
525,99! 1 — — 4,691 — — 4,69¢
62,53( — — — — — — —
— — — — 12,99¢ — — 12,99¢
— — — — (417) — — (417)
— — — — (694) — — (694)
— — (4,753,91)  (45,12¢) — — — (45,12¢)
(6,802,57) (8) 6,802,57 51,721 (51,719 — — —
— — — — — — 13,00: 13,00:
= — = — — (2 — (2
— — — — — (35) — (35¢)
— — — — — (1,130 — (1,130
43,350,83 $ 43 (128,800 $ (1,17¢) $ 22055. $ (1,439 $120,37¢ $ 338,35
120,50¢ — — — 457 — — 457
53,91( — — — — — — —
— — — — 12,10¢ — — 12,10¢
— — — — (244) — — (244)
_ — — — 14C — — 14C
— — (509,56!) (4,979 — — — (4,97¢)
(638,36!) — 638,36! 6,157 (6,157%) — — —
— — — — — — (67,377) (67,377)
— — — — — (16) — (1€)
— — — — — (32 — 32
— — — — — 47E — 47t
42,886,88 $ 43 — $ — $ 22685 $ (1,017 $ 53,000 $ 278,89!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net (loss) incom $(67,377) $ 13,00 $ 27,21
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to mshcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 32,32¢ 31,15( 27,27
Impairment of goodwil 92,35( — —
Write-off of bank loans and upfront fe 68C — —
Provision for sales returns and doubtful accouatgivable (787) 84 (€19)]
Stoclk-based compensatic 12,01¢ 12,99¢ 13,95(
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic (15€) (197 (7,45%)
Other nor-cash adjustments, n 1,397 1,95( e
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effeEecquisitions:
Accounts receivabl 15,30¢ (1,987%) 3,88t
Prepaid expenses and other as 3,291 (2,695) 4,94
Other assets, noncurre 53 78 12C
Deferred taxe (30,759 2,782 (3,257)
Accounts payabl (4,582 (37€) 6,37¢
Accrued liabilities (1,389 (7,40%) 2,557
Deferred revenu (725) (242) 1,04:
Other liabilities, noncurrer 251 (1,416) 1,45¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 51,91¢ 47,72% 78,17
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital expenditure (1,34 (2,26¢) (5,369
Business acquisitions, net of notes payable ant @eguirec — (60,07%) (91,839
Other intangible: (2,515 — —
Internal software development co (2,51 (2,379 (1,84))
Purchases of marketable securi (52,287 (48,216 (54,437
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalolerisies 49,91 45,00z 19,22°
Other investing activitie 17 30 (515)
Net cash used in investing activiti (8,720 (67,906 (134,767
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common s — — (106
Proceeds from exercise of common stock opt 457 4,69¢ 16,71(
Proceeds from bank de — 5,88¢ 24,42¢
Principal payments on bank d¢ (7,500 (5,125 (3,969
Payment of bank loan upfront fe (200) (1,370 —
Principal payments on acquisit-related notes payab (8,129 (3,36€) (11,45
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic 15€ 197 7,45¢
Withholding taxes related to restricted stock metre settlemer (244) (417) —
Repurchases of common stc (6,157%) (43,949 —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (21,616 (43,44°) 33,07:
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casba&mts 6 (133) 4C
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 21,58¢ (63,759 (23,48()
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 68,53: 132,29( 155,77(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $90,11" $ 68,53: $ 132,29(
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatior
Cash paid for intere: 4,33: 3,78¢ 4,12¢
Cash paid for taxe 2,16: 13,72 16,88¢
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and incing Activities
Notes payable issued in connection with busineggisitions — 5,09¢ 3,311
Retirement of treasury sto 6,157 51,72% —
Short term payable 2,50( — —
Purchase of property and equipm 2,041 — —

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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QUINSTREET, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. The Company

QuinStreet, Inc. (the “Companyi§ an online performance marketing company. The @omwm was incorporated in California on April
1999 and reincorporated in Delaware on Decembe2@®19. The Company provides vertically oriented@oner acquisition programs for its
clients. The Company also provides hosted solutiondirect selling companies. The corporate headgus are located in Foster City,
California, with additional offices throughout thimited States, Brazil and India.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include towwants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Iotagany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimatesamsdimptions that affect the reported amounts etsassd liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitancial statements and reported amounts ofweyand expenses during the reporting periot
These estimates are based on information avaitebt# the date of the financial statements; theeefactual results could differ from those
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from two sourcé@gcbMarketing Services (“DMS”) and Direct Selliggrvices (“DSS”). DMS
revenue, which constituted more than 99% in figealr 2013, 2012 and 2011, is derived from fees kwhie earned through the delivery of
qualified leads, clicks, calls, customers and, esser extent, display advertisements (“impresSjoithe Company recognizes revenue when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,efiglhas occurred, the fee is fixed or determinahle collectability is reasonably assured.
Delivery is deemed to have occurred at the timaaified lead, click, call, customer or impressismelivered to the client provided that no
significant obligations remain.

The Company allocates revenue in an arrangemeng tis¢ estimated selling price (“ESP”) of delivdeshif it does not have vendor-
specific objective evidence (“VSOE”") of selling geibased on historical stand-alone sales or thartdsvidence (“TPE”) of selling price. Due
to the unique nature of some of its multiple deta@e revenue arrangements, the Company may rattlbeo establish selling prices based on
historical stand-alone sales or third party evidenicerefore the Company may use its best estitnastablish selling prices for these
arrangements under the new standard. The Compéatyliskes best estimates within a range of sepimges considering multiple factors
including, but not limited to, class of client, siaf transaction, available media inventory, pgcitrategies and market conditions. The
Company believes the use of the best estimatdlofgprice allows revenue recognition in a manoensistent with the underlying economics
of the transaction.

From time to time, the Company may agree to ci@ditent for certain leads, clicks, calls, custosn@rimpressions if they fail to meet
contractual or other guidelines of a particulaerti The Company has established a sales resesed ba historical experience. To date, such
credits have been within management’s expectations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

For a portion of its revenue, the Company has agee¢s with providers of online media or traffic btighers, used in the generation of
leads, clicks, calls and customers. The Comparsjives a fee from its clients and pays a fee toiphbis as a portion of revenue generated or
on a cost per lead, cost per click or cost perghod impressions basis. The Company is the priofaligor in the transaction. As a result, the
fees paid by the Company'’s clients are recognize@eenue and the fees paid to its publishersnateded in cost of revenue.

DSS revenue, which constituted less than 1% iralfigear 2013, 2012 and 2011, comprises (i) setrgippaofessional services fees and
(ii) usage fees. Set-up and professional servies fleat do not provide stand-alone value to atciemrecognized over the contractual term of
the agreement or the expected client relationséifg, whichever is longer, effective when the agtion reaches the “go-live” date. The
Company defines the “go-live” date as the date wherapplication enters into a production environtrar all essential functionalities have
been delivered. Usage fees are recognized on ahiydrasis as earned.

Deferred revenue is comprised of contractual lgim excess of recognized revenue and paymerds/egcin advance of revenue
recognition.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to significant concentrations of credik kensist principally of cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and accoun&vaale. The Company’s investment portfolio corssidtliquid high-quality fixed income US
government or municipal securities, certificatesleposit with financial institutions and money n®riunds. Cash and certificates of deposit
are deposited with financial institutions that mgeraent believes are creditworthy. To date, the Gomnas not experienced any losses on it:
investment portfolio.

The Company’s accounts receivable are derived frigents located principally in the United StateeeTCompany performs ongoing
credit evaluation of its clients, does not requinélateral, and maintains allowances for potertialit losses on client accounts when deemed
necessary. No client accounted for 10% or moresbfincounts receivable or net revenue for eitiseafiyear 2013 or 2012.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist priatlipof cash equivalents, marketable securitiespants receivable, accounts payable
acquisition-related promissory notes, an interat& swap, short term payables, and a term loanfaihealue of the Company’s cash
equivalents is determined based on quoted pricastine markets for identical assets for its momeayket funds; and quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets for its U.S municipaturities and certificates of deposits that neatithin 90 days. The recorded values of the
Company’s accounts receivable and accounts paggipieximate their current fair values due to tHatineely short-term nature of these
accounts. The fair value of acquisition-relatednpissory notes and short term payables approxirhaie tecorded amounts as the interest rate
on similar financing arrangements available toGoeepany at June 30, 2013 approximate the intesss implied when these acquisition-
related promissory notes and short term payables wriginally issued and recorded. The fair valtithe interest rate swap is based upon fair
value quotes from the issuing bank and the Compargsses the quotes for reasonableness by comitengdo the present values of expe
cash flows. The present value approach is basetheervable market interest rate curves that arer@eurate with the terms of the interest
rate swaps. The carrying value represents the/ddile of the swaps, as adjusted for any non-pedaooa risk associated with the Company at
June 30, 2013. The Company believes that the &irevof the term loan approximates its recordeduarnat June 30, 2013 as the interest rate
on the term loan is variable and is based on mamketest rates and after consideration of defadt credit risk.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturities of e months or less at the date of purchase arsifeddsas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist primarily of money market fundsinicipal securities and certificates of depwasih original maturities of three months or
less.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessragated depreciation and amortization, and areetdégied on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as fallow

Computer equipmet 3 years

Software 3 years

Furniture and fixture 3 to 5 year:

Leasehold improvements the shorter of the lease term or the estimatedulbeés of the
improvements

Internal Software Development Costs

The Company incurs costs to develop software figrimal use. The Company expenses all costs tteere the planning and post-
implementation phases of development as productldpment expense. Costs incurred in the developpteage are capitalized and amortized
over the product’s estimated useful life if thegwot is expected to have a useful life beyond stis. Costs associated with repair or
maintenance of existing sites or the developmeintgebsite content are included in cost of revemuné accompanying statements of
operations. The Company'’s policy is to amortizeitediped internal software development costs omaapct-by-product basis using the
straight-line method over the estimated econorfecdf the application, which is generally two yearee Company capitalized $2.5 million,
$1.9 million, and $1.8 million in fiscal years 202912 and 2011. Amortization of internal softwdexelopment costs is reflected in cost of
revenue.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reportingt level on an annual basis and whenever everthanges in circumstances indicate
the carrying value of an asset may not be recolerapplication of the goodwill impairment test téggs judgment, including the
identification of reporting units, assigning assatd liabilities to reporting units, assigning gadtto reporting units, and determining the fair
value of each reporting unit. Significant judgmergiguired to estimate the fair value of reportimifsiinclude estimating future cash flows and
determining appropriate discount rates, growthsrade appropriate control premium and other assongptChanges in these estimates and
assumptions could materially affect the determoratf fair value for each reporting unit which cdtfigger impairment.

The Company has determined that DMS and DSS cotestitvo separate reporting units. The Company’'dipufarket capitalization
sustained a decline after December 31, 2012, aduee\below the net book carrying value of its egjuits a result, the Company determined
this triggered the necessity to conduct an intgygadwill impairment test.

The Company first tested the long-lived assetdedlto the DMS reporting unit as of December 31,28nd, based on the undiscounted
cash flows, determined that these assets werenpatiied. Additionally, a two-step process was tregquired to test goodwill impairment. To
estimate the fair value for step one, the Compditiged a combination of income and market appreasoévenly weighted to estimate the fair
value of the reporting units. The income approaesiolives discounting future estimated cash flows @iiscount rate used is
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the value-weighted average of the reporting ueismated cost of equity and debt (“cost of cafj)i@dérived using, both known and estimated,
customary market metrics. The Company performediseity tests with respect to growth rates anddimt rates used in the income appra

In applying the market approach, valuation mulspiee derived from historical and projected opeeatiata of selected peer companies;
evaluated and adjusted, if necessary, based dbdimpany’s strengths and weaknesses relative teefleeted peer companies; and applied to
the appropriate historical and/or projected opecatiata to arrive at a fair value.

The Company completed step one of the impairmeaiyais for each of its reporting units and conctiitieat, as of December 31, 2012,
the fair value of its DMS reporting unit was beldgw/carrying value, including goodwill. As suchegttwo of the impairment test was initiated
to determine the amount of the impairment by commgathe implied fair value of the reporting unigeodwill with its carrying value. The
Company recorded an estimated goodwill impairméaatge of $92.4 million in the second quarter afdisyear 2013. The Company comple
the second step of the goodwill impairment teddescribed above in the third quarter of fiscal y#@it3. The completion of this second step
did not result in an adjustment to the goodwill arment charge previously recorded in the secoradtguof fiscal year 2013.

The Company re-evaluated goodwill for impairmenpag of its annual impairment test during the tgraending June 30, 2013 and
determined that there was no indicator of addifiampairment for either the DMS or DSS reportingtsn

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates lotiged assets, such as property and equipment arthased intangible assets with finite lives, foparmen
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value of an asset may not beverable. The Company applies
judgment when assessing the fair value of the assested on the undiscounted future cash flowssbetaare expected to generate
recognizes an impairment loss if estimated undistamlifuture cash flows expected to result fromube of the asset plus net proceeds exp
from disposition of the asset, if any, are lessitthee carrying value of the asset. When the Compdenytifies an impairment, it reduces the
carrying amount of the asset to its estimatedvaine based on a discounted cash flow approackt@n available and appropriate, to
comparable market values. As mentioned in the Gdbslection above, the Company’s public market taliziation sustained a decline after
December 31, 2012, to a value below the net booliog value of its equity. As such, the Comparsted its long-lived assets related to the
DMS reporting unit as of December 31, 2012 andethas the undiscounted cash flows, determinechiese assets were not impaired. The
Company re-evaluated its long-lived assets for impent as part of its annual impairment test duthgyquarter ending June 30, 2013 and
determined that there was no indicator of impairmen

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as theganeed. The Company did not incur any advertisiogts for fiscal year 2013.
Advertising costs were $0.2 million for both fisgalars 2012 and 2011.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using art asddiability approach to record deferred taxidse Company’s deferred income
tax assets represent temporary differences betthedinancial statement carrying amount and theébtesis of existing assets and liabilities tha
will result in deductible amounts in future yeaBssed on estimates, the carrying value of the Cogipaet deferred tax assets assumes that
is more likely than not that the Company will bdeato generate sufficient future taxable incoméhim respective tax jurisdictions. The
Company’s judgments regarding future profitabilitgy change due to future market conditions, chaimg¥sS. or international tax laws and
other factors.
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Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s foreign operations are subject thvaxge rate fluctuations. The majority of the Conypmsales and expenses are
denominated in U.S. dollars. The functional curgefoe the majority of the Company’s foreign subaiiés is the U.S. dollar. For these
subsidiaries, assets and liabilities denominatddrigign currency are remeasured into U.S. doBaaurrent exchange rates for monetary asse
and liabilities and historical exchange rates fmnmonetary assets and liabilities. Net revenud, @fagvenue and expenses are generally
remeasured at average exchange rates in effecigdesich period. Gains and losses from foreign noyreemeasurement are included in other
income (expense), net. Certain foreign subsidiatésignate the local currency as their functionatency. For those subsidiaries, the assets
and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollar@athange rates in effect at the balance sheetldatame and expense items are translated at
average exchange rates for the period. The foigrency translation adjustments are included cualated other comprehensive loss as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. Foreigrency transaction gains or losses are recdrdether income (expense), net and were
not material for any period presented.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two componentg]ass) income and other comprehensive income)l@3ther comprehensive
income (loss) refers to revenue, expenses, gaidsioases that under GAAP are recorded as an etevhstockholderséquity but are exclud:
from net (loss) income. The Company’s comprehenisiveme (loss) and accumulated other compreheihsgeconsists of foreign currency
translation adjustments from those subsidiariesusintg the U.S. dollar as their functional currenayrealized gains and losses on marketable
securities categorized as available$ate and unrealized gains and losses on the ihtatesswap. Total accumulated other compreheriass
is displayed as a separate component of stocki®ldeuity.

Derivative Instrument

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2012, then@bany entered into an interest rate swap agreciméwidge the interest rate exposure
relating to its borrowing under its term loan. T®empany does not speculate using derivative ingnisn The Company entered into this
derivative instrument arrangement solely for thgppae of risk management.

The current and noncurrent portion of the interatd swap is recorded in accrued liabilities arféptiabilities, noncurrent, respectively,
on the consolidated balance sheets at fair valsedoapon quoted market prices. Changes in thedhie of this interest rate swap are recot
in other comprehensive income (loss) because tinep@ny has designated the swap as a cash flow hédges or losses on the interest rate
swap as reported in other comprehensive incoms)(lre classified to interest expense in the pdtiechedged item affects earnings. If the
term loan ceases to exist, any associated amoepasted in other comprehensive income (loss) arlassified to earnings at that time. Any
hedge ineffectiveness is recognized immediateBaimings in the current period. Refer to Note ftDior additional information regarding t
Company’s credit facility and interest rate swap.

Loss Contingencies

The Company is subject to the possibility of vasitmss contingencies arising in the ordinary coofdeusiness. Management considers
the likelihood of loss or impairment of an assethar incurrence of a liability, as well as its &hito reasonably estimate the amount of loss, in
determining loss contingencies. An estimated losgingency is accrued when it is probable thatsseghas been impaired or a liability has
been incurred and the amount of loss can be reboestimated. The Company regularly evaluatesetiiinformation available to its
management to determine whether such accrualsasbhewdjusted and whether new accruals are required
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From time to time, the Company is involved in diggsy litigation and other legal actions. The Comypatords a charge equal to at least
the minimum estimated liability for a loss contingg only when both of the following conditions anet: (i) information available prior to
issuance of the financial statements indicatesitlimprobable that an asset had been impairedliability had been incurred at the date of the
financial statements, and (ii) the range of logsloareasonably estimated. The actual liabilitgrig such matters may be materially different
from the Company'’s estimates, which could resuthanneed to adjust the liability and record addil expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures and records the expensalriatck-based transactions based on the faiesaf stock-based payment
awards, as determined on the date of grant. Tmatithe fair value of stock options, the Compagigated the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. In applying the Black-Scholes option pricingdel, the Company’s determination of the faiueabf the stock option is affected by
assumptions regarding a number of highly compleksarbjective variables. These variables includéabel not limited to, the Company’s
expected stock price volatility over the term af #tock options and the employees’ actual and giexjestock option exercise and pre-vesting
employment termination behaviors. The fair valueestricted stock units is determined based orlibeing price of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant.

For awards with graded vesting the Company recegrstock-based compensation expense over theiteqgsvice period using the
straight-line method, based on awards ultimatepyeeted to vest. The Company estimates future taris at the date of grant and revises the
estimates, if necessary, in subsequent periodadutbforfeitures differ from those estimates. RefeNote 11, Stock Benefit Plans, for
additional information regarding stock-based consadon.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribytlan covering all U.S. employees. There were noleyep contributions under this
plan for fiscal years 2013, 2012 or 2011.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the FASB issued an update tadbt@unting standard for goodwill. The revised dtaid update allows entities to use
a qualitative approach to test goodwill for impadmh It permits an entity to first perform a quatite assessment to determine whether it is
more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a refrmy unit is less than its carrying value. If itdsncluded that this is the case, it is necessary t
perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. T@mpany adopted this accounting standard updategdtlre second quarter of fiscal 2013
as a result of its market capitalization sustairargignificant decline subsequent to the quarieelyod ended December 31, 2012. The
Company determined that it was more-likely-than+that the fair value of one of its reporting unitas less than the carrying amount. As a
result, the two-step impairment test related todyath was performed as of December 31, 2012. Refétote 2, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, for additional information erging the two-step impairment test related to gathd

In July 2012, the FASB issued an update to thewdang standard for intangibles. The revised stashdadate allows entities to use a
qualitative approach to test indefinite-lived ingirie assets for impairment. It permits an entityitst perform a qualitative assessment to
determine whether it is more-likely-than-not thad fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible et less than its carrying value. If it is
concluded that this is the case, it is necessapgtform the currently prescribed quantitative impant test by comparing the fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible asset with its carryimglue. Otherwise, the quantitative impairment iesiot required. The Company plans to adop
this accounting standard update by the fourth quartfiscal 2014 and does not believe that theptidi will have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued an update tatheunting standard for accumulated other compséheimcome (loss). The revised
standard update requires entities to present irdtbom about significant items reclassified out of@mnulated other comprehensive income
(loss) by component either on the face of the state where net (loss) income is presented or aparate disclosure in the notes to the
financial statements. This accounting standard tgpddl become effective for the Company in theffiquarter of fiscal year 2014.

In July 2013, the FASB issued a new accountingdstechupdate on the financial presentation of urgeized tax benefits. The new
guidance provides that a liability related to ane@ognized tax benefit would be presented as remuof a deferred tax asset for a net
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss.¢ax credit carryforward if such settlement isuieed or expected in the event the uncertair
position is disallowed. The new guidance becomfeside July 1, 2015 for the Company and it shcaddapplied prospectively to
unrecognized tax benefits that exist at the effeatiate, although retrospective application is fitech The Company is currently assessing th
impacts of this new guidance.

3. Net (Loss) Income Attributable to Common Stockhlalers and Net (Loss) Income per Share

Basic net (loss) income per share is computed \adidg net (loss) income by the weighted averagalver of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted net (los€pime per share is computed by using the weightethge number of shares of common
stock outstanding, including potential dilutive sf®of common stock assuming the dilutive effeaubtanding stock options and restricted
stock units using the treasury stock method.

The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net (loss) income per share attablgt to common stockholders:

Years Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011
(in thousands, excep
per share data)

Numerator:
Basic and Diluted
Net (loss) incom $(67,377) $13,00: $27,21:
Denominator
Basic:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipuaiimg basic net (loss) income per
share 42 ,81¢ 45,84¢ 46,22:
Diluted:
Weighted average shares of common stock used ipaiimg basic net (loss) income per
share 42 ,81¢ 45,84¢ 46,22:
Weighted average effect of dilutive securiti
Stock options — 1,00¢ 2,84t
Restricted stock unit — 9 63
Weighted average shares of common stock used iputimg diluted net (loss) income per
share 42,81¢ 46,85¢ 49,13(
Net (loss) income per shal
Basic $ (159 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢
Diluted ® $ (159 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5f
Securities excluded from weighted average shamd inscomputing diluted net (loss) income per s
because the effect would have been-dilutive: @ 9,413 6,74¢ 2,68¢
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Diluted EPS does not reflect any potential comntonksrelating to stock options or restricted stoolits due to net loss incurred for the
year ended June 30, 2013. The assumed issuanog atlditional shares would be &dilutive.

These weighted shares relate to anti-dilutive stptions and restricted stock units as calculas#aguthe treasury stock method and
could be dilutive in the future

4. Fair Value Measurements and Marketable Securitie

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed on sale of an asset or paid to transfextdity (“exit price”) in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the mmeasent date. The FASB has established a fair ‘akrarchy that distinguishes between
(1) market participant assumptions developed basadarket data obtained from independent sourdese(@able inputs) and (2) an entity’s
own assumptions about market participant assunptieneloped based on the best information availatitee circumstances (unobservable
inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of thoeaad levels, which gives the highest priorityuttadjusted quoted prices in active markets fol
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and thevést priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy urttierguidance for fair value measurement are destiielow:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fivaenarkets for identical assets or liabilitiesicthg inputs are based upon
guoted prices in active markets for identical aseefiabilities that the reporting entity has Higlity to access at the measurement date.
The valuations are based on quoted prices of terlying security that are readily and regularlgiéable in an active market, and
accordingly, a significant degree of judgment is iegjuired. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Compaed Level 1 assumptions for
money market funds.

Level 2 —Pricing inputs are based upon quoted prices follairmstruments in active markets, quoted priee@sdentical or simils
instruments in markets that are not active, andahbdsed valuation techniques for which all sigifit assumptions are observable in
the market or can be corroborated by observabl&enhdata for substantially the full term of theetsor liabilities. As of June 30, 2013
and 2012, the Company used Level 2 assumptiorissfak.S. municipal securities, certificates of dgipg acquisition-related promissory
notes, term loan, and interest rate swap.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are generally unobservdibighe assets or liabilities and include situasiavhere there is little, if any,
market activity for the investment. The inputs itlte determination of fair value require managefsgntigment or estimation of
assumptions that market participants would useiging the assets or liabilities. The fair values therefore determined using model-
based techniques that include option pricing mqdiésounted cash flow models, and similar techesgiés of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
the Company did not have any Level 3 financial &sseliabilities.
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The Company'’s financial assets and liabilities fatume 30, 2013 and 2012 were categorized as fellowhe fair value hierarchy (in
thousands):

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2013 Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant Other
Active Markets
for Identical Assets Observable
Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
Assets:
U.S. municipal securitie $ — $ 25,54« $25,54¢
Certificates of depos — 16,92: 16,92:
Money market fund 38,46¢ — 38,46¢
$ 38,46¢ $ 42,467 $80,93:
Liabilities:
Acquisitior-related promissory note® $ — $ 3,87t $ 3,87¢
Term loan® — 88,80: 88,80:
Interest rate swa — 65E 65E
$ — $ 93,33 $93,33:
Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2012 Usil
Quoted Prices in Significant Other
Active Markets
for Identical Assets Observable
Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
Assets:
U.S. municipal securitie $ — $ 30,86 $ 30,86
Certificates of depos — 11,47( 11,47(
Money market fund 21,45¢ — 21,45¢
$ 21,45¢ $ 42,33 $ 63,78¢
Liabilities:
Acquisitior-related promissory not«® $ — $ 12,21t $ 12,21¢
Term loan® — 95,38: 95,38
Interest rate swa — 1,13¢ 1,13¢
$ — $ 108,73: $108,73«

@ These liabilities are carried at historical costloa Compan's consolidated balance she

Marketable Securities

All liquid investments with maturities of three ntha or less at the date of purchase are classifiaxhsh equivalents. Investments with
maturities greater than three months at the dapeiathase are classified as marketable securitres Company’s marketable securities have
been classified and accounted for as availablesdite: Management determines the appropriate dtzgfin of its investments at the time of
purchase and reevaluates the available-for-salgra®®n as of each balance sheet date. Availablsdle securities are carried at fair value,
with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, teplosis a component of stockholders’ equity.
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The following table summarizes unrealized gainslasdes related to available-for-sale securitiéd hg the Company as of June 30,

2013 and 2012 (in thousands):

U.S. municipal securities
Certificates of depos
Money market fund

U.S. municipal securities
Certificates of depos
Money market fund

5. Balance Sheet Components
Accounts Receivable, Net
Accounts receivable, net are comprised of the faglig (in thousands):

Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accour
Less: Allowance for sales retur

Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, net is comprised of thewiohg (in thousands):

Computer equipment

Software

Furniture and fixture

Leasehold improvemen

Internal software development co

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza
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As of June 30, 201:

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$25,53¢ $ 6 $ — $25,54+
16,94¢ — 22 16,92:
38,46¢ — — 38,46¢
$80,94¢ $ 6 $ 22 $80,93:
As of June 30, 201:
Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$30,85: $ 1C $ — $30,86:
11,48( — 10 11,47(
21,45¢ — — 21,45¢
$63,78¢ $ 1C $ 10 $63,78¢
June 30
2013 2012
$40,41° $55,63
(264) (424)
1,762 2,38¢
$38,39 $52,83(
June 30,
2013 2012
$12,29: $ 10,86
9,14¢ 7,11¢
2,78( 2,72¢
1,86% 1,891
21,10¢ 18,59
47,18¢ 41,19:
(37,48) 32,43¢
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Depreciation expense was $3.3 million, $3.3 milleord $3.6 million for fiscal years 2013, 2012 a@d 2 Amortization expense related
to internal software development costs was $2.8anjl$1.9 million and $1.5 million for fiscal yeaR013, 2012 and 2011.

Accrued liabilities
Accrued liabilities are comprised of the followifig thousands):

June 30
2013 2012
Accrued media costs $14,65' $15,48t
Accrued compensation and related expenses andpayable 8,17¢ 9,09¢
Accrued professional service and other businessresqs 8,061 4,881
Total accrued liabilitie: $30,90:¢ $29,46:

6. Acquisitions
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2013
The Company did not complete any acquisitions dufiscal year 2013.

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012
Acquisition of Ziff Davis Enterprise

On February 3, 2012, the Company acquired certsnta of Ziff Davis Enterprise from Enterprise Me@iroup, Inc., a New York-based
online media and marketing company in the busibedsisiness technology market, for $17.3 milliorcash, to broaden its registered user
database and brand name in the business-to-busgnds®logy market. The results of the acquiredtassf Ziff Davis Enterprise have been
included in the consolidated financial statemeirtsesthe acquisition date.

Amount

(in thousands
Cash $ 17,27(

The asset acquisition was accounted for as a psediiasiness combination. The Company allocateduhehase price to tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable mgible assets acquired based on their estimateddhies. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as gitloditve goodwill is deductible for tax purposeselfollowing table summarizes the
preliminary allocation of the purchase price aneléstimated useful lives of the identifiable intdahgassets acquired as of the date of the
acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated
Fair Estimated
Value Useful Life

Liabilities assumed $ (25t
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst 4,12( 5 years
Content 50C 2 years
Website/trade/domain nam 4,63( 5 years
Registered user databe 6,32( 3 years
Goodwill 1,95¢ Indefinite

$17,27(
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Acquisition of NarrowCast Group, LLC (“IT Busineskdge” or “ITBE")

On August 25, 2011, the Company acquired 100%ebthtstanding equity interests of ITBE, in exchafugeb24.0 million in cash, to
broaden its registered user database and mediasaccthe business-to-business technology market r@sults of ITBES operations have be
included in the consolidated financial statemeirtsesthe acquisition date.

Amount

(in thousands
Cash $ 23,96

The ITBE acquisition was accounted for as a purelasiness combination. The Company allocated thehpse price to tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable mgible assets acquired based on their estimateddhies. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as gitloditve goodwill is deductible for tax purposeserlfollowing table summarizes the
preliminary allocation of the purchase price aneléstimated useful lives of the identifiable intdahgyassets acquired as of the date of the
acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated
Fair Estimated
Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 3,591
Liabilities assumei (1,869
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationst 3,23( 5 years
Content 42C 2 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,22( 5 years
Registered user databe 4,22( 3 years
Noncompete agreemer 10C 3 years
Goodwill 12,04 Indefinite
$23,96

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012

During fiscal year 2012, in addition to the acqtdsi of certain assets of Ziff Davis Enterprised dne acquisition of ITBE, the Company
also acquired operations from eleven other onlungiphing businesses in exchange for an aggred#t®4o6 million in cash, $3.1 million in
non-interest-bearing, promissory notes payable ayggriod of two years, secured by the assets i@ahjin respect to which the notes were
issued and $2.1 million in non-interest-bearingsegured promissory notes payable over a period®fyear. The Company also recorded $4.!
million in earn-out payments related to a prioripgracquisition as an addition to goodwill. The @ggate purchase price recorded was as
follows:

Amount
Cash $14,62(
Fair value of debt (net of $99 of imputed intert 9,69¢
$24,31¢

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedmscombinations. In each of the acquisitionss@Gompany allocated the purchase
price to identifiable intangible assets acquiresdobon their estimated fair values. The excessepurchase price over the aggregate fair v
was recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
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deductible for tax purposes. The following tablenstarizes the preliminary allocation of the purchaisee and the estimated useful lives of
identifiable intangible assets acquired as of te @f the acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationships $ 43t 3-5 years
Content 4,54( 2-5 years
Website/trade/domain nam 1,25( 4-8 years
Acquired technology and oth 561 4-5 years
Noncompete agreemer 87 1-3.5 year:
Goodwill 17,44: Indefinite

$ 24,31¢

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011
Acquisition of Carlnsurance.com

On November 5, 2010, the Company acquired 100%ebtitstanding shares of Carlnsurance.com, Ifdgrada-based online insurance
business, and certain of its affiliated companiegxchange for $49.7 million in cash paid uporstig of the acquisition. The results of
Carlnsurance.com’s operations have been includ#tkiconsolidated financial statements since thyeiaition date. The Company acquired
Carlnsurance.com for its capacity to generate entigitors in the financial services market. Thealtpurchase price recorded was as follows:

Amount

(in thousands
Cash $ 49,65t

The Carlnsruance.com acquisition was accounteds@r purchase business combination. The Compargatdd the purchase price to
tangible assets acquired, liabilities assumed dedtifiable intangible assets acquired based dn ¢sémated fair values. The excess of the
purchase price over the aggregate fair value wawded as goodwill. The goodwill is deductible fax purposes. The following table
summarizes the allocation of the purchase pricetlam@stimated useful lives of the identifiableimgible assets acquired as of the date of the
acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated
Fair Estimated
Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 661
Liabilities assumei (807)
Advertiser relationship 26C 6-7 year:
Content 16,13( 7 years
Website/trade/domain nam 4,35( 10 years
Acquired technology and othe 3,00( 2-4 year:
Noncompete agreemer 4C 4 years
Goodwill 26,02: Indefinite
$49,65¢
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Acquisition of Insurance.com

On July 26, 2010, the Company acquired the websiséness of Insurance.com, from Insurance.com Grogp an Ohio-based online
insurance business, in exchange for $33.0 millioceish paid upon closing of the acquisition andgbeance of a $2.6 million non-interest-
bearing, unsecured promissory note payable inmstallment on the second anniversary of the adgprisilate. The results of Insurance.com’s
operations have been included in the consolidatesh€ial statements since the acquisition date.Jdmpany acquired Insurance.com for its
capacity to generate online visitors in the finahservices market. The total purchase price rexzbweas as follows:

Amount

(in thousands
Cash $ 33,00(

Fair value of debt (net of $157 of imputed intey: 2,48
$ 35,48

The Insurance.com acquisition was accounted far@schase business combination. The Company &didthe purchase price to
tangible assets and identifiable intangible assegsiired based on their estimated fair values.eXeess of the purchase price over the
aggregate fair value was recorded as goodwill. gdawill is deductible for tax purposes. The follog/table summarizes the allocation of the
purchase price and the estimated useful livesefdbntifiable intangible assets acquired as ofitte of the acquisition (in thousands):

Estimated Estimated

Fair Value Useful Life
Tangible assets acquired $ 1,204
Advertiser relationship 2,12C 7 years
Content 4,29( 4 years
Website/trade/domain nam 2,94( 10 years
Acquired technology and othe 5,53( 2-4 years
Noncompete agreemer 60 5 years
Goodwill 19,33¢ Indefinite

$ 35,48

Other Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011

During fiscal year 2011, in addition to the acctigsis of Carlnsurance.com and Insurance.com, thepaoy acquired operations from
other online publishing businesses in exchang&4or million in cash paid upon closing of the asgtions and $0.9 million in non-interest-
bearing, unsecured promissory notes payable operiad of time ranging from one to three years. Tloenpany also recorded $4.5 million in
earn-out payments related to a prior period actioiisas addition to goodwill. The aggregate pureharice recorded was as follows:

Amount

(in thousands
Cash $ 9,22¢

Fair value of debt (net of $36 of imputed intert 82¢
$ 1005
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The acquisitions were accounted for as purchasedmsscombinations. In each of the acquisitionss@Gompany allocated the purchase
price to identifiable intangible assets acquiresdobon their estimated fair values. The exceslsepuirchase price over the aggregate fair v
was recorded as goodwill. Goodwill deductible fax purposes is $7.9 million. The following tablersuarizes the allocation of the purchase
prices of these other acquisitions and the estidnaseful lives of the identifiable intangible assatquired as of the respective dates of these
acquisitions (in thousands):

Estimated Estimated
Fair_Value Useful Life
Customer/publisher relationships $ 23 3-5 years
Content 1,274 3-5 years
Website/trade/domain nam 541 4-5 years
Noncompete agreemer 88 1-3 years
Goodwill 7,91¢ Indefinite
$ 10,05(

Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)

The unaudited pro forma financial information ie ttable below summarizes the combined results efatjpns for the Company and
other companies that were acquired since the begjruf fiscal year 2012. The pro forma financidbirmation includes the business
combination accounting effects resulting from thaseguisitions including amortization charges frorguared intangible assets and the related
tax effects as though the aforementioned compavees acquired as of the beginning of fiscal yedr2@here were no acquisitions during
fiscal year 2013; as such the results of operafionghe Company’s acquisitions are included inrdmults of operations for the Company for
fiscal year 2013. The unaudited pro forma finanitifdrmation as presented below is for informatigmarposes only and is not indicative of
the results of operations that would have beereaeli if the acquisitions had taken place at thénpdg of fiscal year 2012.

Fiscal Year Endec

June 30, 2012

(in thousands)
Net revenue $ 378,89!
Net (loss) incomi 13,60¢
Basic net (loss) income per shi $ 0.3C
Diluted net (loss) income per sh: $ 0.2¢
7. Intangible Assets, Net and Gooduwiill
Intangible assets, net consisted of the followinglousands):
June 30, 201: June 30, 2012
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Customer/publisher/advertiser relationships $ 37,038 $ (28,32) $ 8,71« $ 37,048 $ (23,017) $14,02¢
Content 62,02¢ (43,059 18,97: 62,07¢ (34,430 27,64¢
Website/trade/domain nam 31,59 (17,407 14,19« 31,61¢ (12,81%) 18,80(
Acquired technology and othe 36,42¢ (27,827 8,60¢ 31,47, (19,507 11,97(

$167,08! $(116,59) $50,48¢ $162,21. $ (89,769 $72,44
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Amortization of intangible assets was $26.8 mil]i$26.0 million and $22.2 million for fiscal yee2613, 2012 and 2011.

The Company licensed certain patents for $4.9 onilduring the second quarter of fiscal year 20108, these patents and related short
term payables are recorded in other intangibletasset and accrued liabilities, respectively, lne d¢ondensed consolidated balance sheet.
Based on the Company’s analysis, using a reliehfroyalty method, the Company determined that &iguoof the license fee for these patents
represents the cumulative cost relating to pri@rgeAs such, the Company recorded $2.4 millioa elsarge to cost of revenue during the
second quarter of fiscal year 2013. The remainingumnt will be amortized over the remaining lifetbé patents.

Amortization expense for the Company’s acquisitielated intangible assets as of June 30, 2013afdr ef the next five years and
thereafter is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending June 30,

2014 $19,52¢
2015 12,32¢
2016 8,76¢
2017 6,04:
2018 2,19¢
Thereaftel 1,62¢

$50,48¢

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillffecal years 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in Hamals):

DMS DSS Total
Balance at June 30, 2011 $210,62! $1,231 $211,85t
Additions 31,44( — 31,44(
Other (247) — (247)
Balance at June 30, 20 $241,81¢ $1,231 $243,04¢
Additions — — —
Other (243) — (247
Impairment (92,350) — (92,350
Balance at June 30, 20 $149,22! $1,231 $150,45¢

The additions to goodwill relate to the Companycgusitions as described in Note 6, Acquisitioms] arimarily reflect the value of the
synergies expected to be generated from combihimgbmpany’s technology and know-how with the aeaglibusinesses’ access to online
visitors. Any change in goodwill amounts resultingm foreign currency translation are presentetiiber” in the above table. The
impairment charge recorded during fiscal year 2818:scribed in Note 2, Summary of Significant Aacting Policies.
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The components of (loss) income before income taress follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
us $(89,087) $23,957 $44,27(
Foreign (4,886) 17t 831

$(93,979) $24,13: $45,10:
The components of the (benefit from) provisiontiotes are as follows (in thousands):
Fiscal Year Ended June 30
2013 2012 2011

Current

Federa $ 3,38¢ $10,41° $18,58:

State 577 413 2,741

Foreign 36E 291 18¢€
Total current provision for income tax 4,33( 11,12 21,50¢
Deferred

Federa $(29,767) $ (719 $(3,260)

State (1,249 664 (329

Foreign 81 65 (37)
Total deferred (benefit from) provision for incoraxes (30,93) 10 (3,629
(Benefit from) provision for income tax $(26,60)) $11,13: $17,88:

The reconciliation between the statutory federabime tax and the Compagsyeffective tax rates as a percentage of incomarédficom:

taxes is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2013 2012 2011
Federal tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
States taxes, net of federal ben 0.€% 3.7% 3.2%
Foreign rate differentic (1.2)% — —
Stocl-based compensation expel (1.97% 8.2% 2.8%
Change in valuation allowan: (1.0% — —
Impairment of goodwil (4.6)% — —
Other _08% (8%  _(LI%
Effective income tax rat 28.2% 46.1% 39.%
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The components of the current and long-term deddar assets, net are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2013 2012

Current:

Reserves and accrus $ 2,88: $ 5,43:

Stock options 2,64 2,044

Deferred revenu 95 35

Other 1,12¢ 154
Total current deferred tax ass $ 6,75¢ $ 7,66¢
Noncurrent;

Reserves and accru: $ 2,067 $ —

Stock options 7,942 6,131

Intangible assel 32,66¢ 3,44:

Fixed asset (1,447) (1,62¢)

Foreign — 6

Other — 495
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass 41,23¢ 8.,44¢

Valuation allowanct (947 —
Noncurrent deferred tax assets, $40,28¢ $ 8,44¢
Total deferred tax assets, | $47,04: $16,11:

Management periodically evaluates the realizabditthe deferred tax assets and recognizes thiectagfit only as reassessment
demonstrates that they are realizable. At such, tifitds determined that it is more likely thaptrthat the deferred tax assets are realizable, tt
valuation allowance will be adjusted. Based onhiséory of losses and the continued investmertiénimdia operations, it is more likely than
not the deferred tax assets will not be realizethénforeseeable future. As of June 30, 2013, trafgany determined that a valuation allowe
of $0.9 million is required on the deferred taxeasof the India subsidiary.

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had no operabisgjdarry-forwards for federal or state incomeptasposes. The Company has
California research and development tax credityeBmwards of approximately $1.0 million to offdeture state taxable income. The state
research and development tax credit carry-forwdodsot have an expiration date and may be caroedaird indefinitely.

United States federal income taxes have not bemrndad for the $1.8 million of cumulative undistiled earnings of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries as of June 30, 2013. The Cayipgresent intention is that such undistributathangs be permanently reinvested
offshore, with the exception of the undistributedréngs of its Canadian subsidiary. The Companylavba subject to additional United States
taxes if these earnings were repatriated. The atafuhe unrecognized deferred income tax liabitédated to these earnings is not practical t
estimate.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending ameurftunrecognized tax benefits is as follows (iougands):

Fiscal Year
2013 2012 2011
Balance at the beginning of the year $2,43¢ $2,31- $2,01¢
Gross increase- current period tax positior 38¢ 351 492
Gross increase- prior period tax position 132 — —
Reductions as a result of lapsed statute of limitat (265) (227) (195)
Balance at the end of the ye $2,69:2 $2,43¢ $2,317

The Company’s policy is to include interest andgiées related to unrecognized tax benefits withenCompany’s benefit from
(provision for) income taxes. As of June 30, 2ah8 Company has accrued $0.7 million for interest penalties related to the unrecognized
tax benefits. The balance of unrecognized tax liksrefid the related interest and penalties is oszbas a noncurrent liability on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

As of June 30, 2013, unrecognized tax benefit20f fillion, if recognized, would affect the Compameffective tax rate. The Compe
does not anticipate that the amount of existinggeoognized tax benefits will significantly increawedecrease within the next 12 months.

The Company is no longer subject to U.S. fedetatesand local, or non-U.S., income tax examinationtax authorities for years before
2008. The Company files income tax returns in thééd States, various U.S. states and certaingoreirisdictions. As of June 30, 2013, the
tax years 2010 through 2012 remain open in the, th8.tax years 2008 through 2012 remain opendrvénious state jurisdictions, and the tax
years 2008 through 2012 remain open in variouddorgirisdictions.

9. Debt
Promissory Notes

The Company did not issue any promissory notesaalyear 2013. During fiscal years 2012 and 2@14 Company issued total
promissory notes for the acquisition of businesge®5.1 million and $3.3 million net of imputed énest amounts of $0.1 million and $0.2
million. All of the promissory notes are non-intstrdearing. For these notes, interest was imputel that the notes carry an interest rate
commensurate with that available to the Compartiiénmarket for similar debt instruments. Accretidpromissory notes of $0.1 million,
$0.3 million and $0.5 million was recorded as iatrexpense during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and.2ZDdriain of the promissory notes are
collateralized by the assets acquired with restgeathich the notes were issued.

Credit Facility

In November 2011, the Company entered into the iI8ké&anended and Restated Revolving Credit and TesemlAgreement (“Second
Loan Agreement”) with Comerica Bank (the “Banketadministrative agent and lead arranger. Therfselcoan Agreement consists of a
$100.0 million five-year term loan, with annualmaripal amortization of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20% and 5084 a $200.0 million five-year
revolving credit line.

On February 15, 2013, the Company entered int&-itts®¢ Amendment to Credit Agreement and Amendme@uaranty (“First
Amendment to the Second Loan Agreement”) with thalBto, among other things: (1) amend the definitbadjusted EBITDA, effective as
of December 31, 2012, to exclude extraordinaryasr-recurring non-cash expenses of losses inclughitgput limitation, goodwill
impairments,
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and any extraordinary or non-recurring cash expemsan aggregate amount not to exceed $5.0 miltiothe life of the Second Loan
Agreement; and (2) reduce the $200.0 million fear revolving credit line portion of the facility $100.0 million, effective as of February
2013.

Borrowings under the Second Loan Agreement areredday substantially all of the Company’s assetierest is payable at specified
margins above either the Eurodollar Margin or thienB Rate. The interest rate varies based uporati®of funded debt to adjusted EBITDA
and ranges from Eurodollar Margin + 1.625% to 2%9#% Prime + 1.00% for the revolving credit lineddnom Eurodollar Margin + 2.00% to
2.75% or Prime + 1.00% for the term loan. AdjusEBITDA is defined as net (loss) income less berfadiin (provision for) taxes, depreciati
expense, amortization expense, stock-based contfnsapense, interest and other income (expeasgqyisition costs for business
combinations, extraordinary or non-recurring cagieases in an aggregate amount not to exceed $tidhrfor the list of this Second Loan
Agreement. The revolving credit line requires anual facility fee of 0.375% of the revolving credite capacity.

The Second Loan Agreement expires in November ZDié credit facility agreement restricts the Comypaability to raise additional
debt financing and pay dividends, and also requiresCompany to comply with other nonfinancial aeaets. In addition, the Company is
required to maintain financial ratios computed@®os:

1. A minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1%4dlculated as the ratio of: (i) trailing twelve ntbs of adjusted EBITDA to
(ii) the sum of capital expenditures, net cashrégeexpense, cash taxes, cash dividends anadgraiielve months payments of
indebtedness. Payment of unsecured indebtednessligled to the degree that sufficient unused xéwglcredit line exists such that the
relevant debt payment could be made from the cfaditity.

2. A maximum funded debt to adjusted EBITDA rati®dl, calculated as the ratio of: (i) the sum Ibbaligations owed to lending
institutions, the face amount of any letters ofitteéndebtedness owed in connection with acquisitelated notes and indebtedness o
in connection with capital lease obligations td tfiailing twelve months of adjusted EBITDA.

The Company was in compliance with the covenantee@Second Loan Agreement, as amended by theAfirshdment, as of June 30,
2013. The Company was in compliance with the contnaf the Second Loan Agreement as of June 3@.201

Upfront arrangement fees incurred in connectiomwhie First Amendment totaled $0.2 million and weegerred and will be amortized
over the remaining term of the arrangement. In ection with the reduction of the revolving credlitd capacity, during the third quarter of
fiscal 2013 the Company accelerated amortizaticappfoximately $0.7 million of unamortized deferrgafront costs.

As of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, $90.0 mifiied $97.5 million were outstanding under the tkyam. There were no outstanding
balances under the revolving credit line as of Bhe013 or 2012.

Interest Rate Swa

As discussed in the derivative instrument sectioNaote 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Poligithe Company entered into an
interest rate swap to reduce its exposure to tianiial impact of changing interest rates undeeits debt. The swap encompasses the
principal balances scheduled to be outstandind darmary 1, 2014 and thereafter, such principawarhtotaling $85.0 million in January,
2014 and amortizing to $35.0 million in Novembed 80The effective date of the swap is April 9, 20dith a maturity date of November 4,
2016. At June 30, 2013, the Company had approxiyn&85.0 million of notional amount outstandingtive swap agreement that exchanges &
variable interest rate base (Eurodollar marginkféixed interest rate of 0.97% over the term efdigreement. This interest rate swap is
designated as a cash flow hedge of the interestisk attributable to forecasted variable intepestments. The effective portion of the fair
value gains or losses on this swap are includedcasnponent of accumulated other comprehensive loss
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At June 30, 2013, the fair value of the interets gwvap liability was $0.7 million, of which $0.6llion was classified in current accrued
liabilities and $0.1 million was classified as narrent other liabilities, and the hedge effectieetion of the interest rate swap was $0.7
million.

Debt Maturities
The maturities of debt as of June 30, 2013 weffelksvs (in thousands):

Promissory

Credit

Year Ending June 30, Notes Facility
2014 $ 3,36¢ $ 12,50(
2015 56C 17,50(
2016 5C 20,00(
2017 — 40,00(

2018 — —
3,97¢ 90,00(
Less: imputed interest and unamortized disco (99) (1,199
Less: current portio (3,28¢) (12,147
Noncurrent portion of det $  58¢ $ 76,66(

Letters of Credit

The Company has a $0.4 million letter of crediteggnent with a financial institution that is usedcalateral for fidelity bonds placed
with an insurance company and a $0.5 million letfezredit agreement with a financial institutidrat is used as collateral for the Company’s
corporate headquarters’ operating lease. The datfecredit automatically renew annually withouteaxdment unless cancelled by the financial
institutions within 30 days of the annual expiratitate.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company leases office space and equipment matecancelable operating leases with various etipit dates through fiscal year
2018. Rent expense for fiscal years 2013, 2012284d was $3.4 million, $3.4 million and $3.3 millioThe Company recognizes rent expens
on a straight-line basis over the lease periodaaedues for rent expense incurred but not paid.

Future annual minimum lease payments under allamcelable operating leases as of June 30, 2013agdlows (in thousands):

Operating
Year Ending June 30, Leases
2014 $ 3,55¢
2015 3,31(
2016 3,191
2017 2,74¢
2018 2,792
Thereaftel 93€

$16,53:
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In February 2010, the Company entered into a lagssement for its corporate headquarters locat@8@iT ower Lane, Foster City,
California. The term of the lease began on Noverib@010 and expires on October 31, 2018. The Cagnpas the option to extend the term
of the lease twice by one additional year. The migritase rent was abated for the first year ofehse, was $0.1 million in the second year
is $0.2 million in the current lease year. In thkkdwing years the monthly base rent will increapproximately 3% annually.

Guarantor Arrangements

The Company has agreements whereby it indemntBexfficers and directors for certain events orusmnces while the officer or
director is, or was, serving at the Company’s retjiresuch capacity. The term of the indemnificatieriod is for the officer or director’'s
lifetime. The maximum potential amount of futureypeents the Company could be required to make uthése indemnification agreements is
unlimited; however, the Company has a directoraifider insurance policy that limits its exposuredaenables the Company to recover a
portion of any future amounts paid under certaiourhstances and subject to deductibles and exalsisis a result of its insurance policy
coverage, the Company believes the estimated dhilevof these indemnification agreements is noenet Accordingly, the Company had no
liabilities recorded for these agreements as oé Bih 2013 and June 30, 2012.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Comgeam time to time enters into standard indemntfma provisions in its agreements
with its clients. Pursuant to these provisions,Gloenpany may be obligated to indemnify its clidiotscertain losses suffered or incurred,
including losses arising from violations of appbtalaw by the Company or by its third-party pubéss, losses arising from actions or
omissions of the Company or its third party pulsish and for third-party claims that a Company pobddnfringed upon a third party’s
intellectual property rights. Where applicable, @@mpany generally limits its liabilities under fuodemnities. Subject to these limitations,
the term of such indemnity provisions is generafijerminous with the corresponding agreementsrbsbime cases survives for a short perioc
of time after termination of the agreement.

The potential amount of future payments to defameslits or settle indemnified claims under theskemnification provisions is
generally limited and the Company believes therestgd fair value of these indemnity provisionsas material, and accordingly, the Comp
had no liabilities recorded for these agreementsf dsne 30, 2013 and 2012.

Litigation
In November 2012, the Company entered into a cenfidl Settlement and Release Agreement (“SRAhwindingTree, LLC
(“Lending Tree”), under which the Company and itsolly owned subsidiaries and Lending Tree mutuadlgased the claims against each
other and the Company and its wholly owned subsetidicensed two of Lending Tree’s patents. Legdinee and the Company filed a
Stipulation of Dismissal Without Prejudice with tbaited States District Court, Western DivisionNwirth Carolina, Charlotte Division on
November 26, 2012. The court issued an Order ahi3isal Without Prejudice on January 3, 2(

In December 2012, Internet Patents CorporationG”)Filed a patent infringement lawsuit against ttempany in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Califoia, seeking a judgment that the Company had igédna patent held by IPC. The Company
received the related summons and complaint fromitP@arch 2013. On May 3, 2013, the Company filddation to Dismiss with the Court,
which is scheduled to be heard in October 2013.I&the Company denies IPC’s claims, there can beessarance that the Company will
prevail in this matter, and any adverse ruling rhaye a significant impact on its business and djpeyaesults. In addition, regardless of the
outcome of the matter, the Company may incur Sicauift legal
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fees defending the action until it is resolved. fEhis a reasonable possibility that a loss mayberred, however, an estimate of the loss or
potential range of loss, if any, associated withlitigation cannot be made as of the filing ddtéhts annual report.

In August 2011, the attorneys general of a numbsetates sent a letter of inquiry regarding margservices that the Company provi
to for-profit schools. The marketing services atissrelate to the Compasyvebsites, such as www.gibill.com, www.armystudgigicom, an
others, whose intended audience comprises sengoab@rs and veterans of the United States militEng. attorneys general expressed
concerns that the websites could mislead consuimterelieving that the websites are affiliatedhwihe government or that the featured
schools are the only ones that accept scholadtigidies (such as through the Gl Bill) from servicembers and veterans and may thus violate
the consumer protection laws of the respectiveeSt&ubsequently, the attorneys general initiatddilkinvestigative demand, requesting
information about the Company’s marketing, pricgtgicture, business relationships, and financitd déth respect to the for-profit schools
that appear on www.gibill.com and similar websitesJune 2012, the Company entered into an Assarah@oluntary Compliance agreement
(the “Agreement”) with the attorneys general. Uniter Agreement, the Company donated the URL “Gl&ilih” to the United States
Department of Veterans Affairs. The Company alseed to pay a total of $2.5 million to the settlstgtes to reimburse them for the cost of
the investigation and negotiating process, andhéuragreed to provide expanded disclosures on othigary-oriented and education-related
websites. The Company believes it is in materiahgiiance with the terms of the Agreement as of Rhe2013.

11. Stock Benefit Plans
Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Compacgrded stock-based compensation expense of $18i6nm$13.0 million, and $14.0
million resulting in the recognition of related tax benefits (loss) of $0.1 million, $0.7 roifliand $7.3 million. The Company included as
part of cash flows from financing activities a ggdeenefit of tax deductions of $0.2 million, $0.2lion and $7.5 million in fiscal
years 2013, 2012 and 2011 related to --based compensation.

Stock Incentive Plans

In November 2009, the Company’s board of directmispted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “20idehtive Plan”) and the
Company’s stockholders approved the 2010 Inceftlae in January 2010. The 2010 Incentive Plan beaffective upon the completion of
the IPO of the Company’s common stock in Febru@®302 Awards granted after January 2008 but befweatioption of the 2010 Incentive
Plan continue to be governed by the terms of tl8 Zyuity Incentive Plan (the “2008 Plan”). All standing stock awards granted before
January 2008 continue to be governed by the tefrtfedCompany’s amended and restated 1999 Equinkive Plan (the “1999 Plan”).

The 2010 Incentive Plan provides for the granhogntive stock options (“ISOs”), nonstatutory stogiions (“NQSOs”)restricted stocl
restricted stock units, stock appreciation rightsformancebased stock awards and other forms of equity cosgiem, as well as for the gre
of performance cash awards. The Company may i€0e bnly to its employees. NQSOs and all other dsvaray be granted to employees,
including officers, nonemployee directors and cdtasis.

To date, the Company has issued only ISOs, NQS@seatricted stock units under the 2010 Incentiem ASOs and NQSOs are
generally granted to employees with an exercissepqual to the market price of the Company’s comstock at the date of grant. Stock
options granted to employees generally have a @ciotal term of seven years and vest over four y&fagentinuous service, with 25 percent of
the stock options vesting on the one-year annivgsisthe date of grant and the remaining 75 pdreesting in equal monthly installments
over the three year period thereafter. Restrictecksunits granted to employees prior to fiscalryea
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2013 generally vest over five years of continuaersise, with 15 percent of the restricted stockaimesting on the one-year anniversary of the
date of grant, 60 percent vesting in equal quariegtallments over the following three years dmel temaining 25 percent vesting in equal
quarterly installments over the last year of thetivg period. Restricted stock units granted tolegges starting in fiscal year 2013 generally
vest over four years of continuous service, wittp2&cent of the restricted stock units vestingtendne-year anniversary of the date of grant
and 6.25% vesting quarterly thereafter for the A&xguarters.

An aggregate of 7,066,183 shares of the Compargmmon stock were reserved for issuance undé&tth@ Incentive Plan as of June
2013, and this amount will be increased by anytanting stock awards that expire or terminate fgr reason prior to their exercise or
settlement. The number of shares of the Comacymmon stock reserved for issuance is increasabdly through July 1, 2019 by up to fi
percent of the total number of shares of the Coyigasommon stock outstanding on the last day ofptteeeding fiscal year. The maximum
number of shares that may be issued under the [p@&ative Plan is 30,000,000. There were 4,274$28es available for issuance under the
2010 Incentive Plan as of June 30, 2013.

In November 2009, the Company’s board of directatspted the 2010 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock AlwRlan (the “Directors’
Plan”) and the stockholders approved the DirectBlah in January 2010. The Directors’ Plan becaffeeteve upon the completion of the
Company'’s IPO. The Directors’ Plan provides for #uitomatic grant of NQSOs and restricted stocksutnihon-employee directors and also
provides for the discretionary grant of NQSOs agstricted stock units. Stock options granted to nem-employee directors vest in equal
monthly installments over four years; annual gramtsxisting directors vest in equal monthly instents over one year and the initial and
annual RSU grants vest quarterly over a perioaof fears.

An aggregate of 1,170,000 shares of the Compamytsion stock were reserved for issuance under theefrs’ Plan as of June 30,
2013. This amount is increased annually, by the sig00,000 shares and the aggregate number adsbathe Company’s common stock
subject to awards granted under the Directors’ Blaing the immediately preceding fiscal year. Bheere 763,873 shares available for
issuance under the Directors’ Plan as of June G03.2

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimates the fair value of stock optiwards at the date of grant using the Black-%shoption-pricing model. Options
are granted with an exercise price equal to thevidue of the common stock as of the date of grim¢ Company calculates the weighted
average expected life of options using the singdifinethod pursuant to the accounting guidancehfamesbased payments as it does not have
sufficient historical exercise experience. Sinae@ompany does not have extensive trading histoeyCompany estimates the expected
volatility of its common stock based primarily da historical volatility and partially on the histeal volatility of comparable public companies
over the stock option’s expected term. The Comgws/no history or expectation of paying dividendste common stock. The risk-free
interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury y@lé fterm consistent with the expected term oftbek options.

The weighted average Blad&eholes model assumptions and the weighted average date fair value of employee stock optionfisical
years 2013, 2012 and 2011 were as follc

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
Expected term (in years) 4.€ 4.€ 4.€
Expected volatility 54% 55% 54%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 0.7% 1.1% 1.7%
Grant date fair valu $3.82 $5.31 $7.81
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The fair value of restricted stock units is deteved based on the closing price of the Company’snicomstock on the grant date.

Compensation expense is amortized net of estinfatégltures on a straight-line basis over the reit@iservice period of the stock-based
compensation awards.

Stock Option Award Activity
The following table summarizes the stock option gctivity under the Plans from June 30, 201 1ueJ30, 2013:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Life Intrinsic
Exercise Value
Shares Price (in years) (in thousands’
Outstanding at June 30, 2011 9,348,53! $ 10.7¢
Grantec 2,634,85I 11.3¢
Exercisec (525,999 8.9¢
Forfeited (1,120,22) 12.91
Expired (624,84) 12.7¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 9,712,311 $ 10.62 4.0¢ $6,731,85
Grantec 1,450,66. 8.52
Exercisec (120,509 3.7¢
Forfeited (612,139 10.8i
Expired (390,889 12.6¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 10,039,45 $10.31 3.3¢ $5,693,69.
Vested and expect-to-vest at June 30, 2011 9,407,47. $ 10.2¢ 3.2¢€ $5,513,74
Vested and exercisable at June 30, 2 7,799,32 $ 10.21 2.71 $4,907,35!

@ The expecte-to-vest options are the result of applying the-vesting forfeiture assumption to total outstandipgons.

The following table summarizes additional informatregarding outstanding and exercisable stoclonptat June 30, 2013.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average
Range or Exercise Price: Number of Share: Contractual Term Exercise Price Number of Share: Exercise Price
$2.00-$6.38 1,299,05! 1.6& $ 5.0t 1,209,05! $ 4.9¢
$6.5¢-$9.00 802,69! 4,51 $ 7.37 499,56¢ $ 7.6¢
$9.01-9.01 1,908,67. 2.91 $ 9.01 1,863,52 $ 9.01
$9.4(-$9.64 1,149,24. 5.2t $ 9.5¢ 296,74. $ 9.4(C
$9.81-$9.91 97,70t 3.3t $ 9.9C 87,59( $ 9.91
$10.2¢-$10.28 1,687,71. 1.6 $ 10.2¢ 1,687,67. $ 10.2¢
$10.3+$11.26 440,62 4.07 $ 10.8¢ 422,98 $ 10.8¢
$11.6%-$11.67 1,313,811 4.9¢ $ 11.67 619,60t $ 11.67%
$12.4:-$19.00 1,139,92 3.8¢ $ 17.44 991,74 $ 17.5¢
$22.5:-$22.51 200,00( 4.5¢ $ 22.51] 120,83 $ 22.51]
$2.0(-$22.51 10,039,45 3.3¢ $ 10.31 7,799,322 $ 10.21
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The following table summarizes the total intring&due, the cash received and the actual tax beufedit options exercised during fiscal
years 2013, 2012 and 201

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011

Intrinsic value $42= $1,197 $25,79¢
Cash receive 457 4,697 16,96"
Tax benefil 11z 511 9,617

As of June 30, 2013, there was $10.0 million céltanrecognized compensation expense related testew stock options which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedpof 2.48 years.

Restricted Stock Unit Activity
The following table summarizes the restricted staak activity under the Plans from June 30, 2@idune 30, 2013:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Grant Date Contractual Life Intrinsic
Value
Shares Fair Value (in years) (in thousands’
Outstanding at June 30, 2011 404,76( $ 14.2¢ 2.1 $ 5,25«
Grantec 214,74¢ 11.3i
Vested (99,47)) 10.9:
Forfeited (140,48) 13.6¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 379,55! $ 13.7¢ 1.9t $ 3,61t
Grantec 1,658,611 8.7t
Vested (87,579 6.9t
Forfeited (290,38) 10.41
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,660,20! $ 9.7C 1.47 $ 14,32¢

As of June 30, 2013, there was $11.4 million cdltonrecognized compensation expense related tiicted stock units which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 3.14 years.

12. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Repurchases

On November 3, 2011, the Board of Directors autteatia stock repurchase program allowing the Compangpurchase up to $50.0
million of its outstanding shares of its commonc&tduring fiscal year 2012, the Company repurctiag@&53,919 shares of its common stock
for a total of $45.0 million. The Company completesdrepurchase program during the first quartdisofl year 2013, purchasing 509,565
shares of its common stock for $5.0 million. Ther@any repurchased an aggregate of 5,263,484 sbfatesommon stock at a weighted
average price of $9.50 per share. Repurchases thig@rogram took place in the open market anceweade under a Rule 10b5-1 plan.

Retirement of Treasury Stock

During the fiscal year ended 2013, the Companye@38,365 shares of treasury stock, with a aagryalue of approximately $6.2
million. These retired shares are now includecdhen@ompany’s pool of authorized but unissued shates retired treasury stock was initially
recorded using the cost method. The Company’s
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accounting policy upon the retirement of treastiogls is to deduct its par value from common steelluce additional paid-in capital by the
amount recorded in additional paidecapital when the stock was originally issued ang remaining excess of cost as a deduction fegairrec
earnings.

During the fiscal year ended 2012, the Companye®i$,802,571 shares of treasury stock, with ayzayvalue of approximately $51.7
million. These retired shares are now includedhen€@ompany’s pool of authorized but unissued shaies retired treasury stock was initially
recorded using the cost method. The Company’s atitmupolicy upon the formal retirement of treasatgck is to deduct its par value from
common stock, reduce additional paid-in capitathi®/amount recorded in additional paid-in capithew the stock was originally issued and
any remaining amount as a deduction from retaimediegs.

13. Related Party Transactions

Katrina Boydon, the sister of Bronwyn Syiek, then@any’s President, served as the Company’s Vicsidst of Content and
Compliance until August 15, 2013. In fiscal yea®4 2, 2012 and 2011, Ms. Boydon received a baseysafl&230,000, $214,000 and $203,
per year and a bonus payout of $40,000, $60,006&8@00. In fiscal years 2013 and 2012, Ms. Boydas granted options to purchase an
aggregate of 22,500 shares and 40,000 shares Gotm@any’s common stock. From July 1, 2013 throfigbust 15, 2013 Ms. Boydon
received compensation of $61,000 for her services.

From March 2009 through January 2012, Rian Valéiméi son of Doug Valenti, the Company’s Chief ExteeuOfficer and Chairman,
served as a client strategy and development seraoager. In fiscal years 2012 and 2011, Mr. RialeMareceived a base salary of $41,000
and $62,000 per year and a commission payout aD®28nd $32,000. In fiscal year 2012 and 2011,R¥n Valenti was granted 1,250
restricted stock units and 750 restricted stocksurfithe Company’s common stock.

In fiscal year 2012, the Company'’s president, Brgm@yiek, informed QuinStreet that she desireddd & company using her own
resources that would develop and offer websitegrsgtocal community groups. The Company had prasfip explored a similar business
opportunity and had concluded that the opportuweig not consistent with its business direction didchot address a sufficiently large market
to justify further investment. Accordingly, the Cpamy had discontinued its investment in this bussrapportunity in fiscal year 2011. During
the time that the Company considered this busioppsrtunity and tested the market with a produf#rofg, Ms. Syiek, within the scope of t
employment by QuinStreet, gained certain know-hbaua the community-based website business. In dg@d 2, Ms. Syiek’s proposal to
pursue the business opportunity herself was predentthe Company’s Board of Directors for theinsideration under the CompagsyRelatec
Person Transactions Policy. The Board of Directait) Mr. Valenti and Ms. Syiek abstaining, conchddthat Ms. Syiek’s proposal did not
present a conflict of interest and directed managno negotiate agreements to document the amagrge On August 23, 2012, the Comp:
Ms. Syiek and TownB Corporation, a company founaied substantially owned by Ms. Syiek, entered antacense and Investment
Agreement pursuant to which QuinStreet provided iBwvith a license to Ms. Syiek’'s community-basedsite business know-how and
QuinStreet received a 15% ownership interest inABwreemptive rights to maintain its ownershipeleand a right of first refusal in the ev
that Ms. Syiek chooses to sell her shares or Toshdild be sold. Other than the know-how held by $48ek, no other Company intellectual
property has been licensed to TownB or Ms. Syidle Tompany believes that both the know-how licenaad the minority interest and
associated rights in TownB that the Company reckikiave nominal fair market value.

On April 22, 2013, the Company entered into an exgent (the “Transition Agreement”) with Bronwyn 8lj the Company’s President,
which provides for the transition and conclusiorMs. Syiek’s employment with the Company. Pursaarthe Transition Agreement,
Ms. Syiek will continue to work full time as the @pany’s President at her current base salary thr@aptember 30, 2013. Ms. Syiek was
eligible for, and received, a bonus for fiscal ye@t3. From October 1, 2013 until April 1, 2014,.Nyiek will continue to
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serve as the Company’s President and work partdirher current base salary but will not be eligitar a bonus for fiscal year 2014.

Ms. Syiek or the Company may terminate her emplaytrakany time, for any reason, subject to a marinseverance payment of two months
of base salary. The terms of the Transition Agregraee contingent on Ms. Syiek signing a releaseeagent. If Ms. Syiek’s employment is
not terminated before April 1, 2014, and provideat tMs. Syiek signs a release agreement, Ms. Syakenter into a 12-month consulting
agreement with the Company, in consideration foictviher “Continuous Service” (as defined in the @amy’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan)
would continue for certain of her equity awards. ®giek or the Company could terminate the consgligreement at any time and for any
reason during the consulting period. Ms. Syiek wiawdt receive cash compensation under the congudtineement.

14. Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as componentsaitarprise about which separate financial inforarais available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision makergdecision making group, in deciding how to allocagsources and in assessing performance
The Company’s chief operating decision maker isliigef executive officer. The Company’s chief exaauofficer reviews financial
information presented on a consolidated basis,rapaaied by information about operating segmentduding net sales and operating income
before depreciation, amortization and stock-basedpensation expense.

The Company determined its operating segments @M®, which derives revenue from fees earned thidahg delivery of qualified
leads, clicks, calls, customers and, to a lesgengxmpressions, and DSS, which derives reverara the sale of direct selling services
through a hosted solution. The Company’s reportabtéoperating segments consist of DMS and DSSagbeunting policies of the two
reportable and operating segments are the sarheses described in Note 2, Summary of SignificamtdAmting Policies.

The Company evaluates the performance of its opgraegments based on operating income before dapom, amortization and stock-
based compensation expense.

The Company does not allocate all of its assetiés @lepreciation and amortization expense, st@detl compensation expense, interest
income, interest expense and income tax expensedipent. Accordingly, the Company does not repat snformation.

Summarized information by segment was as followghousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011
Net revenue by segmel
DMS $304,08! $369,02: $401,70:
DSS 1,01¢ 1,44~ 1,31¢
Total net revenu 305,10: 370,46¢ 403,02:
Segment operating income before depreciation, aratin, stock-based compensation expens
and goodwill impairment
DMS 47,31¢ 71,84( 89,59(
DSS 55€ 80¢ 721
Total segment operating income before depreciatiorgrtization, stock-based compensation
expense, and goodwill impairme 47,87: 72,64¢ 90,31:
Depreciation and amortizatic (32,32Y) (31,150 (27,277)
Stocl-based compensation expel (12,016 (12,996 (13,950
Impairment of goodwil (92,350) — —
Total operating (loss) incon $(88,819) $ 28,50: $ 49,08¢
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The following tables set forth net revenue and tbowgd assets by geographic area (in thousands):

Net revenue
United State!
Internationa

Total net revenu

Property and equipment, ni
United State:
Internationa

Total property and equipment, r

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

2013 2012 2011

$302,17¢ $369,08: $401,67:
2,92:¢ 1,381 1,34¢
$305,10: $370,46¢ $403,02:

June 30 June 30

2013 2012

$9,50: $8,49:

20t 262

$9,707 $8,75¢
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants otcAunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cliirécutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officexaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of June(®®.2I'he term “disclosure controls and proceduras defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-1
(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 n@araled (the “Exchange Act”), means controls andrgbhocedures of a company that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported nvtftbitime periods specified in the SEC's rules famchs. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controlsigarocedures designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchafigeis accumulated and communicated to the compangnagement, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, as agpiate to allow timely decisions regarding regdidésclosure. Management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how welbdesl and operated, can provide only reasonabigasse of achieving their objectives and
management necessarily applies its judgment iruatiag the cost-benefit relationship of possiblatoals and procedures. Based on the
evaluation of our disclosure controls and proceslaeof June 30, 2013, our Chief Executive Offara Chief Financial Officer concluded
that, as of such date, our disclosure controlspradedures were effective at the reasonable assutavel.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Oueiinal control over financial reporting is designegrovide reasonable assurance regardin
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of consolidated financial statements faeexal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Our internal cdrdver financial reporting includes those policéxl procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions of its
assets,

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatioorsolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteabiating principles, and that receipts and expenetit are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of our managemeshidé&nectors, and

(i) provide reasonable assurance regarding priwemr timely detection of any unauthorized acdigin, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thediimiated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of internal control effectivenessutnre periods are subject to the risk that cdatneay become inadequate because of change
in conditions, or that the degree of compliancélite policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management has assessed the effectivenessinfemal control over financial reporting as ohéd 30, 2013. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteriartebjothe Committee of Sponsoring OrganizationthefTreadway Commission (“COSQ”)
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Basedlus evaluation, our management has concludddtirdanternal control over financial
reporting was effective as of June 30, 2013.
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The effectiveness of our internal control over fioil reporting as of June 30, 2013 has been albitPricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, ar
independent registered public accounting firm,tased in their report which appears in this anmepbrt on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control ovgairicial reporting identified in connection with tiealuation required by Rule 13a-15
(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occudedng the three months ended June 30, 2013 #sattaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govante

The information required by this item concerningedtors and executive officers is incorporated indog reference from the sections to
be titled “Election of Class | Directors,” “Board Directors,” and “Directors and Executive Officeéms our definitive proxy statement to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioodnnection with our 2013 annual meeting of stoddtérs (the “Proxy Statement”). The
Proxy Statement is expected to be filed no laten th?0 days after the end of our fiscal year eddee 30, 2013.

The information required by this item with respecSection 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorpatdterein by reference from the
section to be titled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Owsiep Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsBtiat applies to all of our employees, officémslgding our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal aoanting officer or controller, or persons perforgisimilar functions), agents and representat
including directors and consultants. We will makg sequired disclosure of future amendments toGaate of Business Conduct and Ethics
waivers of such provisions, applicable to any gpatexecutive officer, principal financial officgprincipal accounting officer or controller, or
persons performing similar functions or our direston the investor relations page of our corponabsite (www.quinstreet.com)

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections to be titled “Report of thenensation Committee,” “Board of
Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in our Br@tatement and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners @Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be setth in the sections to be titled “Executive Comgrion” and “Stock Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in ourxiPrStatement and is incorporated herein by refaren

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsdabirector Independence
The information required by this item will be indied in the section to be titled “Stock OwnershifCeftain Beneficial Owners and

Management” and “Board of Directors” in the Proxgt®ment and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be setth in the section to be titled “Ratification diet Selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as our Independent Registered Public Accourfing” in our Proxy Statement and is incorporatedein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) We have filed the following documents as p&ths Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding 52
Consolidated Balance She: 53
Consolidated Statements of Operati 54
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Losgnie 55
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity 56
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 57
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 58
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedule is filegla part of this report:
Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivables, saddsrns and the valuation allowance (in thousands):
Charged tc
Balance at Balance a
the expenses/ Write -offs
beginning of against the the end of
Net of
the year revenue Recoverie: the year
Accounts receivable and sales rett
Fiscal year 201 $ 2,75¢ $ 1,15¢ $ (1,197 $ 2,72¢
Fiscal year 201. $ 2,72¢ $ 2,18t $ (2,107 $ 2,801
Fiscal year 201 $ 2,801 $ 97 $ (879 $ 2,02¢
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowan
Fiscal year 201 $ — $ 947 $ — $ 947

Note: Additions to the allowance for doubtful acotaiand the valuation allowance are charged toresgpeAdditions to the allowance for
sales credits are charged against revenue.

All other schedules are omitted because they aresgaired or the required information is shownha financial statements or notes
thereto.
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No.

2.1®

3.16
3.20
4.1
420

10.1M+
10.2M +

10.3M+
10.4M+
10.5@+
10.6@ +

10.7@+
10.847 +

10.947 +

10.10*+
10.1103)+
10.12049+

10.1319)+

10.1400+
10.1502)+
10.16®

10.17¢8

Description of Exhibit

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 5, 2@1énd among QuinStreet, Inc., Car Insurance.com, Gar
Insurance Agency, Inc., Car Insurance Holdings,, I8arinsurance.com, Inc., Lloyd Register IV, Lidgdgister I, David
Fitzgerald, Timothy Register, Randy Horowitz anicEiPace

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat
Amended and Restated Bylav
Form of QuinStreet, In's Common Stock Certificat

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmeteimeand between QuinStreet, Inc., Douglas Vakmd the
investors listed on Schedule 1 thereto, dated MgyR2Q03.

QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Pl

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-executifécer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive cfs).
Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (fnor-employeedirectors).
QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive PI

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-executiiécer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notiodar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive afs).

Forms of Senior Management Restricted Stock Uritl{RGrant Notice and Agreement under 2010 Equitghtive Plan
(for executive officers)

Forms of Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Grant Notioel &greement under 2010 Equity Incentive Plan ifi@n-executive
officer employees)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under 2B4Qity Incentive Plan (for n-employee directors
QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notmelfiitial Grants under the 2010 Non-Employee Dioeg Stock
Award Plan.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notme&nnual Grants under the 2010 Non-Employee DinettStock
Award Plan.

Form of Incremental Bonus Ple
Annual Incentive Plar

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit ana Tean Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, Ihe.Jénders
thereto and Comerica Bank as Administrative Agenieé $ead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Bank of AozeN.A. as
Syndication Agent, and Union Bank, N.A. as Docuragah Agent dated as of November 4, 2C

First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Amendme@uaranty dated as of February 15, 2(
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.18®) Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februan2@40, between the registrant and CA-Metro Ceniimited
Partnership
10.194) + Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors amsttative officers
10.2019) Assurance of Voluntary Compliance dated June 2622y and among QuinStreet, Inc. and the Attorriggseral of the
States of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Delawargijddg Idaho, lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Massachusghlississippi,
Missouri, Nevada, New York, North Carolina, Ohiag@on, South Carolina, Tennessee and West Vir¢
10.2119) License and Investment Agreement by and among @@etS Inc., Bronwyn Syiek and TownB CorporationedbAugust
23, 2012
10.2219) Transition Agreement dated April 22, 2013 betwden@ompany and Bronwyn Syie
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24.1* Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference togtgmature page of this Annual Report on Forr-K).
31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Qu8treet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sax{-Oxley Act.
31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of qutreet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sax-Oxley Act.
32.1** Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive Offii and Chief Financial Office
101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docun
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*
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Filed herewith
Furnished herewitt
Indicates management contract or compensatory

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statemenfonm S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on November 19, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Reagibn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on December 22, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 2 to Ragibn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 3 to Ragitbn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on January 26, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (SE@ Nb. 00134628) filed on May 1:
2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Quie8tr Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stateinoa Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on December 22, 20!
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(13)

(14

(15)

(16)

17

(18)

(19)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Quie8ty Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statethoe Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Current Report on ForrK 8SEC File No. 001-34628) filed
on November 8, 201!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (SE@ Nb. 001-34628) filed on
November 8, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File. R01-34628) filed on June 27,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Qtiie&, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (SEC Mle. 001-34628) filed on
August 30, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Qtiie&, Inc.’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Stert on Form S-1 (SEC File
N0.33:-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Quia8t, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Staenhon Form S-1 (SEC File
N0.33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Quia8t, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Staenhon Form S-1 (SEC File
N0.33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Qtrie&, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stert on Form S-1 (SEC File
N0.33:-163228) filed on December 22, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File. N01-34628) filed on April 23,
2013.

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Annual Report on FormK@SEC File No. 00134628) filec
on August 23, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (SE@ Nb. 001-34628) filed on
February 15, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Qtie&, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (SEC Rile. 001-34628 filed on
August 23, 2012
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized, on August 20, 2013.

QuinStreet, Inc
By: /s/ Douglas Valen

Douglas Valenti
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears belostittdes and appoints Douglas
Valenti and Kenneth Hahn, and each of them, afrinésand lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, iilhpower of substitution and re-
substitution, for him in any and all capacitiessign any and all amendments to this Annual Repoifform 10-K and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto, and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Corsimishereby ratifying and confirming
that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agentijsosubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully do auge to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ Douglas Valenti Chairman of the Board and Chief August 20, 2013
Douglas Valent Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/s Kenneth Hahn Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer =~ August 20, 2013
Kenneth Hahn (Principal

Financial Officer)

/sl Gregory Wong Chief Accounting Officer and Vice President, Financ  August 20, 2013
Gregory Wonc (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s! William Bradley Director August 20, 2013
William Bradley
/s/ Robin Josephs Director August 20, 2013
Robin Joseph
/s/ John G. McDonald Director August 20, 2013
John G. McDonal
/sl Gregory Sands Director August 20, 2013
Gregory Sand
/sl James Simons Director August 20, 2013
James Simon
/s/ Dana Stalder Director August 20, 2013
Dana Stalde
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10.2M +

10.3M+
10.4M+
10.5@+
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10.847 +

10.947 +

10.10*+
10.1103)+
10.12049+

10.1319)+

10.1400+
10.1502)+
10.16®

10.17¢8

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 5, 2@1énd among QuinStreet, Inc., Car Insurance.com, Gar
Insurance Agency, Inc., Car Insurance Holdings,, I8arinsurance.com, Inc., Lloyd Register IV, Lidgdgister I, David
Fitzgerald, Timothy Register, Randy Horowitz anicEiPace

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat
Amended and Restated Bylav
Form of QuinStreet, In's Common Stock Certificat

Second Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agmeteimeand between QuinStreet, Inc., Douglas Vakmd the
investors listed on Schedule 1 thereto, dated MgyR2Q03.

QuinStreet, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Pl

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-executifécer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive cfs).
Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (for r-employee directors
QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive PI

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notindar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for non-executiiécer
employees)

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notiodar 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (for executive afs).

Forms of Senior Management Restricted Stock Uritl{RGrant Notice and Agreement under 2010 Equitghtive Plan
(for executive officers)

Forms of Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Grant Notioel &greement under 2010 Equity Incentive Plan ifi@n-executive
officer employees)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under 2B4Qity Incentive Plan (for n-employee directors
QuinStreet, Inc. 2010 N-Employee Director Stock Award Plan

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notmelfitial Grants under the 2010 Non-Employee Diveg Stock
Award Plan.

Forms of Option Agreement and Option Grant Notme&nnual Grants under the 2010 Non-Employee DinettStock
Award Plan.

Form of Incremental Bonus Ple
Annual Incentive Plar

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit ana Tean Agreement, by and among QuinStreet, Ihe.Jénders
thereto and Comerica Bank as Administrative Agenieé $ead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Bank of AozeN.A. as
Syndication Agent, and Union Bank, N.A. as Docuragah Agent dated as of November 4, 2C

First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Amendme@uaranty dated as of February 15, 2(
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.18®) Office Lease Metro Center, dated as of Februan2@40, between the registrant and CA-Metro Ceniimited
Partnership
10.194) + Form of Indemnification Agreement made by and betw®uinStreet, Inc. and each of its directors amsttative officers
10.2019) Assurance of Voluntary Compliance dated June 2622y and among QuinStreet, Inc. and the Attorriggseral of the
States of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Delawargijddg Idaho, lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Massachusghlississippi,
Missouri, Nevada, New York, North Carolina, Ohiag@on, South Carolina, Tennessee and West Vir¢
10.2119) License and Investment Agreement by and among @@etS Inc., Bronwyn Syiek and TownB CorporationedbAugust
23, 2012
10.2219) Transition Agreement dated April 22, 2013 betwden@ompany and Bronwyn Syie
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24.1* Power of Attorney (incorporated by reference togtgmature page of this Annual Report on Forr-K).
31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Qu8treet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sax{-Oxley Act.
31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of qutreet, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sax-Oxley Act.
32.1** Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive Offii and Chief Financial Office
101.INS** XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docun
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*

*%

+
@

@

®

@)

®)

Filed herewith
Furnished herewitt
Indicates management contract or compensatory

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Registration Statemenfonm S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on November 19, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Reagibn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on December 22, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 2 to Ragibn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Amendment No. 3 to Ragitbn Statement on Form S-1
(SEC File No. 33-163228) filed on January 26, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (SE@ Nb. 00134628) filed on May 1:
2010.
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(10)

(11)

(12

13

(14)

(15)

(16)

1

(18)

(19)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Quie8ty Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statethoe Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Quie8ty Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statethoa Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-
163228) filed on December 22, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedigxbiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Current Report on ForrK 8SEC File No. 001-34628) filed
on November 8, 201!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (SE@ Nb. 001-34628) filed on
November 8, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File. R01-34628) filed on June 27,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Qtiie&, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (SEC Mle. 001-34628) filed on August
30, 2011

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Qtiie&, Inc.’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Steget on Form S-1 (SEC File No.
333-163228) filed on January 14, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Quia8t, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statethon Form S-1 (SEC File No.
333-163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Quia8t, Inc.’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statethon Form S-1 (SEC File No.
333-163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Quie&, Inc.’'s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Staat on Form S-1 (SEC File No.
333-163228) filed on December 22, 20t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K (SEC File. N01-34628) filed on April 23,
2013.

Incorporated by reference to the same numberedbigxdiQuinStreet, Inc.’s Annual Report on FormK@SEC File No. 00134628) filec
on August 23, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quia&t, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (SE@ Nb. 001-34628) filed on
February 15, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Quie&, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (SEC File. 001-34628 filed on August
23, 2012
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Exhibit 10.10

Q UIN STREET, I NC.
2010 NoN -E MPLOYEE D IRECTORS ' S TOCK A WARD P LAN

R ESTRICTED STOCK U NIT A GREEMENT

Pursuant to the Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Gramtidé (“ Grant Notice”) and this Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (thiddreement
"), QuinStreet, Inc. (the Company”) has granted you a Restricted Stock Unit Awarderrits 2010 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Award
Plan (the “Plan ) representing the right to receive the numbestaires of the Company’s Common Stock indicatetlér@rant Notice on the
terms and conditions set forth herein and in thenGNotice. Defined terms not explicitly definedtlitis Agreement but defined in the Plan s
have the same definitions as in the Plan.

The details of your Restricted Stock Unit Award as<follows:

1.V ESTING . Subject to the limitations contained herein, yRestricted Stock Unit Award will vest as providad/our Grant Notice,
provided that vesting will cease upon the termaratf your Continuous Service. Immediately upomieation of your Continuous Service for
any reason, any unvested portion of the RestriStedk Unit Award shall be forfeited without congidion. In addition, if the Company is
subject to a Change in Control before your ContirsuService terminates, then all of the unvestedeshteubject to your Restricted Stock Unit
Award shall become fully vested immediately priothe effective date of such Change in Control.

2.C oNVERSION | NTO SHARES . Shares of Common Stock will be issued on theiegiple vesting date (or, to the extent not
administratively feasible, as soon as practicatdedafter). As a condition to such issuance, yall blave satisfied your Tax Obligations as
specified in this Agreement and shall have comglediggned and returned any documents and takeaddifional action that the Company
deems appropriate to enable it to accomplish thieetg of such shares. In no event will the Compéaryobligated to issue a fractional share.

3.T AX T REATMENT .

(a) Regardless of any actions taken by the Companywill be ultimately responsible for any withdolg tax liabilities, whether
a result of federal, state or other law and whefibiethe payment and satisfaction of any income saxial security tax, payroll tax, or payment
on account of other tax related to withholding gations that arise by reason of the RestrictedkStgt Award, incurred in connection with
the Restricted Stock Unit Award becoming vested @othmon Stock being issued, or otherwise incumezbnnection with the Restricted
Stock Unit Award (collectively, Tax Obligations”).

(b) Unless otherwise determined by the Companisisadle discretion, and subject to applicable te&,Company shall require you
to satisfy the Tax Obligations (as defined below}te Company deducting from the shares of CommookStherwise deliverable to you in
settlement of applicable portion of the Restrickdck Unit Award on the vesting date a number obltshares having a fair market value (as
determined by th



Company) as of the date on which the Tax Obligatiamse not in excess of the amount of such Taig@tibns determined by the applicable
minimum statutory withholding rates. The Companyyrmaits sole discretion permit you to elect areaiaitive method of satisfying your Tax
Obligations with notice to the Company, which maglide the following if specified by the Companpdahe Company may with notice to
you require any of the following methods): (i) bgypnent by you to the Company in cash or by checkmaount equal to the minimum amoi

of taxes that the Company concludes it is requivedithhold under applicable law; or (ii) by thdesdy you of a number of shares of Commor
Stock that are issued on the applicable vesting diatler the Restricted Stock Unit Award, which@umpany determines is sufficient to
generate an amount that meets the Tax Obligatilussgalditional shares to account for rounding aadket fluctuations, and payment of such
tax withholding to the Company, and such sharesImeagold as part of a block trade with other Pipaicts. You hereby authorize the
Company to withhold such tax withholding amounifirany amounts owing to you to the Company andke &y action necessary in
accordance with this paragraph.

(c) The Restricted Stock Unit Award is intendedjt@lify for the short-term deferral exception taen 409A of the Code
described in the regulations promulgated thereyradet therefore shares of Common Stock will beeidsuithin 21 /2 months after the taxable
year in which the applicable portion of the ResgicStock Unit Award is no longer subject to a saisal risk of forfeiture

4. SecurITIES L Aw C ompPLIANCE . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contditerein, the Company shall not be obligated to
deliver any Common Stock during any period whenGbenpany determines that the conversion of anyigrodf the Restricted Stock Unit
Award or the delivery of shares hereunder wouldat@any federal, state or other applicable laveB@may issue shares subject to any
restrictive legends that, as determined by the Gois counsel, is necessary to comply with se@sitir other regulatory requirements.

5. R ESTRICTIONS ON T RANSFER OF A WARDS . You understand and agree that the Restricteck&toit Award may not be sold, given,
transferred, assigned, pledged or otherwise hypathd.

6. C APITALIZATION A DJUSTMENTS . The number of shares of Common Stock subjecbto Restricted Stock Unit Award may be
adjusted from time to time for Capitalization Adjuents.

7.N o STockHOLDER R IGHTS . You will have no voting or other rights as then@many’s other stockholders with respect to theeshaf
Common Stock underlying the Restricted Stock Umita#d until issuance of such shares.

8.D viDEND E QuIvALENT U NITS . Unless otherwise determined by the Compensatamrittee of the Company’Board of Directors i
its sole discretion, you shall not have any rigbtdividends or dividend equivalents in the evéiat the Company pays a cash dividend to
holders of Common Stock generally.

9. A WARD NOT A SERVICE C ONTRACT . Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is not an empt@nt or service contract, and nothing in your
Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be



deemed to create in any way whatsoever any oldigath your part to continue in the employ of ther(pany or an Affiliate, or of the
Company or an Affiliate to continue your employmedntaddition, nothing in your Restricted Stock tUfsivard shall obligate the Company or
an Affiliate, their respective stockholders, Boaod®irectors, Officers or Employees to continug aslationship that you might have as a
Director or Consultant for the Company or an Adfié.

10.N oTices . Any notices provided for in your Restricted Stadkit Award or the Plan shall be given in writingdashall be deemed
effectively given upon receipt or, in the case afices delivered by mail by the Company to youef{g) days after deposit in the United State:
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thethisess you provided to the Company.

11.P ARACHUTE P AYMENTS .

(a) If any payment or benefit you would receivesuant to a Change in Control from the Company lemtise (“Payment”’)
would (i) constitute a “parachute payment” withire tmeaning of Section 280G of the Code, and (iiftauthis sentence, be subject to the
excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code"(f#ecise Tax"), then such Payment shall be equal to the RedAoeolunt. The “Reduced
Amount” shall be either (x) the largest portion of they@nt that would result in no portion of the Payiraging subject to the Excise Tax or
(y) the largest portion, up to and including theakoof the Payment, whichever amount, after takimg account all applicable federal, state anc
local employment taxes, income taxes, and the Extéx (all computed at the highest applicable nmadgiate), results in your receipt, on an
after-tax basis, of the greater amount of the Paymetwithstanding that all or some portion of feeyment may be subject to the Excise Tax.
If a reduction in payments or benefits constitutipgrachute payments$ necessary so that the Payment equals the Redunsednt, reductiol
shall occur in the following order: reduction osbapayments; cancellation of accelerated vestiragjafty awards; reduction of employee
benefits. In the event that acceleration of vestihgquity awards compensation is to be reducezh aaceleration of vesting shall be cancellec
in the reverse order of the date of grant of yauity awards (i.e., earliest granted equity awandcelled last).

(b) The accounting firm engaged by the Companyéareral audit purposes as of the day prior to ffeetéve date of the Change in
Control shall perform the foregoing calculatiorfghe accounting firm so engaged by the Comparsgiiging as accountant or auditor for the
individual, entity or group effecting the Changedaontrol, the Company shall appoint a nationallyognized accounting firm to make the
determinations required hereunder. The Company lskat all expenses with respect to the deterntinatby such accounting firm required to
be made hereunder.

(c) The accounting firm engaged to make the detwatiuins hereunder shall provide its calculationgether with detailed
supporting documentation, to you and the Comparlyimfifteen (15) calendar days after the date @ictvyour right to a Payment is triggel
(if requested at that time by you or the Compamguzh other time as requested by you or the Comnphthe accounting firm determines that
no Excise Tax is payable with respect to a Paynegthter before or after the application of the RetlAmount, it shall furnish you and the
Company with an opinion reasonably acceptable tothat no Excise Tax will be imposed with respectuch Payment. Any good faith
determinations of the accounting firm made hereusHall be final, binding and conclusive upon yod the Company.

3



12.G oveRNING P LaN D ocuMENT . Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is subject tbthé provisions of the Plan, the provisions of et
are hereby made a part of your Restricted Stock Almard, and is further subject to all interpretats, amendments, rules and regulations,
which may from time to time be promulgated and addpursuant to the Plan. In the event of any axrifetween the provisions of your
Restricted Stock Unit Award and those of the Piae,provisions of the Plan shall control.
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B33517, 333-176272,
333-168322, and 333-165534) of QuinStreet, In@wfreport dated August 20, 2013 relating to thesotidated financial statements, financial
statement schedule and the effectiveness of idteamdrol over financial reporting, which appearghis Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
August 20, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Douglas Valenti, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIQuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or déonfttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the company as of, andffier periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentdisingport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyedis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the company’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s interr@ntrol over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refaancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@niifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 20, 2013

/s/ Douglas Valent

Douglas Valenti

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Kenneth Hahn, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIQuinStreet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or déonfttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the company as of, andffier periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentdisingport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyedis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the company’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the company’s interr@ntrol over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refaancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@niifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 20, 2013

/s/ Kenneth Hah

Kenneth Hahn

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The certification set forth below is being subrdtte connection with the report on Form 10-K of @ireet, Inc. (the “Report”) for the

purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule-113l(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (thechange Act”) and Section 1350 of
Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

Douglas Valenti, the Chief Executive Officer andniketh Hahn, the Chief Financial Officer and Chigle@ating Officer of QuinStreet,
Inc., each certifies that, to the best of his krexlgle:

1. the Report fully complies with the requiremesttSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
QuinStreet, Inc.

Date: August 20, 2013

/s/ Douglas Valent

Name: Douglas Valen

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Kenneth Hah

Name: Kenneth Hah

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Financial Officer




